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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of Hong Kong Education
(Int'l) Investments Limited (“Hong Kong Education” or “Company”),
| am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2017 (“Year”).

The Group has experienced a tough business environment over
the past financial year. For the Year, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately HK$153.86 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 18.93% compared to the previous year. Loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$333.33 million as compared to a loss of
approximately HK$144.72 million in 2016. Such drop was attributed
to the loss on change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$210.58 million, and the
loss in respect of interest in Interactive Entertainment China Cultural
Technology Investments Limited (stock code: 8081), an associate of
the Group, of approximately HK$117.12 million.

Despite the stagnant atmosphere of the global economy last year, the
Group has made every effort to maintain a high-quality teaching team
s0 as to offer the best education service to the students, to overcome
the difficulties in the existing business environment and to prepare
the Group to face the challenges in the coming year.

HRARE

AANERXREEHE (BB RESEERAR(EE
HE IR ARANEZE([EFE DMARAEZRARF
REMBRAR([AKE])HBE2017F6 H30A LFE
(IRFEEDHNFEES -

AEER E—EFRFERHRBNLERE - A
FE  AEEHSFWRAL 153,860,000/ T @ WEF
WA #18.93% c RRARHEAE AREARNFEEBRR/LD
333,330,000 7T * 20164 Bll 7 &8 49 144,720,000
BT AR TR EZEARBAFEAABRZNSH
BENAFEZFELEEL210,580,000/8 TIARE
FARARERE AR ERPEXERERERRAT
(Bt FL5% © 8081) # 5 HY &5 18 49 117,120,0007% 7T Pt
B o

BEEFERQBEERBTA - AKBNBNHBFES
MEBEK - KmERERMKERE RS - UERN
RAXEBRROR - WEBARSEEAE L RFA] B
IR A PE -
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong Market

In the first half of 2017, the weak recovery of the global economy has
added uncertainty to the business environment of the Group. During
the Year, the general operating environment of secondary tutoring
segment was not easy as we could see two major trends in Hong
Kong had been impacting the Group: decreasing number of students
in taking Diploma of Secondary Education Examination (“DSE”)
and increasing number of small size teaching tutorial centres. More
and more high school students have chosen either to study abroad
or study non-DSE curriculum; year on year, there is a continuous
decrease in the number of candidates going to sit for the DSE. On
the other hand, many small-scale tutoring centres targeting small
group teaching have been setup; the excessive tutorial centres have
aggravated the market competition.

The Group has been working with professional and quality mentors
to assist students to build up their confidence in sitting for various
public examinations. With dedications to and persistence in quality
education, the Group continues to improve the course contents
and has launched the iIMODE learning system, the first cloud-based
learning platform in Asia. iMODE is an innovative system that
allows students to review their lectures whenever they want; while
our professional tutors can always keep track on the students’
understanding and response to the course materials and revise their
teaching materials with reference to students’ performance and
progress. The Group will keep on enhancing the interactive features
in the IMODE in order to enhance the benefits it may bring to help
students build up their strengths and attain better results in the DSE.

PRC Market

The Group has kept alert on the private education service segment
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) where the demand and
potential growth is vast. The demand of quality education has been
growing over the years due to the continuously increasing demand
from the middle-class families. The Group will look for strong potential

partners to develop its business in the PRC if any opportunities arise.

Chairman’s Statement
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RIEDE  EFRNFERLIEREBENREK - ZEREE
BHENFRTEEN - VRN P ERENFRFE
LTt e AEBESHEANBEAERE  UEKS
HIRFR P BB REL -

Annual Report 2017 F%

05



06

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will strive to maintain its market position in Hong Kong
by retaining its quality teaching team and efficient management
team, conducting infrastructure and system upgrade, and closely
monitoring potential opportunities. The Group will deploy resources to
its secondary tutoring segment and revising course structure so as to
attract and increase customer loyalty of its students. The Group also
aims to reform its business of secondary school tutoring services in

order to balance the income sources.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend
my sincere gratitude to our investors, shareholders and business
partners for their ongoing support and trust. | would also like to thank
all my fellow colleagues in the Board and all the staff of Hong Kong
Education for their hard work and commitments.

Wong Yuk Tong
Chairman

Hong Kong

27 September 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As a result of the volatile stock market in the past year and the volatile
business environment in Hong Kong, it has been full of challenges
and uncertainties for the past year. Despite so, the Group strived to
maintain a stable performance of the existing businesses through
carefully adjusting tutoring services business and investments
strategies. The Group has continued to implement its prudent
strategies to ensure the Group’s long-term development.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Provision of private education services

Secondary Tutoring Services

The performance of secondary tutoring services has been adversely
affected by intense competition as numerous tutorial centres have
been established in the market. In addition, students are more
inclined to start studying abroad at a younger age due to various
socio-political reasons, the total number of Diploma of Secondary
Education Examination (“DSE”) candidates has significantly
decreased, which is detrimental to the Group’s secondary tutoring
service business segment. During the year ended 30 June 2017
(“Year”), the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$108.41
million, representing a decrease of approximately of 19.38% as

compared with last year.

During the Year, the Group has launched iMODE learning system,
which is the first cloud-based learning system in Asia. iIMODE
provided an inspirational platform for students to review the lectures
online; and at the same time, enabled our tutors to adjust and
improve course contents according to the students’ progress, ability
and knowledge. The Group actively expands the iIMODE learning
system for students to feel more convenience and ease at using the
Group’s tutoring services.

BEREFWE D

HREFRMBHERBEBEBREDE - EFHMHk
BRTIBERE - BEWL - NEEIBEREZRR
BEHERBEBRBRERBRESRABEEBHRER
B AKEREETERERR AERAKENHRE
B -

RO
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HEH TR
HRMEAE KL ZEHEE LI BERF AR - P2
BERBORRAMIZ B AFEE - thoh - BARBZ
SERZEMGEORREME BEFRE/) ORI
EEIAE  pERERA([HEEERA)NEL
BABKERD - EAFRANE BB S 6HE RS
BOE - MBZE2017F6 A30R FFE(RFE]) -
75 18§45 W 52 49108,410,0008 7T * RMEF R K
19.38% -

RAFER  AEEHEEENEEERERNET R
% — IMODEE2E %% - IMODEIRHt ARRZE M F S -
HeEre FESRFE RN EEMERESLMEE -
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Annual Report 2017 F%

07



08

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmR T

The following table sets forth the number of course enrolments, the

number of tutors and the average course fees of each category of

secondary tutoring courses for the two years ended 30 June 2017:

THRBBATE201746 A30A LEREFE &R0
BREAREAANL - EMABRTFIBY -

Year ended 30 June

HECHA30HLEE

2017 2016
Number of course enrolments (in thousands) PRIERA NR (L TFET)
Regular courses B RIE 138 180
Intensive courses fEE T 13 15
Summer courses EHIRE 25 28
T.I.P.S. courses e R ITIE 8 7
Special courses HRIRE 11 15
Number of tutors (Note 1) BROAB (M EED)
Regular courses EHRE 42 43
Intensive courses 1T 34 38
Summer courses = HIERE 42 40
T.I.P.S. courses JER BT IE 28 27
Special courses ERIRE 26 39
Average course fees (HK$) (Note 2) S Es GET)(Kit2)
Regular courses BRI 560 548
Intensive courses fEE LT 572 561
Summer courses EHRE 487 507
T.I.P.S. courses eI 631 620
Special courses HZRIERE 312 298
Notes: Wit -
1. Tutors may provide secondary tutoring services for all or certain 1. B AMARE TERNREREPEFHE R -

categories of courses. Thus, the sum of the number of tutors for the
provision of regular courses, intensive courses, summer courses, T.1.P.S.
courses and special courses is not equal to the total number of tutors

for the year.

2. Being revenue divided by course enrolments for the year. 2.

As of 30 June 2017, the Group had 8 learning centres operated
under the brand of “Modern Education” 2R E.

it - REEAGBRHERRE - FEN - SHRE
FESRIT M R ERER 2GR ABERN - W TSR ERD
BAE -

BIURARR AR FERIZ M A AR ©

R201746 A30R » REEASEMNUIIHARHE |mEe

ENHBBERL
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Secondary Day School Education

The Group operates its secondary day school programme under the
brand “Modern Day School” ¥t H#. During the Year, the Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$1.15 million from the day
school segment, representing a decrease of approximately 42.61%
as compared with last year. The number of course enrolments for
Secondary 5 and 6 were 20 and 359 respectively (2016: 111 and
569 respectively). The management observe that there has been a
general decrease in demand for the day school programme, which is
designed for students according to their syllabus applicable to their
specific school year, for the past few years due to the diminishing of
number of candidates to sit for the DSE. In light of this, the Group will
suspend the secondary day school education segment from the next
academic year. The management believe that the suspension will
allow the Group more flexibility in re-allocating its resources to other
business segments with a higher profit margin.

English Language Training and Test Preparation Courses

The Group has been offering quality English language training and
preparation courses to students for more than nine years. Through
such training and courses, our experienced and professional tutors
use innovative and versatile methods to help students advance
in their English language learning and cope with the International
English Language Testing System (IELTS) and Test of English for
International Communication (TOEIC). During the Year, the Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$22.44 million, representing
a decrease of 4.94% as compared with last year, and there were
approximately 14,000 (2016: approximately 14,000) course
enrolments during the Year. Despite of the decrease in revenue, the
management consider that as proficiency in the English language
remains to be one of the most valued qualities for students to
progress into the tertiary education both locally and overseas, English
tutoring services will remain in great demand in the foreseeable
future. The Group will endeavour to maintain quality teaching
practice and enlighten students with professional knowledge.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

FRARBRE

REBMUTERBR | EMERBRRR - RAFE
A REER AR EBEF YA 491,150,000 7T
REAFRIHA261% - ;P ZRkESF =RIEHHEA
R B A204 K 3594 (20164F © 7 Bl A&1114 K569
%) BIREEE ARWMEFREREANZLEAL
R BEAEEARRE(DRBEARNETEFAR
BABEMR)FREETE -BER  AEEBR
TEE2FRERILEFAARRES - EREMRE - A
BRI A EB BB EENPEREEREH
EFEESMNEFHED -

HEIT R AR
AEEAEAREEEREDZTEIIRERAREDEB
BIF - BRAMIFIINRE  BAKCREELEE
WERMERRFEZS L HBOEERARLEESEE
Be1 - UREMNBEBREEIRESR (D) RBERERR
HEBEH(TOEC) - RAFERN - AEEHBKRALY
22,440,000/ 7T © MEF R H94.94% « AT E AR
T2 HRA N RHI14,0004 (20164 © 4914,0004) < BE
Wamd  BEEEBRBEBENKRARZENAM R
BHINAERSHEREENHE 2 —  RBEIRS
RAI B RINATRKEX - AEEBB NEFELR
B WAEEMBRESL -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Primary Tutoring Services, Skill Courses and Test Preparation Courses
Traditional families consider that accredited educational background
could benefit their children in the long run. Thus, parents are more
willing to invest in external education courses for their children to
strengthen their competitiveness in an early stage of their schooling.
The Group has developed proprietary comprehensive teaching
materials to primary school students to strengthen their foundation
for higher quality education. As of 30 June 2017, there were
6 directly-owned education centres and 34 franchised centres
operated under the brand “Modern Bachelor Education” 3R/ N&+4-.
During the Year, there were approximately 12,700 (2016:
approximately 9,000) course enrolments recorded from
directly-owned learning centres and total revenue contributed by the
franchised centres to the Group was approximately HK$4.50 million
(2016: approximately HK$4.52 million). The Group will proactively
study the trends in the market for this business segment and adjust
its strategies to capture market opportunities.

Investments

Properties Investments

During the Year, the Group has entered into agreements to sell its
interest in two properties (“Disposals”).

(i)  On1June 2017, the Group agreed to dispose 60% of the issued
share capital of Ultimate Elite Investments Limited (“Ultimate
Elite”) at an aggregate consideration of HK$89,238,000 (subject
to adjustment), through a legally binding memorandum of
understanding with an independent third party and other
parties. The wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultimate Elite is the
legal and beneficial owner of the properties situated at (i) Offices
A-H, J-N & P on 21/F (Whole Floor), and (ii) Car Parking Space
Nos. P47, P48 and P49 on the basement floor of Kings Wing
Plaza 1, No. 3 On Kwan Street, Sha Tin, New Territories. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 1 June
2017, 17 July 2017, 31 July 2017 and 28 August 2017 for
details.

NEEBRE - REFRFERERFIE
BRRERBERITNHYESERENSHKETR -
At REFEEEATRRERINILE RIBURES
M FHEERENTFE N - AREEXRABTLEER
MoomsENEBARSFTEEHENER - R2017F
6A308 ' [BRARNEL | REETHEEELHET
D RMERFHFEERL - REAFER @ KEBBB
HEHBEPOMRBIRE AXK12,700% (2016 F -
#99,0004 ) + MFFHEEF L AREBE EEIBUI AL
4,500,000 7T (20164 : #94,520,000 7T) » AEH
BB R EBF D HATIHSBE - WAREREE
EEmIGKE -

RE
RAFER  AEEFTIHHEAHEERMEYED
B ([HESRE]) -

() M2017F6H1B ARBERESRAE—HRBEL
FE=F REAMFTOFEI LB ERORINRE
& = %% - &L & Ultimate Elite Investments Limited
(['Ultimate Elite ]) B 27T AM60%  BREAH
89,238,000/ 7T (A T # # ) ° Ultimate Elite /) &
EWBARBNRT AL BLHEEIRRINES
TEIR D ()21 A-H - JINEPE(2E)BEA
= N(ih T EBEPA7 - PASK PAOSR{ZE {7 )
FEEREBERBEAA - BEFBHELHEARF B
B2017F6A1H 201774178 ~ 2017%7R
318 K%20174E8 A28 H ) A/ o
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(i) On 30 June 2017, the Group entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
the entire interest of a wholly-owned subsidiary (“Target”) of the
Group, at an aggregate consideration of HK$30,500,000 (subject
to adjustment). The Target is the legal and beneficial owner of
the property situated at Office No. 1303 on 13th Floor of Argyle
Centre Phase |, No. 688 Nathan Road and No. 65 Argyle Street,

Mong Kok, Kowloon.

In view of the expected gain from the Disposals, the Group
considered that it is a good time to realise the investment gain on
the properties for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders.
As at 30 June 2017, the Disposals were yet to be completed.
During the Year, the Group recorded rental income of approximately
HK$1.44 million (2016: approximately HK$0.77 million) from
investment properties and a fair value gain of approximately
HK$7.80 million on revaluation of investment properties as at
30 June 2017.

Subsequent to the Year, completion of the disposal in paragraph (i)
above has taken place on 28 August 2017.

Assets Investments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

During the Year, the Group has adopted a prudent attitude in its
securities investments. The Group had acquired listed securities in
3 listed companies and disposed of some shares in the investment
portfolio. Besides listed securities, the Group had subscribed for an
unlisted bond fund in March 2017. As at 30 June 2017, the Group
had financial assets at FVTPL with a fair value of approximately
HK$152.22 million.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

(i) H2017F6HA30H » RNEBEE —EBBIE=7]
VYHEGRHEEERZE  NWHEAKRENZENER
([BR]) 25 - 1B 830,500,000/ T
(AT %) - BRRNEEE AMBCE6885 % KT &
Z 655 A0 13 1303 =X MENEE L E
SmEBA °

ERLEFENENKE  AEERRERERY
EREWRmRHARE REBRRA N L -
R20176 A30R - HEFHERRKTK - RAFE
N AEBBREMEFFHEEWALL440,00078 7T
(2016%F : #J770,000/7T) + M 201746 A30H Eff
REMEH R FEWREES%)7,800,000/8 7T

RAFEE - ORI EFIAE R201778 28R
SR o

EERE
B FEGFABRN T BEE (182 FEGTARZA
EHEE])

RAFER - AEBREHFRE ERNEEEE - &
EEBASREMARN EMESRRZIEEHEER
PEETRGS - R EMEHRI - REBBER20174F
SAREIELEMESES - N2017F6A30A - &%
EHBEATEFABENSREE FRATFED
152,220,00058 7T ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmR T

Details of the significant investments in the portfolio under financial ~ #R201796 8308 @ I AFE ABRENS B EEM
assets at FVTPL as at 30 June 2017 are as follows: AREARREFBLT
Percentage held Percentage to
to the total issued the Group's
share capital audited total
of the company/ Investment Fair value assets as at
Number of investment costicost of asat 30 June 2017
Description of investment Principal businesses shares held (approximately) acquisition 30 June 2017 (approximately)
R2017%
ELRBRT 6A308
&/ 4% E¥%E
#ae R2017% HBURRE
RRESL REns/ 6A30H HwESL
HE TERE FisRi#E (##) {2 WAEE (##)
HK$000 HK$'000
A AT
Significant investments
EAE
Convoy Global Holdings Limited (“Convoy”) Independent financial advisory business, 699,996,000 4.69% 244,999 80,500 13.72%
(stock code: 1019) money lending business, proprietary
investment business, asset management
business, corporate finance advisory
services and securities dealing.
RERWERERAA([RE]) BURHENER GERK 8ERE
(RS - 1019) %ﬁ%&% BEEEEN MFRARRRS
858 E o
Heemin Capital Global Enhanced Yield Invest in low-risk investment grade bonds 7750 - 60927 61,097 10.41%
Bond Fund (“Heemin Bond Fund") (above BB- S&P credit rating) worldwide participating
to generate stable but more attractive shares
income than those offered by bond market
in the Greater China region.
Heemin Capital Global Enhanced Yield RERENERBRRERES (RELR 77508
Bond Fund ( Heemin Bond Fund ) (FE R ABB-H L UBR S AR 2 2885k
HEEHTRERE RARS NHMA
Other investments
b1/ 74
Universe International Financial Holdings Film distribution and exhibition, licensing 9,000,000 1.06% 6,464 8190 1.40%
Limited (“Universal Int1") and sub-licensing of film rights, properties
(stock code: 1046) and securities investment, money lending,
trade, wholesale and retail of optical,
watch and jewellery products, securities
brokerage and margin financing.
RTARSRIRARD BRI - Bl RBEEYRE
([ZFER]) MERERRE HE K2 Bk
(RIS - 1046) IHRERES  PARFERE
BRI RARRE
Other listed shares* - - - 3017 2436 041%
Ao Lfkir
Grand total for financial assets at FVTPL 315,407 152,223 25.94%

BRAVETARENERAR ST

R Other listed shares mainly represented the Group’s investment in 4
companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

o A ETRNEZSEAX
BB R L FI([BESHT ) ER LTI 2 AR E

EERAFRD EEEH AR S



During the Year, the Group recorded a loss on the change
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
HK$210.58 million. Such loss consists of net unrealised loss
of approximately HK$214.26 million and realised gain of
approximately HK$3.68 million on fair value changes in financial
assets at FVTPL as detailed below.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

RAFEER  AEEESRATFEFABEZNEH
BEMNRN T EESEE#210,580,0008 7T © A BEE
BEREATFEFABRENEREEN R FEZ SN
RNEIEERIFEEL 214,260,000/ T R E#RKHL
3,680,000/ 7T ©

Unrealised

Realised fair value

fair value gain gain/(loss)

Description of investments (stock code) A (B K5R) for the Year for the Year

TEFERER

TEECENR NFEE

DFEERS k& (BR)

HK$'000 HK$'000

T TFET

Convoy (1019) FE7(1019) - (167,999)
Interactive Entertainment China Cultural BIRFE LRI ERR AR

Technology Investments Limited ([ B4R E 1)(8081)

(*IE China”) (8081) - (48,360)
Universal Int’l (1046) EFEFR(1046) 3,543 1,726
Heemin Bond Fund Heemin Bond Fund - 170
Other listed shares* HAth ki~ 139 201
Grand total FE 3,682 (214,262)

*

Other listed shares mainly represented the Group’s other held-or-trading
securities investments which are listed on the Main Board or the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Y HMETREEBENEEAMIFIERENESRE
(REEBRATERZKBIFER LT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmR T

Available-for-sale investments AR ERE
The Group also held significant investments under available-for-sale 7201746 A30H » AEE IR AHEEREETHFE
investments as at 30 June 2017 as below: BEAKREWNT -
Percentage Percentage to
held to the the Group's
total issued audited
share capital Carrying total assets
of the company/ [nvestment amount asat
Number of investment cost/cost of as at 30 June 2017
Description of investment Principal businesses shares held (approximately) acquisition 30 June 2017 (approximately)
(k5%
EARBRT R2017%
B /4% 6A30RH
i #0175 it 11
RRESML BEds/ 6A30H WA
REmt FERE Frs A (##) KiRE I (##)
HK$ 000 HK8 000
FHr T
Significant investments
7. 74
GET Holdings Limited (“GET") Research, develop and distribute software, 47,868 235 10.77% 111,768 21,764 4.73%
(stock code: 8100) applications and toolbar advertisement;
invest in securities; money lending;
provide corporate management solutions
and [T contract services.
BHERERAR(ES)) HERAERE BRI RIARES
(AR - 8100) BARE  RE REAKERERTR
REARHEH -
Unlisted securities of a company incorporated ~ Dealing in securities, securities advisory, - - 30,831 38,715 6.60%
outside Hong Kong corporate finance advisory, asset
management and wealth management
services and money lending in
Hong Kong.
—RRERRNMIL RF2 RERIEEREE  Z5ER 05R
PN BER  ZEERRMERERY
NREE
Other investments
b-7ii74
Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited Insurance group offering motor insurance 5,000,000 0.96% 11,593 7,750 1.32%
(stock code: 6161) in Hong Kong,
RNFR(ER)ERAR(ROAR -6161)  RERREBRBORREE
Unlisted investment fund outside Hong Kong - - - 10,000 9,054 1.54%
BARMEITRERS
(Grand tofal for the available-for-sale investments 164,192 83,283 14.19%

RBERAEE
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Performance and future prospects of the Company’s significant investments
(1) Convoy

As disclosed in the annual report of Convoy for the year ended
31 December 2016 (“Convoy Annual Report”), it recorded
an audited loss attributable to its owners of approximately
HK$95.52 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.
With regards to the future prospects of Convoy based on
published information, the Directors noted the view of the
board of directors of Convoy, as disclosed in the Convoy
Annual Report, developing diversified financial services and
building an all rounded financial services platform were still the
primary objectives of the group. Convoy would also (i) review
the market situation and focus on developing businesses that
were popular among clients, like asset management, MPF and
various general insurance services; (ii) actively research and
develop the FinTech sector to embrace a new development in
the financial service industry along with the rapid development
of information technology and increasing popularity of its
applications in various fields; and (iii) continue to cultivate its
excellent consultancy team, implement a comprehensive reform
on the training course of the frontline consultants and optimise
the long standing remuneration system with an objective to
sharpen its competitive edge of talents recruitment and further

strengthen its sales channels.

Subsequent to the reporting period, from 11 August 2017 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Group disposed of an
aggregate of 281,096,000 shares of Convoy on market at the
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$55,031,000.
Please refer to details set out in note 49 to the consolidated

financial statements of this annual report.
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@)

3)

Heemin Bond Fund

In March 2017, the Group subscribed for 7,750 participating
shares of Heemin Bond Fund with a subscription amount of
US$7.75 million.

Subsequent to the reporting period, in June and July 2017,
the Group served notice to redeem its interests in Heemin
Bond Fund respectively in the amount of US$3,875,000
and US$3,975,540, both at the redemption price of
US$1,021.36 per participating share. Details of the investment
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated
22 March 2017. Details of the redemptions are set out in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report, and announcement of the Company dated 28 July 2017.

GET

As disclosed in the interim report of GET for the six months
ended 30 June 2017 (“GET Interim Report”), it recorded an
unaudited profit attributable to its owners of approximately
HK$2.98 million for the six months ended 30 June 2017. With
regards to the future prospects of GET based on published
information, the Directors noted that, as disclosed in the GET
Interim Report, GET’s principal source of revenue was its
software business. GET will continue to closely monitor the
[.T. trend and upgrade its existing products and enhance its
product mix. On the other hand, GET will emphasise on market
diversification in the second half of 2017 and continue its sales

in the US, Europe and Asia markets.

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 24 August 2017,
the Group disposed of 9,000,000 shares (“GET Shares”) of
GET on market at the consideration of HK$4,770,600. On
25 August 2017, the Group further disposed of an aggregate
of 17,010,000 GET Shares on market at the consideration of
HK$8,604,900. Please refer to details set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report, and the
announcement of the Company dated 25 August 2017.

2)

3)
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R2017F3 A + ANEBEFRIEHeemin Bond Fund&y
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(4) Unlisted securities of a company incorporated outside Hong

Kong

In November 2016, the Group has invested in unlisted securities
of a company (“Investee”) incorporated outside Hong Kong by
way of subscription of new shares at the subscription amount
of HK$28.46 million. In January 2017, the Group has further
subscribed 13 rights shares of the Investee on a 1-for-1 basis
at the subscription amount of approximately HK$2.37 million.
The Directors considered that both subscriptions offer a good
opportunity for the Group to expand its investment portfolio and
its business presence into the financial industry. The financial
results of the Investee and its subsidiaries (“Investee Group”)
for the six months ended 30 June 2017 recorded an unaudited
profit after tax of approximately HK$28.95 million. The Group
is optimistic on the growth of the businesses of the Investee
Group. Based on the available information provided from the
management of the Investee Group, the Investee Group is
planning to implement new strategies including but not limited
to strengthen its internal control system. It is expected that a
foreseeable growth of the businesses of securities advisory and

corporate finance advisory would be achieved in the coming

years.
Other Investments
(i) Early Education

With regard to the ban on “doubly non-permanent resident
babies” in 2012, number of Shenzhen-Hong Kong
cross-boundary students who were born and studied in Hong
Kong dropped significantly. Their contribution to early education
was unsatisfactory compared with local parents who strongly
believe in education in early developmental years. Full Profit
Hong Kong Development Limited and its subsidiary, being joint
ventures of the Group, are specialized in providing management
and consultancy services in early education. During the Year,
the Group maintained a stable development in the business
despite a drop in revenue and profit. In the coming year, the
Group will continue to further scale up its cooperation with joint
venture partner and other pre-schools or kindergartens with
expertise to enhance its competitiveness and to increase the
Group’s profit.

4)
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(ir)

(i)

IE China

On 9 September 2016, the Group purchased 492,576,511
ordinary shares of IE China at the consideration of
HK$32,510,050 under a sale and purchase agreement
signed between the purchaser (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) and an independent third party vendor.
After completion of the acquisition, the Group, through the
purchaser, holds an aggregate of 1,422,572,191 ordinary
shares of IE China, representing approximately 28.88% of
the total issued share capital of IE China as at the date of
the acquisition, and IE China has become an associate of
the Company. Based on the unaudited interim results of
IE China, it recorded a loss attributable to its shareholders of
approximately HK$207.77 million for the six months ended
30 June 2017. As IE China is a significant and a valuable
investment, the management consider that |IE China has
ample growth potential because of its diversified and solid
business portfolio and IE China group’s business plans for its
hospitality services in Australia and provision of IT services
business. The Group will work closely with IE China to
explore appropriate business cooperation and opportunities
to enhance return to the Group. During the Year, the Group
recorded loss in respect of interest in IE China of approximately
HK$117.12 million.

Continuing and Tertiary Education

As disclosed in the interim report of the Company for the six
months ended 31 December 2016, the Group had disposed
of its entire interest in Seasoned Leader Limited (together with
its subsidiaries) on 30 December 2016 to an independent
third party at the consideration of HK$53 million to be settled
by the purchaser’s delivery of a promissory note issued by the
purchaser to the vendor. Details of the disposal were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 2 January 2017.
Upon completion of the disposal, the Group has ceased its

investments in continuing and tertiary education.

(if)

(i)
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Money Lending Business

China Rich Finance Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, is a holder of money lender’s license under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the HK Laws). The Group has
adopted money lending policies and procedures for handling and/
or monitoring the money lending business in compliance with the
Money Lenders Ordinance.

During the Year, the Group recorded loan interest income of
approximately HK$2.98 million (2016: approximately HK$3.46
million) from granting loans to both corporate and individual clients,
representing a relatively stable development of the money lending
segment. The outstanding principal amount of loan receivables
as at 30 June 2017 was approximately HK$26.08 million (2016:
approximately HK$40.09 million). During the Year, the Group did not
record any doubtful or bad debt in its money lending activities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$153.86 million, representing a decrease of approximately
18.93% as compared with approximately HK$189.78 million
recorded last year. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease
in revenue from secondary tutoring services to approximately
HK$108.41 million, representing a decrease of approximately
19.38% as compared to approximately HK$134.48 million recorded
last year. In addition, there were drops in revenue from (i) secondary
day school education to approximately HK$1.15 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 42.61% as compared to the previous
year; and (i) English language training and test preparation courses
to approximately HK$22.44 million, representing a slight decrease
of approximately 4.94% as compared to approximately HK$23.61

million recorded last year.

On the other hand, revenue from primary tutoring services, skill
courses and test preparation courses (including franchising income)
was approximately HK$17.44 million, representing an increase of
approximately 6.88% as compared to approximately HK$16.31
million recorded last year. In addition, the Group recorded rental
income of approximately HK$1.44 million (2016: approximately
HK$0.77 million) during the Year from investment properties.
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During the Year, the Group recorded loan interest income from
the money lending business of approximately HK$2.98 million
(2016: approximately HK$3.46 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 13.96% as compared to last year. Due to the disposal
of relevant subsidiaries, no revenue of technical consultation,
management and software licensing services and advertising income
was recorded during the Year.

Other income, gains and losses

For the Year, the Group’s other income, gains and losses recorded
net gain of approximately HK$6.15 million (2016: net gain of
approximately HK$12.21 million). Such decrease was due to
the combined effect of, among other things, (i) the decrease in
supporting services income by approximately HK$12.36 million and
gain on disposal of subsidiaries by approximately HK$1.18 million; (ii)
interest income on promissory note of approximately HK$2.58 million
and gain on disposal of associates of approximately HK$2.21 million
were recorded during the Year; and (iii) no change in fair value loss
of other financial assets were recorded for the Year.

Staff costs

The Group’s staff costs slightly decreased by approximately HK$0.22
million or approximately 0.38% compared with the last financial
year. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the net effect of (i)
the equity-settled share-based payments to Directors and employees
of approximately HK$10.65 million recorded during the Year; and
(i) the decrease in other staff salaries and other related expenses
by approximately HK$10.99 million compared with the last financial

year.

Tutor contractor fee

The Group’s tutor contractor fee decreased by approximately
HK$12.19 million or approximately 21.77% compared with the last
financial year. Such decrease was in line with the decline in revenue
derived from secondary tutoring services.
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Operating lease payments

The Group’s operating lease payments decreased by approximately
HK$7.23 million or approximately 16.05% compared with the
previous year. Such decrease was due to the adjustment in monthly
rental payment upon signing of certain new tenancy contracts after
tenancy expiry and non-renewal of certain expired lease agreements
during the Year.

Marketing expenses

The Group’s marketing expenses decreased by approximately
HK$6 million or approximately 27.52% compared with last year.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in media
placement and various marketing activities during the Year.

Other operating expenses

The Group’s other operating expenses decreased by approximately
HK$10.65 million or approximately 20.35% compared with the
previous year. Such decrease was due to the decrease in various
operating expenses, in which the operating expenses of overseas
travelling, legal and professional fees and building management fees
decreased by approximately HK$5.11 million in total during the Year.

Finance costs

The Group incurred finance costs of approximately HK$16.60 million
from loan notes and bank and other borrowings during the Year (2016:
approximately HK$9.15 million).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$333.33 million (2016: loss of approximately
HK$144.72 million). Such loss was mainly attributable to (i) the
loss arising on change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL of
approximately HK$210.58 million; and (ii) the loss in respect of
interest in an associate, |IE China, of approximately HK$117.12
million. Loss per share was HK$0.64 for the Year (2016: HK$0.34).
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OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will consolidate its existing business
sectors in Hong Kong through leveraging on its top notched brand,
high calibre teaching quality, infrastructure upgrade and system
revamp, experienced management team and economies of scales.
The Group plans to devote great efforts and reasonable resources
into secondary tutoring services by offering classes and subjects at
different levels to attract more recurring and new students in order to
boost the number of enrollment. Despite the drop in the number of
DSE candidates, the Group will spare no efforts in working at its best
for profession, such as diversify the standardised test preparation
courses and optimise tailor made teaching contents. One of the
tactics to maximise learning efficiency is the signature intelligent
e-learning system, “IMODE”. Through assessing students’ learning
progress, iIMODE will provide targeted exam trainings and practices
to better equip our students to conquer forthcoming challenges and
achieve excellent grades in DSE. The Group will also diversify its
business to increase the Group’s flexibility in its financial treasury
management.

Apart from continuing the proven business model based on years
of experience in providing local tutoring services, the Group’s plan
to re-enter the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) will be one of
the Group’s concerns. Owing to the limitless opportunities from the
two-child policy and strategic educational reform under the 13th
Five-Year Plan, the Group foresees a high growth potential in the
PRC market. The Group is keen to explore collaboration opportunities
with the PRC educators with relevant experience. To create long-term
value and strive for the best interests of the shareholders, the Group
will continue to employ a prudent and stable investment strategy in
order to expand its business footprint in the PRC.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
system to manage its short, medium and long-term funding and to
satisfy its liquidity management requirements.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group’s total balance of cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$16.28 million (30 June
2016: approximately HK$93.37 million), of which 96.60% is held in
Hong Kong dollars and 3.40% is held in Renminbi. As at 30 June
2017, the Group had bank borrowings of HK$37.40 million bearing
variable interest rate at HIBOR plus 1.5% and 2.3% per annum
(30 June 2016: HK$14.80 million bearing variable interest rate at
HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum). Current ratio (defined as total current
assets divided by total current liabilities) was 1.96 times (30 June
2016: 2.77 times).

As at 30 June 2017, the gearing ratio of the Group was 37.79%
(30 June 2016: 23.51%). Gearing ratio is total debts divided by the
sum of total equity and total debts. Total debts refer to total liabilities
minus the sum of tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and dividend
payable (if any).

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Issue of shares during the Year

On 30 September 2016, the Company and a placing agent
entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent, on a best
effort basis, up to 91,256,000 placing shares at a price of HK$0.663
per placing share with the aggregate nominal value of HK$4,562,800
under a general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 November 2015, to not
less than six placees, who were individuals, corporate, institutional
or other investors and who and whose ultimate beneficial owners
were independent third parties. The closing price of the Shares on
30 September 2016 was HK$0.780. The placing was completed on
25 October 2016 and the net proceeds (representing net issue price
of approximately HK$0.638 per placing share) were approximately
HK$58.25 million, which were intended to be used as general
working capital of the Group and/or for financing the Group’s future
investment opportunities (including but not limited to property
investment and/or securities investment). The net proceeds were
fully utilised during the Year as intended, in which approximately
HK$44.48 million were used for investment in securities (listed and
unlisted) and approximately HK$13.77 million were used as working
capital of the Group. The Directors were of the view that the placing
could strengthen the financial position of the Group and provide
working capital to the Group to meet any future development and
obligations, and represented good opportunities to broaden the
shareholders’ base and the capital base of the Company. Hence,
the Directors considered that the Placing was in the interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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EEENWmR T

Previous fund raising activity

During the Year, the Company further utilised the net proceeds from
the rights issue completed on 7 August 2015. Updates on the actual
use of proceeds during the Year are as follows:

Amount of unutilised net
proceeds as at 30 June 2016
(approximate)

#20165E6 A30AZMKEA
RSB (BK)

ARBRES

RAFEER - AREE—TBHN2015F8A7H MK
ZHBEFAEREER  RAFEMGHREERAE &
FERT

Intended/change of use of proceeds

FRRERERE HEEH

Actual use as at 30 June 2017

"20175E6A30BZERAE

HK$12.14 million (Note)
12,140,000/ 7T (#15#)

HK$6 million
6,000,000/ 7T

HK$26.04 million
26,040,000/ 7T

payment of interest and/or
repayment of principal of the loan
notes issued by the Company
on 17 December 2015
(“Loan Notes”) (Note)
BAQAFR2015F12817R4
BT ERER(EREE])
IR B R SIEEARE (HaE)

payment of interest due under
the Loan Notes

SNERERBET 2 2IHH 8

general working capital of the Group
REBz—REEES

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

(i) HK$6 million has been used for payment of
interest due under the Loan Notes; and
#16,000,000/ 8 L E AEXHERERIE T 2
BIEAFIE R

(i) Approximately HK$6.14 million has not been
utilised.
#16,140,0008 T8 AR EVA o

Fully utilised as intended
iR TE RSB EE A

Fully utilised as intended below:
IR TEREREEANT

(i) approximately HK$6.04 million has been used
for the rental of four education centres in Hong
Kong, leasehold improvement for new premises
and purchase of additional equipment; and
#16,040,000/8 7T E AE R BB HE +
DZ®  FMERERERRNEREINGE
N4

(i) approximately HK$20 million has been used for
operating expenses including staff costs, rental
and marketing expenses.
#920,000,0008 TE AIEL 2R (BIEE T
BXAS ~ e RITISHERERX) °



Note: On 20 January 2017, the Company announced that, due to
reconsideration of the Group’s business plan and in order to increase
the Group’s flexibility in its financial and treasury management, the
unused proceeds of approximately HK$12.14 million (being HK$9.40
million originally allocated for property investment and HK$2.74 million
originally allocated for infrastructure upgrade and system revamp,
potential investments in companies engaging in online education
businesses, and development of information technology related
company) would be allocated for the payment of interest and/or
repayment of principal of the Loan Notes instead.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Group consistently employed a prudent treasury policy during
its development and generally financed its operations and business
development with internally generated resources and equity and/or
debt financing activities. The Group also adopted flexible and prudent
fiscal policies to effectively manage the Group’s assets and liabilities

and strengthen its financial position.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and as such the impact of foreign exchange
exposure of the Group was considered minimal. Hence, no hedging
or other arrangements to reduce the currency risk have been
implemented.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had a total of 196 employees
(30 June 2016: 268 employees). They receive competitive
remuneration packages that are constantly monitored with reference
to the market circumstances, with incentives such as discretionary
bonus based on the Group’s and individual performance. The Group
provides comprehensive benefits packages and career development
opportunities.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme, the primary
purpose of which is to motivate the eligible persons referred to in
the scheme, which include executive Directors and employees of
the Group, to optimise their future contributions to the Group and to
reward them for their efforts.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (30 June 2016: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2017, there were respective capital commitments
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounting to HK$9.75 million (30 June 2016:
approximately HK$12.04 million).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30 June 2017, investment properties of the Group, which was
classified as “Assets associated with disposal group classified as
held for sale” in the consolidated statement of financial position,
with carrying value of HK$151.50 million (30 June 2016: HK$29.10
million) was pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to

the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the Year, the Group had the following material acquisition and

disposals:

(i) On 30 June 2016, the Group through Infinity Domain
International Limited entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with South Right Limited (as purchaser) and Bradley
Maclean and Wang Lihe (as guarantors), both independent third
parties, to dispose of approximately 43% of the issued share
capital of Link Resources (Asia) Limited, an associate of the
Group, at a cash consideration of HK$7 million. The disposal
was completed on 27 July 2016. Details of the disposal were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 June
2016.

BKARR
R201746 30 » AEEHMEEXNHABE(20165F
6A308 : &) -

BERIE

7201746 A308 » BEIAVMERNERE P IETRE NEHE
B AERE & A EHE 59,750,00078 7T (20164E6 5308 : 49
12,040,000/ 7T) °

TEEFEEN

2017964308 » A& EREE A151,500,0007 7T
(201646 A30H : 29,100,000/8 7T ) IR & ¥ 2 (A 47
BHBIRRERS A BB AREHENLEEAEE
BOEECERR  UERESRTFAEEN—MET

aH °

MHE HEXREF2RM EHESF

RAFER » RABALEEAMBARMERE - b
EXBOERARRN LHES

EXUAER H &
RAREER - NEBEBTIEARERBE

(i) 7F72016F6H30H « AEBEFEBAFEBBFAERA
AIEFIEAMR AR (1EAE7T) KBradley Maclean
RESBWERBERA)(BMABYLE=1)FI
EEMEULERASEZBERRABIERA(E
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7,000,000/ 7T » HE&ER2016F7 A27 A%  H
ENFBRENARFBHA201696 308 H)
NG
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(i)

(ii)

(iv)

On 9 September 2016, the Group through Fastek Investments
Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Turbo
Pointer Limited, an independent third party, to further acquire
approximately 10% of the then total issued share capital of
IE China, at a cash consideration of approximately HK$32.51
million. The acquisition was completed on 9 September
2016. Immediately before the acquisition, the Group held
approximately 18.88% of the then total issued share capital
of IE China. Immediately after the acquisition, the Group
held an aggregate of approximately 28.88% of the then total
issued share capital of IE China, which become an associate
of the Group. Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 9 September 2016.

On 30 December 2016, the Group through Rosy Lane
Investments Limited (“Rosy Lane”) as vendor entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Mr. Poon Chun Yin (“Mr. Poon”)
as purchaser, an independent third party, to dispose of 47%
of the issued share capital of Seasoned Leader Limited, an
associate of the Group, at the consideration of HK$53 million,
which was settled by the promissory note issued by Mr. Poon
to Rosy Lane at completion. The disposal was completed
on 30 December 2016 and the Group ceased to hold any
interest in Seasoned Leader Limited. Details of the disposal
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
2 January 2017.

On 22 March 2017, the Group through Wise Action Limited
(“Wise Action”) entered into a subscription agreement with
Heemin Bond Fund to subscribe for 7,750 participating
shares in Heemin Bond Fund with a subscription amount
of US$7.75 million. On 27 June 2017 and 28 July 2017,
Wise Action served notice to redeem its interests in Heemin
Bond Fund respectively in the amount of US$3,875,000
and US$3,975,540, representing approximately 3,794 and
3,892 participating shares in Heemin Bond Fund, both at the
redemption price of US$1,021.36 per participating share.
Details of the subscription and the redemptions were set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 22 March 2017 and
28 July 2017.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Management Discussion and Analysis
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On 1 June 2017, the Group through Rosy Lane (as vendor)
and the Company (as guarantor) entered into a memorandum
of understanding with (among other parties) Keen Elite
Developments Limited (as purchaser), an independent third
party, to dispose of 60% of the issued share capital of Ultimate
Elite, which directly held 100% of the issued share capital of
Vision Smart Limited (“Vision Smart”) (together as “Ultimate
Elite Group”) at a cash consideration of HK$89,238,000 (subject
to adjustment). The conditional sale and purchase agreement
was entered amongst the parties on 31 July 2017. Details of the
disposal were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 1 June 2017, 17 July 2017, 31 July 2017 and 28 August
2017. Completion of the disposal took place on 28 August 2017
and the Group has ceased to hold any interest in the Ultimate
Elite Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material

acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

As at 30 June 2017, the Group did not have any other plans for

material investment or capital assets save as disclosed in this annual

report.

(v)

B Lt PR EEE SN
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, aged 67, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board. Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 August 2012 before his redesignation
as an executive Director and appointment as the chairman of the
Board on 8 March 2013. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree
and a master degree in Education from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in October 1992 and December 1996 respectively. He
was the headmaster of Kei Sau Primary School from 1989 to 1990,
the headmaster of Kei Tze Primary School from 1990 to 1993, the
headmaster of Kei Wai Primary School from 1993 to 1995 and the
headmaster of Heep Woh Primary School from 1995 to 2010. He
served as a board member in the centralised board of manager for
feeder schools of The Hong Kong Council of the Church of Christ in
China for approximately 16 years. He was also a committee member
of the Basic Law Promotion Steering Committee of the Constitutional
and Mainland Affairs Bureau for the period from 2004 to 2009.

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, aged 47, is an executive Director, the
vice chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the Group.
Mr. Lee is an author of a series of mathematics reference books and
the consultant editor of mathematics reference book. Mr. Lee was
a columnist in the education section of Sing Tao Daily from 2007
to 2011, commenting on the mathematics teaching methodology
and current education issues. His experience spans such diverse
areas as education, mathematics education research, chain store
management, marketing strategy and computer aided management
systems. Mr. Lee graduated from The University of Hong Kong, with
a Bachelor of Science degree with honors in Applied Mathematics
in 1992 and obtained a Master of Science degree with Dean’s List
honors in Mathematics Education from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 2012. Mr. Lee is currently an executive director of
Hong Kong Shatin Industries and Commerce Association Limited,
the chairman of the executive committee of Salesian English School
Foundation Limited, a director of Egive for You Charity Foundation, a
director of Hong Kong WuYi Youth Association, an executive council
member of Hong Kong New Youth Energy Think Tank, a honorary
vice president of Hong Kong Federation of Guangzhou Associations
Limited and a member of Lions Club of Tsuen Wan.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
EERGNEEERE

Ms. Wu Mei Chu, aged 53, is an executive Director. Ms. Wu
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
21 December 2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director
on 18 June 2013. Ms. Wu graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a bachelor degree in Arts with honors in 1987. Ms. Wu is
experienced in business management and has been holding various
management positions in a number of multinational corporations
across banking and finance, telecommunications and satellite
communications business. Ms. Wu has over 20 years of experience
in the field of marketing and business development in the Greater
China and Asia Pacific region. Ms. Wu is also the executive director
of Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments
Limited (stock code: 8081), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”), since 1 October 2016.

MRHKZL 535 RITES - A LN2012%F
12R21BEZERBILIFANITEEF LN 2013F6 A
IBHBERMITESE - AL EIRINVTFEEREEX
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ERRERTRERH  ERAMEBARSESE - ALK
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ong Chi King, aged 44, was appointed as an independent

non-executive Director on 28 February 2014. Mr. Ong received a
bachelor degree in business administration from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a master degree in
corporate finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Ong has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting, finance and company secretarial fields and held senior
positions in finance and company secretarial departments in various
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong was appointed as
an executive director of Deson Construction International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8268), a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, with effect from 21 December 2015. He is also
an independent non-executive director of China Environmental
Resources Group Limited (stock code: 1130), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and Larry Jewelry International
Company Limited (stock code: 8351), a company listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong was the independent non-executive
director of Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324) and Wan Kei Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1718), which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from January 2012 to March 2017 and
June 2015 to March 2017 respectively and KSL Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8170), King Force Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
8315) and WLS Holdings Limited (stock code: 8021), which are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, from November 2014 to June
2016, from July 2014 to September 2016 and April 2015 to March
2017 respectively. He was a director of Fitness Concept International
Holdings Limited prior to its dissolution. The said company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and was dissolved on 30 June

2005 by striking off due to cessation of business.

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Lee Shu Fai, aged 72, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 18 June 2013. Mr. Lee obtained a
bachelor degree in Social Science from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in October 1972. He has also obtained from The
University of Hong Kong a Certificate in Education in June 1977, an
Advanced Diploma in Education in June 1984 and a master degree
awarded with distinction in Education in November 1985. Mr. Lee
has more than 30 years of experience in the field of education and
has extensive administrative experience. He was the headmaster
of Lai Chack Middle School from 1987 to 2005 until his retirement.
Mr. Lee has a strong commitment to the community and has been
particularly involved in the education field which continues after his
retirement. He was a member of the Court of the Hong Kong Baptist
University in 2010 and 2011 and has been the supervisor of Baptist
Lui Ming Choi Primary School since 2007. He is also the manager of

various primary and secondary schools.

Mr. Pun Kwok Shan, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 26 November 2014. Mr. Pun obtained a
bachelor degree in history from ZErgEIEI A2 (South China Normal
University) in 1984, a Master of Business Administration degree
from University of South Australia in 2002 and a doctorate degree in
enterprise management from & A2 (Huagiao University) in 2013.
Mr. Pun has 4 years of experience in the education field working in
the history department of South China Normal University. Mr. Pun
has a strong commitment to the community and has been actively
participating in the public administration affairs. He is currently a
District Council member of the Shatin District Council.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chau Kai Man, aged 61, has joined the group as Business
Development Director since January 2013 and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chau has over 29 years of
experience in the field of sales, marketing and business development
and around 8 years of experience in accounting and company
secretarial matters. Mr. Chau was appointed as an executive director
of Hanergy Solar Group Limited (formerly known as RBI Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 566), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange in July 2007 and appointed as chairman of
the same company in January 2009. Mr. Chau resigned from both
positions in August 2010. Mr. Chau was the vice chairman and an
executive director of RBI Industries Holdings Ltd from September
2010 to December 2012.

Ms. Cheung Po King, aged 37, joined the group in February
2013. She is the financial controller and the company secretary of
the Company. Ms. Cheung holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration (with honours) in Accountancy from Lingnan
University and a master of science degree in Finance from the City
University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. Cheung has over 12 years of experience in the field of accounting
and financial management and previously worked in certain unlisted

and listed groups.
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Report of the Directors

ESEWE

The directors (“Directors”) of Hong Kong Education (Int'l)
Investments Limited (“Company”) present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2017 (“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries as of 30 June
2017 are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and the
material factors underlying its financial performance can be found
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. These discussions

form part of this report of the Directors.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties related to the business of the

Group are as below:

Sourcing risk

The Group depends on its tutors to provide tutoring services to its
students who look for quality test-taking skills, unique complementary
teaching methods and stable tutor-student relationship. The service
contracts of the Group’s tutors with the Group may not be renewed
upon expiry. The business may be adversely affected if the Group
is unable to recruit other experienced tutors or retain the tutors to
support the tutoring services. The Group will keep searching quality
tutors to join us and will engage new tutors in order to reduce its
concentration of revenue generated from our existing tutors who had
received the highest tutor contractor fees.
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Business interruption risk

The Group rents education centres for its business to provide tutoring
services to students. Renewal of leases of education centres at
reasonable price is important for stable development of the business.
The leases may not be renewed upon expiry and relocation of
education centres may be needed. The business may be adversely
affected if the Group is unable to maintain the existing education
centres or look for a suitable location for new education centres. The
Group will renew such leases or licences situated in prime locations
in a timely manner before its expiration and maintain an updated
portfolio of potential premises as back up options in order to minimise
the adverse effect on business re-location.

Competitor risk

The industry in which the Group operates is in fierce competition.
Decrease in the number of students and increase of small-scale
tutoring centres in the market have deteriorated the market
competition. The Group also faces significant competition in major
programmes offered and geographical locations of its competitors. If
the Group fails to retain and attract students, its market share may
drop and the profitability may be adversely affected. The Group will
enhance its competitive advantage through maintaining a high-quality
teaching team and a good brand image continuously in order to keep
and further increase its market share.

Infringement risk

Protection of intellectual property rights is of great significance in
society and to the Group’s businesses. Generally, the laws and
regulations affecting the Group include the Trade Marks Ordinance
(Chapter 559 of the HK Laws (“Trade Marks Ordinance”)) and
Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the HK Laws (“Copyright
Ordinance”)). Violation of such laws and regulations may expose
the Group to litigation risks, which will adversely affect the financial
position as well as the brand image of the Group. The Group will stay
alert to the relevant legal issues and update its internal policies when
necessary to avoid any breach of the regulatory requirements.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies
of the Group are shown in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to long term environmental sustainability.
We strive to encourage higher environmental protection awareness
at our headquarters and education centres by saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of materials. The Group also commits to
the principle and practice of recycling and reduction. The Group
implements green office practices such as encouraging the use of
recycled paper for printing and copying, double-sided printing and
copying, reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings,

air-conditioning and electrical appliances.

The Group will continually review its green practices to integrate
environmental, health and safety management and compliance
considerations into operational processes. The Group also promotes
green awareness amongst and maintains dialogue with employees
and business partners. The Group is determined to improve
environmental performance of the daily business operations towards
establishing a sustainable environment.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and has taken efforts to minimise the risk of
non-compliance with such requirements which may otherwise lead
to adverse impact on business operation and financial position of the
Group. The Group, which has on-going review on the newly enacted
laws and regulations and has established various management
systems and measures such as internal control procedures and staff
training, constantly monitored the operation of its business to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

At the corporate level, the Group has complied with the requirements
under the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the HK
Laws (“SFQO”)), among others, disclosure of information, corporate
governance and Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”).
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On the operational level, the Group has complied with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the HK Laws) and the
guidelines recommended by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner
for Personal Data when collecting and processing data from students.
The Group has also paid attention to the Copyright Ordinance when
preparing and delivering teaching materials. Besides, the Group
is committed to complying with the Education Ordinance (Chapter
279 of the HK Laws) in application of applicable certificates for
running education centres and the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
(Chapter 362 of the HK Laws) in the preparation and publication of

advertisements.

On the human resources level, the Group has abided by the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the HK Laws), Minimum
Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the HK Laws), Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the HK Laws), equal
opportunities legislations (including Sex Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 480 of the HK Laws), Disability Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 487 of the HK Laws), Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 527 of the HK Laws) and Race Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 602 of the HK Laws)) and the legislations
applicable to occupational safety of employees in respect of
recruitment or daily works to safeguard the interests and benefits
of the Group’s employees. Details of the Group’s compliance with
relevant laws and regulations are set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report which is set out on pages 68 to 79 of this

annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied
with relevant laws and regulations during the Year. The Group is
not aware of any material breach or non-compliance with the laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and

operations of the Group.
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Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

(a) Employees
The Group believes that employees are valuable assets. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of the employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Group is
also passionately committed to developing the staff and provides
the employees with rewarding career paths and people-friendly

working environment.

(b) Customers
The Group strives to achieve corporate sustainability in
providing quality services to our students. To ensure continuous
improvement of the quality of services, the Group regularly
reviews its teaching material in order to meet the students’
demand and the market trend. The Group believes that
maintaining good relationship with students can help strengthen
its market competitiveness in the industry. During the Year, the
Group sponsored various marketing and charity events to build

up good relationship with our students.

(c) Suppliers
The Group understands the importance to work closely with our
suppliers (who are mainly our tutors) to ensure the sustainability
of our business. The Group has established long standing
relationships with our suppliers and to ensure they share our

commitment to quality and ethics.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s operation for the Year by business
activities is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements
and the paragraphs headed “Business Review” under the section of

“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 87 to 88 of this annual report.

The board of the Company (“Board”) does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the Year (2016: nil).
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 228 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted
to HK$437,870 (2016: HK$192,900).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movement in the investment properties of the Group are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (“Bye-laws”) or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 91 of this annual report and the statement of
financial position of the Company in note 48 to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves available for distribution of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Income from the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
contributed to less than 30% of the Group’s total income during the
Year.

During the Year, tutor contractor fee paid/payable to the Group’s
top five tutors, who entered into service contracts with the Group,
accounted for 62.10% of the Group’s total tutor contractor fee for the
Year (2016: 64.93%), and tutor contractor fee paid/payable to the
Group’s topmost tutor accounted for 23.87% of the Group’s total tutor
contractor fee for the Year (2016: 23.60%). None of the Directors,
their close associates as well as substantial Shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) was anyone out of such top five tutors (2016:

none).

Contracts with the other five largest suppliers of the Group, excluding
the independent tutors, combined by values which are not of a
capital nature, contributed to less than 30% of the total value of

supplies purchased by the Group during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report

are as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious
(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wu Mei Chu

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Ong Chi King

Mr. Lee Shu Fai

Mr. Pun Kwok Shan
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Pursuant to Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (“Annual General Meeting”), one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years and the retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Mr. Wong Yuk Tong and
Mr. Pun Kwok Shan will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has received
from each of the existing independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of independence. Based on these confirmations,
the Company considers that each of such Directors is independent
from the Group during their respective tenures as an independent

non-executive Director.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

The Directors’ fees and other emoluments shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meetings or determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into either a service contract or a

letter of appointment with the Company as follows.

Name

]

Contract type
aimE

EENRBESH

Directorship term

EEEY

BREBREEARFRI LA TRBE QO EERM

Prior notice of termination

RIEZEEBH

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong

TEREE

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

Ms. Wu Mei Chu

[ESE Yo

Mr. Ong Chi King

FrEsth

Mr. Lee Shu Fai

FRIERE

Mr. Pun Kwok Shan

BB E

Service contract

RIS A 4

Service contract

RIS A 4

Service contract

Letter of appointment

LR

Letter of appointment

LR

Letter of appointment

LR

Initial term of three years commenced on
8 March 2016 and continue thereafter

B2016F3 A8H A VT REI=F K&
ME&BEE

Initial term of three years commenced
on 1 September 2016 and continue
thereafter

B20165F9A 1 BT HIZ RH=F K
REIERIE

Initial term of three years commenced on
18 June 2016 and continue thereafter

B2016F6 A18H IS A =F
RREIEBE

Fixed term of three years commenced on
28 February 2017
82017452 A28 A st EE R A=

Fixed term of three years commenced on
18 June 2016
B2016%F6 418 T EEHRA=F

Fixed term of three years commenced on
26 November 2014
B2014411 A26 AT EFE R H=F
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Two-month notice in writing

W 1E A & m R A

Six-month notice in writing

Two-month notice in writing

1 A & T E A

Two-month notice in writing



These appointments are subject to directors’ retirement from office
and retirement by rotation under the Bye-laws. None of the Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
has entered into a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of

the Group are set out on page 29 to page 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number
of transactions with entities in which an executive Director has
substantial shareholding. On 30 April 2016, Mr. Lee Wai Lok,
Ignatious (“Mr. Lee"), an executive Director and the sole shareholder
of Sense Publishing Company Limited (“Sense Publishing”), and
Sense Publishing entered into a service contract with the Group,
pursuant to which Sense Publishing agreed to (i) procure Mr. Lee
to provide tutoring services to students of the Group; and (ii) grant a
sole, exclusive and non-transferable licence to the Group to use and
reproduce the teaching materials prepared by Mr. Lee for the tutorial
courses organised by the Group for secondary school students and
conducted by teaching assistants with the said teaching materials
for a three years term commenced on 1 July 2016 and expiring on
30 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance, to which the Company, any of its controlling entities
or its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, directly or

indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2017, the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had the following interests in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the registers
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO; or notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:

Long positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

EEREETHRAEREG - HRAKGRR
SHERRKE

#201746 A30F - EEHAATEEITRABRAR
AR AR R E (25 2 B 4 R 0 EXVED) 0
19 BB KBS A T HIAR R 5 T A 5 e
F362VER AR AT B RS  RELE
TR AH 82 10T B AV IR 2 <7 BB A& A 2 7 RS
M

REQTROHEARGHEF R

Approximate %

Number of of shareholding
shares of the of the Company
Name of Director Capacity Nature of interest Company held (Note 1)
EE N TF)ERER
iS4 aE L E S50
EEgR E 40 i k=331 BinE E (K15E1)
Mr. Lee Beneficial owner Personal interest 5,072,000 0.93%
(Note 2)
oA BEHBEAA BV (Kizt2)
Interest in a controlled Corporate interest 37,472,960 6.84%
corporation (Note 3)
REEHER SR NEIER (K1523)
Ms. Wu Mei Chu Beneficial owner Personal interest 5.072,000 0.93%
(Note 2)
iES 3 Gn BB A EARER (K1at2)

Notes:

1. Asat 30 June 2017, there was an aggregate of 547,570,880 shares of
HK$0.05 each of the Company (“Shares”) in issue.

2. The number of shares represented the interests in the underlying
Shares, in respect of the share options granted by the Company, the
details of which are set out in the section titled “Share Option Scheme”
on page 203 to 206 of this annual report.

Mt

1. H2017%6H308 - NAFIA A $£547,570,8800 FALH
{E0.05 T B 1T (TAXR 1)

2. ZERNBEBRKRARABMMRBREZBREB O R -
ERBREF BN AFRE2032206 8 2 [ fEIRE
Bl en -
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3. These 37,472,960 Shares are held by Beautiful Choice Investments
Limited (“Beautiful Choice”), which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lee.
Therefore, Mr. Lee is deemed to be interested in the 37,472,960
Shares held by Beautiful Choice by virtue of the SFO. Mr. Lee is the sole
director of Beautiful Choice.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as the share option scheme of the Company disclosed in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during
the Year and up to the date of this annual report, was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for
equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate,

nor had they exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2017, so far as was known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed or
taken to have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Approximate % of

Number of shareholding of the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity Shares held (Note 1)
EFELFRENBHESLL
TEREER BB 53 FrisRRin & B (B1:#1)
Mr. Lee Tsz Hang Beneficial owner 57,736,000 (L) 10.54%
(Note 2)
FFIELE EmEAA (Kizt2)
Mr. Deng Jiangiang Beneficial owner 56,049,600 (L) 10.24%
it bt ERERA
Beautiful Choice Beneficial owner 37,472,960 (L) 6.84%

BERBEAA
Notes:

1. The total number of 547,570,880 Shares in issue as at 30 June 2017
has been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

2. “L" denotes a long position.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, the Company has not
been notified by any other substantial shareholder or person (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into by the Company or subsisted during the Year.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

As set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 June
2011, according to the non-competition deed (“Non-competition
Deed”) entered between the Company and the then controlling
shareholders of the Company (“Controlling Shareholders”) and
certain non-competing covenantors (“Non-Competing Covenantors”)
on 7 June 2011, the non-compete period under the Non-Competition
Deed refers to the period during which:

(a) in the case of the Controlling Shareholders, any of the Controlling
Shareholders or his/its respective associate is a controlling
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of the Listing

Rules in force from time to time;

(b) in the case of the other Non-Competing Covenantors, any of
them is interested in 5% or more of the total issued share capital
of the Company from time to time or such Non-Competing
Covenantor is a Director or member of the senior management of

the Group; and

(c) the Shares are and remain listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee and Beautiful Choice have confirmed to the Company of his/
its compliance with the Non-competition Deed during their respective
applicable non-compete period. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed
that all of these non-competition undertakings have been complied
with by the relevant covenantors during their respective applicable
non-compete period. As at 30 June 2017, Mr. Lee remained as an

executive Director.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the HK Laws)) was
and is being in force for the benefit of the Directors.
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EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company has not
entered into any other equity-linked agreement (as defined in section
6 of the Companies (Director’'s Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of
the HK Laws)).

Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Scheme”) pursuant
to a resolution passed on 11 June 2011 so as to attract and retain
the best available personnel and to provide additional incentive to
the eligible participants under the Scheme. Pursuant to the Scheme,
the Board is authorised, at its absolute discretion and subject to the
terms of the Scheme, to grant options to subscribe for the shares of
the Company (in such form then existing and subject to adjustment)
to any employees (full-time or part-time), directors, consultants,
supplier(s), customer(s), joint venture partner(s), business
associate(s) and advisor(s) of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing on 4 July 2011
(“Effective Date”) and expiring on the business day immediately
preceding the 10th anniversary of the adoption date of the Scheme,
i.e. 10 June 2021.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 21 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer is made. The amount
payable for the grant of an option by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the offer is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a share
of the Company in respect of any particular option granted under the
Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and notified
to a participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant
of the option.
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The initial total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the Effective Date. The Company may at any
time refresh such limit, subject to the Shareholders’ approval and
issue of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that
the total number of shares of the Company which may be issue upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under all the share option schemes of the Company does not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The
total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company then in issue unless approved by the Shareholders in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof.

During the Year, the Company has granted 45,631,488 shares to
nine eligible persons under the Scheme.

Further details of the Scheme and details of movements in the share
options are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

SHARES ISSUED

During the Year, the Company had issued shares upon the
completion of placing of new shares on 25 October 2016, the details
of which are set out under the paragraph headed “Fund Raising
Activities” of the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of
this annual report. Such discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors.
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OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions for the Year set out in note 45 to
the consolidated financial statements, the tutor contractor fee to
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious and Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine and
the loan interest income from Progress Ever Limited constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the
Company has, where applicable, complied with the disclosure and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Group are set out in note 47 to

the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial

statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the principles in and adopted the code
provisions of the corporate governance code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules as its own corporate governance code
(“CG Code”). During the Year, the Company has complied with all
the provisions of the CG Code except for the deviation as disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report which is set out on pages 52 to 67

of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules during the Year and as at the date

of this annual report.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2017 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB")
who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of HLB as auditors of the Company is to be proposed

at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Yuk Tong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 September 2017
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The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Hong Kong
Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (“Company”) is committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within
a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence. The Board believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and the enhancement of

shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles in and adopted the code
provisions of the corporate governance code set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as
its own corporate governance code (“CG Code”). During the year
ended 30 June 2017 (“Year”), the Company has complied with all
the provisions of the CG Code except for the deviations as disclosed

below:

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the chairman of
the Board (“Chairman”) to hold meetings at least annually with
the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present. The Chairman,
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, during his tenure was himself executive Director

and as such, compliance with this code provision was infeasible.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries to the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed his/her
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code

throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
members, three of whom are executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Yuk Tong (Chairman), Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (Vice Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Wu Mei Chu.
The other three members are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Chi King, Mr. Lee Shu Fai and Mr. Pun Kwok Shan.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 29 to 33 of this annual

report.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance. The Board has established various Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and regulations,
and have acted in the interests of the Company and its shareholders

(“Shareholders”) as a whole at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflicts of interest), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. During the
Year, six Board meetings were held to perform the above mentioned
duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”), with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board. The Company has arranged

appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.
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Management Functions

While the Board is responsible for the overall strategic direction and
governance by considering and approving the Group’s strategies,
policies and business plan, the functions of implementing the
approved strategy and policies as well as managing the day-to-day
operations and administration are delegated to the executive
management under the chief executive officer’s leadership and
supervision. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed by the Board.

Appointments of the Directors are subject to retirement from office
and retirement by rotation under the bye-laws of the Company
(“Bye-laws”).

In accordance with the CG Code, any new Director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after the appointment, and according to the
Bye-laws, any new Director appointed as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Pursuant to the Bye-laws, at every annual general meeting
of the Company one-third of the Directors (or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not
less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A

retiring Director is eligible for re-election at that general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the Year, all of the
Directors received regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments of the Group’s business and the legislative and
regulatory environments in which the Group operates. All Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses. Effective from
September 2012, all Directors are required to provide the Company
with his or her training record on a yearly basis. During the Year,
each of Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, Ms. Wu Mei
Chu, Mr. Ong Chi King, Mr. Lee Shu Fai and Mr. Pun Kwok Shan
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by ways of attending training or reading materials relevant
to the Company’s business, amendments on Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the HK Laws) and the Listing Rules, or directors’

duties and responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company met the requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code which stipulates that the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

During the Year, the role of the Chairman was performed by
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, who provided leadership for the Board and
was responsible for chairing meetings, managing the operations of
the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues were
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. He was
also responsible for the strategic management of the Group and for
formulating the Group’s overall corporate direction and focus.

During the Year, the role of chief executive officer was performed
by Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, who was responsible for the overall
management and operations of the Group. He was also responsible
for running the businesses of the Group and implementing the
Group’s strategic plans and business goals.

To facilitate discussion of all key and appropriate issues by the
Board in a timely manner, the Chairman co-ordinated with the senior
management to provide adequate, complete and reliable information
to all Directors for consideration and review during the Year.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing at least one-third
of the Board under the CG Code with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. All independent non-executive Directors were appointed

for a specific term of three years.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has received
an annual written confirmation from each of the existing independent
non-executive Directors. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Po King was appointed as the Company Secretary
on 19 January 2015 and is responsible for facilitating the Board
processes, as well as communications among Board members, with
Shareholders and management. During the Year, Ms. Cheung has
taken not less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training to

update her skills and knowledge.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) of the Company comprises one
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Chi King (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, Mr. Lee Shu Fai and
Mr. Pun Kwok Shan.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Board on
the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such remuneration;
(i) determining the remuneration packages of all individual executive
Directors and the senior management and making recommendations
to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors; and
(iii) reviewing and approving compensation payable to the executive
Directors and the senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with the relevant
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

Director Remuneration Policy

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings to
review the remuneration policy and remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management and assessed the performance
of the executive Directors in accordance with the Remuneration
Committee’s written terms of reference. Emoluments payable to
the executive Directors are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings or determined by the Board with reference to such
executive Director’s duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group. No executive Director can be involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
by bands for the Year is set out below:

Remuneration bands
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AB

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the Year are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) of the Company comprises one executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong (chairman of the Nomination Committee),
Mr. Lee Shu Fai and Mr. Pun Kwok Shan.

The major functions of the Nomination Committee is to assist
the Board to identify suitable individuals qualified to become
Board members, assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, propose re-election of retiring Directors,
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (“Policy”) with effect from
1 September 2013. The Company continuously seeks to enhance
the effectiveness of its Board and to maintain the highest standards
of corporate governance and recognises and embraces the benefits
of diversity in the Board. A diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through engaging directors in possession of diversified skills,
regional and industry experience, educational background, race,
gender and other qualities, etc. The composition, experience and
balance of skills of the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that
the Board retains a core of members with longstanding knowledge
of the Group alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time
who bring fresh perspectives and diverse experience to the Board.
The Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity in the Board. The Board will
continue to review the Policy to ensure its continued effectiveness on
an annual basis.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board, and review
the arrangement for re-election of all the retiring Directors at the
forthcoming general meetings of the Company and the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) of the Company comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ong Chi King (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Lee Shu Fai and Mr. Pun Kwok Shan. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board by
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems of
the Group, overseeing the audit process and performing other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review
the annual and interim results of the Group and terms of reference of
the Audit Committee, and make recommendations to the Board and
the management in respect of the Group’s financial reporting and

internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed, with the management and
the Company’s auditors, the Group’s significant internal controls
and financial matters in accordance with the Audit Committee’s
written terms of reference and made relevant recommendations to
the Board. The Audit Committee’s review covered the audit scope
and findings, external auditor’s independence and performance, the
Group’s accounting principles and practices, the Listing Rules and
statutory compliance, connected transactions, internal controls, risk
management, financial reporting matters (including the interim and
annual financial reports for the Board’s approval) and the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function as well as their training

programmes and budget.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with written terms of reference equivalent to
Code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the corporate
governance policies of the Company were reviewed by the Board.
The Board also reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management, the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code, disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report and the policy on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee during the
Year are set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/held

HEBTERRE
Annual Special Audit Remuneration  Nomination
general general Board Committee Committee Committee
Director meeting meeting meetings meetings meetings meeting
= B&® E¥e® ERZR® FHMERE REERS
BE BEXE HRXE ik 2k ik 2k
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong ITEREE n! 01 5/6 N/AE N/ATNE A n!
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious ~ Z{E445% 4 11 11 56 NATEHR 12 NATER
Ms. Wu Mei Chu EiES S 171 11 56 NATER  NATER  NATER
Independent non-executive I JEMITES
Directors
Mr. Ong Chi King TFEEAE 0/1 01 4/6 2/2 2/2 N/ATNE A
Mr. Lee Shu Fai TREEE 1/1 /1 5/6 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Pun Kwok Shan ERILEAE 1/1 /1 4/6 2/2 1/2 1/1
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year. The
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of
the Group on a going concern basis, and have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently, with applicable
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and pursuant to the

relevant statutory requirements.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 80 to 86 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group which are
designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate risks,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, which covers financial, operational, compliance
procedural and risk management functions, and considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function. The Board concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems are adequate and effective.
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Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to monitor
the identified risks, the assessment and evaluation of risks, the
continuous updating of risk responses for the key risks identified to
ensure the effectiveness of the mitigation procedures are in place.
Furthermore, a risk matrix approach is adopted to determine the
significance of the risk after evaluation of the risk in accordance to
the likelihood and impact of the risk event identified.

While the Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal controls are maintained, the management is
responsible for designing and implementing internal control systems
to manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group. The operating
units and support functions are facilitated and coordinated by the
management, and ensure that risk management processes and
mitigation plans follow good practices and guidelines established in
their day-to-day operations.

The Group’s risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems is evaluated

at least annually to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks

The Group develops a preliminary inventory of events that could
influence the achievement of the Group’s business objectives. The
Group identifies outside and inside events by reviewing its external
and internal environment and stakeholders, which have an influence
or potential influence on the Group’s ability to achieve its strategy and

business objectives.

The risks identified are evaluated with a risk matrix which prioritises
risks according to the likelihood of their occurrence and the
significance of their impact on the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives. Following the review of the risk matrix, the
Group selects and deploys the corresponding risk responses and
investigates the mitigation procedures to be executed to ensure the

identified significant risks were managed to an acceptable level.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems

The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and
are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal audit function
for the Group in order to meet its needs. The Board continues to

review the need for an internal audit function annually.

During the Year, an independent consultant (“Consultant”) was
engaged to perform a review on the risk management and internal
control systems. The Consultant has reported findings and areas
for improvement to the Board and management. The Board and
management are of the view that no material defeats are noted in
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
recommendations from the Consultant are properly followed up by
the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time. The Board considers the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are adequate and effective and no

significant control failings or weaknesses was identified for the Year.

Inside Information Policy

The Group has established policies for the handling and
dissemination of inside information for purposes of strengthening
the confidentiality of inside information, maintaining the fairness of
information disclosure and protecting the legal interests and rights of
the investors. The Group is in compliance with Part XIVA and relevant
parts of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and Listing Rules. The
Group has reasonable measures on keeping the sensitive information
confidential and ensure that the inside information of the Group
is disseminated to the public timely, completely and accurately.
In addition, each personnel is granted a specific level of access
to the price sensitive and inside information. The Directors, senior
management and employees are informed with the latest regulatory
updates.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all of these non-competition
undertakings have been complied with by the relevant covenantors.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditors, HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"), for their audit services
for the Year was HK$680,000. HLB did not perform any non-audit
services during the Year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company maintains a two-way communication channel to report
the performance of the Company to the Shareholders and investors.
Annual reports, accounts and interim reports containing full details
of the Company’s activities are despatched to Shareholders and
investors. Such reports and other announcements of the Company
can be accessed on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Company also communicates and discloses its
latest business development plan via road shows, seminars with
institutional investors and analysts, and telephone conferences.

To ensure effective disclosures made to Shareholders and investors,
and to ensure that the same information is made available to the
public at the same time, price sensitive information is released in the
form of official announcements in accordance with the Listing Rules.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with the Shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages the Shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered
Shareholders. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting.

A proxy form for use at a general meeting of the Company is enclosed
with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be
present at the meeting should fill out the form and return the same
to the branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company in
Hong Kong, so as to appoint a representative, another Shareholder or
the chairman of the meeting as their proxy.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a general meeting

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Act”) and applicable legislation
and regulation.

1. An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year. General meeting, other than an annual general meeting,
shall be called a special general meeting and may be held in any
part of the world as may be determined by the Board.

2. Shareholder or Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Company’s registered office or head office at Block C, 17/F,
381 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, for
the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists

themselves may do so in accordance with the Act.

3. The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of the requisitionists. The requisition will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar and upon their confirmation
that the requisition is proper and in order, the Company will
ask the Board to convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to
all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
has been verified as not in order, the Shareholders concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a special
general meeting will not be convened as requested.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Act and applicable legislation and regulation.

1. Either (i) the Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right
to vote at such meeting; or (ii) not less than one hundred
Shareholders, at the expenses of the Shareholders concerned,
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at a general
meeting or a statement of not than 1,000 words with respect to
the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the business

to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

2. The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionists
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office or
head office at Block C, 17/F, 381 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary, not less than six weeks before the meeting in the case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than

one week in the case of any other requisition.

3. The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general
meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to
all the registered Shareholders, provided that the requisitionists
concerned have deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Act and applicable legislation and regulation.

If a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person (“Candidate”) to
stand for election as a Director at the general meeting, documents
including, (i) a written notice signed by the concerned Shareholder
expressing his/her intention to propose the Candidate for election
as a Director at the general meeting; (i) a written notice signed by
the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected, together
with the Candidate’s biographical details as required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (iii) the Candidate’s
written consent to the publication of his/her personal data, must be
validly lodged at the Company’s registered office or head office at
Block C, 17/F, 381 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen, New Territories, Hong
Kong or at Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong within the period
specified in the Bye-laws (the period for lodgment of such notices
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting).

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a Candidate for

election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board'’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. Other general enquiries
can be directed to the Company through those communication

channels as shown on the Company’s website www.hkeduii.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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As a company base in and serving Hong Kong, Hong Kong Education
(Int’l) Investments Limited (“Company” and its subsidiaries as
“Group” or “We”) is fully committed to protecting the environment,
be socially responsible and to maintain strict corporate governance
in the course of operation. As required under the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, the Company has prepared this Environmental Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“ESG Report”). The Group is
principally engaged in the provision of private educational services,
investment in securities, property investments and money lending
business. We consider the provision of private educational services
our core business and this ESG Report mainly covers discussions

relating to this business.

The reporting period of this ESG Report is from 1 July 2016 to
30 June 2017 (“Reporting Period”). The scope of the ESG Report
covers the Group’s initiatives on introducing the concept of ESG
to our employees and clients, putting them into practices in our
daily operations and disclosing results as a year-end summary for
the Reporting Period. It is also the intention of the management
to provide an overview of the Group’s direction in managing ESG
related issues and the driving actions for the ESG initiatives, and
to communicate the Group’s ESG performance results to our
stakeholders. The Company set out below its efforts to minimise the
negative influence to the environment, to promote our employees’
well-being and to contribute to the community during the Reporting
Period.

ENVIRONMENT

Along with generating revenue for our shareholders, serving the Hong
Kong education industry by providing students with the best learning
environment and quality instructors, recognising the importance and
contributing to the local environment and community are also the

guiding principles for the Group.
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Due to the business nature, our operations are mostly run in
premises such as administrative offices and education centres. The
Group’s principal business activities do not have significant impact
on the environment and natural resources. Despite this, the Group is
committed to sustainability by seeking to reduce the environmental
impact of our operations and to promote environmental protection
internally, as well as encouraging the same to our business partners

for joint force together.

AIR EMISSION

The Group took the initiative to examine the issue of air emission
across all of our administrative offices and education centres and
results indicated that no significant impact could be reported. As our
business operation involves neither any combustion process nor links
with any industrial or heavy transportation activities that lead to direct
emission into the atmosphere, our operations thus pose no major

impact in this aspect.

CARBON EMISSION

Besides our effort in monitoring air pollutant emission, the Group
always keeps an eye on exploring measures in reducing carbon
emission to reduce our overall carbon footprint. As a first step,
we estimated our operation’s greenhouse gas emissions and
for this Reporting Period based on the electricity consumption
and emission factor provided by our electricity providers (data
on electricity consumption and the carbon intensity factor are
available on the electricity bill and the sustainability report from
our electricity provider). We look forward to further working closely
with our employees, business partners, and external stakeholders
in enhancing our overall performance and minimizing our carbon
footprint. Further information and progress will be disclosed in the
subsequent year’s ESG report.

Based on the electricity consumption alone, the Carbon Footprint for
the Group during the Reporting Period was 1,238,070kgCO.e.
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WASTE MANAGEMENT

Our operation did not involve the generation, discharge or handling
of any hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Measures to reduce
wastage such as tips for efficient printing, avoid unnecessary
print-outs and the appropriate use of recycled paper are being
encouraged in our workplaces. In addition, we took the initiative
further by driving for a paper-less and e-platform working
environment. Our employees have been recommended, whenever
appropriate, to work and communicate through emails and e-format
documents instead of hard copies to reduce paper waste. These
good practices are well received and supported throughout the

Group.

The Group is not aware of any specific laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the Group related to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the Reporting Period.

USE OF RESOURCES

As an environmental friendly company, the Company is actively
promoting the culture of “Wise Resource Consumptions” of natural
resources internally and externally with our business partners
and our primary focus is to reduce consumptions on energy or
electricity, water and paper, where internal measures are enforced
to address these issues.

Our guiding principle on “Green Actions” includes raising
and promoting awareness, and implementing measures on
environmental protection in our headquarter office and education
centres. Employees and business partners are recommended to
adopt “Wise Resource Consumptions” and implement the green
practices on using energy, water and papers wisely. Notices are
posted in common areas on best practices for green office (i.e. tips
in saving energy, water and paper consumptions), reminding our
employees to always stay alert on energy conservation and efficient

use of resources.
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CONSERVATION OF NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group understands energy generation is a heavy fossil fuel
burning process, and has unfavourable impacts to our environment
with polluting substances emitted directly into the atmosphere. With
this in mind, we are naturally cautious on electricity consumption and
trying our best to minimize our impacts in this regard.

In line with the Group’s direction on “Wise Resource Consumptions”,
We actively promote the concept of “Wise Electricity Use” in all of
our premises, and remind our employees to take proactive actions in
their daily operation on resource conservation. For example, notices
were posted in different areas of our premises, to remind colleagues
and users to turn off lights or photocopier after use and switch off the
computer and display screen when leaving office. These good energy
saving practices are also extended to our education centres. All of
our education centres are well air-conditioned, yet our colleagues are
recommended to set the temperature sensor of the air conditioner
to 25.5°C to create an energy efficient learning and working
environment.

In addition, We have been promoting the efficient use of paper for
years. Double-sided printing and copying and single-sided printed on
recycled paper are always encouraged to meet our goal in reducing
paper consumption. Conservative water usage is also a crucial
aspect in our environmental policy. Water saving tips and slogans
are posted in resting areas and toilets to remind users to stay alert
to reduce water usage. We are working with our colleagues to make
all of our premises a more environmental friendly workplace. We will
continue monitoring and improving our performance wherever and
whenever there is room to do better and the progress or updates will

be disclosed in the subsequent year's ESG Report.

Water usage of our Group mainly arise from toilet flushing, water tap
and drinking water. We have no issue in sourcing water that is fit for

such purpose.

The Group recorded a total of 2,292,722kWh of electricity, 462m? of
water consumption and also consumed a total of 37,755,043 sheets
of paper during the Reporting Period.
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SOCIAL

The private educational services business of the Group spread
across various fields in the education industry sector. By working
with a large number of experienced and professional individuals,
we are able to provide our students with one of the finest learning
environment. We uphold the belief that our colleagues are our most
valuable assets, and offer competitive remuneration packages to the
right professionals both to retain and attract high-calibre talents. In
addition, and as a guiding principle of the Group, we comply with all
employment related laws and regulations set by local governments,
and emphasise on treating each of our staff equally and fairly.
We will update and make necessary adjustments to align with the
market standard regularly as well, to monitor and improve in areas
whenever needed, and continue to grow sustainably and in a socially
responsible manner.

EMPLOYMENT

As a socially responsible company, the Group understands the
success of a company hinges largely on the people and talents that
work with it. We have long considered employees as our greatest asset
and value the contributions and success that they have brought to
the Company.

We also provide our employees with a work environment free from all
forms of discrimination on the basis of age, race, gender, nationality,
disability or sexual preference.

The relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on
the Group relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare during the
Reporting Period included Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the
HK Laws), Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the HK Laws)
and Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the HK Laws, “MPF Ordinance”). We have maintained employee
compensation insurance for all our staff. No employee of our Group
is paid less than the minimum wage specified by Hong Kong laws.
Monthly salary payments and the MPF contribution have been made
within the prescribed timeframe for the Reporting Period. The Group
is not aware of any material non-compliance with such laws and
regulations during the Reporting Period.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

We understand the work of our employees must be well recognised
and compensated, and thus have offered competitive remuneration
packages and benefit schemes above market standard to retain our
talents.

The employee emolument of the Group is determined with reference
to the merit, qualifications and competence of the employees.
The emoluments of the directors of the Company (“Directors”) are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to, among
other things, the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Staff Performance Appraisal

The remuneration packages are reviewed annually. We believe
the importance of recognition and affirmation of employees’
achievements and accomplishments; therefore, multiple incentives
and rewards are offered to motivate and recognise the excellence of
the colleagues’ work performance in forms of discretionary bonus,
sales bonus and share options. During the Reporting Period, the
total staff benefit expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1.50 million.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

As employees are our most important asset and resource, the
primary goal is to provide a safe working environment for our
colleagues under reasonable and practicable conditions. We are
committed to achieving this goal by encouraging our staff to do more
outdoor exercises and we organise outdoor weekend activities for our
colleagues to join (e.g. charity run event and volunteering works).
The intention is to promote health and work-life balance as well as to
gain meaningful experience on community work.

Although our operation is predominantly office-based, we adhere to
Occupational Safety And Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the HK
Laws) and other applicable laws and regulations to provide a safe
and healthy workplace to protect our employees from occupational
hazards. The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
such laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.
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TRAINING

High-calibre and professional staff is one of the pillars to sustain
the growth of an organization. As an educational service provider,
we grow together with our colleagues and have been promoting
the culture of life-long learning throughout the Group. Our staff are
encouraged to enrich their career and personal knowledge through
self-learning or attend courses according to their interests.

Various learning channels are offered to our staff, where subscription
can be made according to their interests. They may also attend
courses during work hours if pre-approved. All full-time staff after
probation period are entitled to attend two of our courses. In
addition, any full-time staff with a full year service is entitled to a
discretional training course fee reimbursement, which serves as
the Group’s intention in supporting continuous-learning. Internally,
monthly training courses are arranged in accordance with different
departments’ needs, and to enrich our employees’ knowledge and
professional skills.

Our senior staff received regular debriefs with the best market
knowledges. In 2017, all of the Directors received regular updates
and presentations on changes and developments of the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments in which the
Group operates. The Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses, not merely for exceling at the workplace, but also
for their career development. As a result, there were a total number
of 49 employees, receiving a total of 80 hours of training during the
Reporting Period as below:

Employee Training Record (Hours)
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) as required under the MPF Ordinance for all qualifying
employees. During the Reporting Period, total contributions paid or
payable to the MPF Scheme by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1.60 million (2016: approximately HK$1.96 million), which had
been recognised as expense in profit or loss and included in staff
costs.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES, DIVERSITY, FORCED AND
CHILD LABOUR

The Group emphasises on equal opportunity. Our employment,
training and promotion practices do not discriminate on grounds
of gender, disability, pregnancy, family status, race, religion, age,
sexual orientation, national origin, trade union membership or other
conditions. The Group does not employ staff who are below 18
years of age. We strictly prohibit child labour and forced labour.
As prevention, during the hiring process, our human resources
department verify the personal information of the candidates before
the interview process to ensure strict compliance of such regulations.
The corporate policy abides to all applicable regulations and laws
including provisions of Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the HK
Laws), Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the HK Laws) and
the MPF Ordinance.
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We valued talent and employed the best fit of the position regardless
of their genders. Public recruitment will be conducted annually and
equal opportunity will also be provided to every employee through
appraisal, remuneration and incentive system. As for comparison
purpose, the following charts provided an overview of our staff’s
gender and age distribution for years ended 2016 and 2017:
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The Group had issued a comprehensive staff handbook as updated
and amended from time to time, which provided the basis for human
resources management, about the employment policy, working hours,
leave and rest days, welfare and benefits, conduct and discipline,
occupational health and safety policy, Personal Data (Privacy)
Policy, Equal Opportunity Policy, emergency event arrangement,
staff development and training, and corruption and bribery. Each of
our staff was provided with a copy of the employee handbook upon
joining the Group.
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EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group values relationship with our customers and suppliers, we
strive to provide the best products and services to our customers
and we are always open to comments and criticisms. We have
maintained an open engagement channel with a dedicated customer
hotline and administrative staff to handle suggestions and complaints
from our customers. Comments or complaints will be directed to
relevant parties to take appropriate action. Regular revisions will also
be conducted to ensure the quality of our services can meet the

expectation of our customers.

We believe effective communications should include a timely
and accurate information disclosure which are essential to our
stakeholder engagement. Not only does it bring confidence to our
shareholders and investors by openly communicating our messages,
it also invites constructive feedback. The transparency shall improve
our relationship with stakeholders, bring benefits to shareholders,
and ultimately contribute to the corporate sustainability.

As of 30 June 2017, the Group had not received any major complaint
from relevant parties and customers, or breached any rules and
regulations in this regard.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Since our business mainly involves the hiring of tutors and the
provision of private educational services to students in Hong Kong,
our practice does not impose major environmental and social risks
of the supply chain and we are not aware of any relevant laws and
regulations which are applicable to our business in this regard.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RiE HEBERERRE

The Group mainly work with business partners and suppliers who
provide us with general office supplies, such as drinking water,
photocopiers, paper and stationery. We understand the importance
of working closely with our suppliers to ensure the smooth running
of our business, and have established a long-standing relationship
with our suppliers that share our commitment to quality and ethics
especially in the ESG aspect. As a guiding procurement principle, we
generally select suppliers who share with our vision and are reputable
on excellent performances in the ESG, and committed to quality
and ethics; and one of the examples is the Fuji Xerox (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Fuji Xerox”). Our main printing paper supplier, Fuji Xerox,
has earned the reputation of being one of the performers in the ESG
area which has enforced a detailed sustainability programme.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

As a private educational services provider, we have complied with
polices and relevant laws and regulations relating to advertising,
labelling and privacy matters in relation to educational services
provided to our students.

As a guiding principle, we are consistently catering to the needs of
the market and we make sure that our advertisements are ethical,
honest and convey clear messages to our potential customers. We
also collect feedback from our existing students to better understand
their needs and difficulties.

Moreover, we are committed to protecting privacy and confidentiality
of personal data of our employees, customers and business partners
and other identifiable individuals. Our employees may only obtain
information about the customers when necessary. We collect and
use customer information in a responsible and non-discriminatory
manner by restricting the use of customer information to the
purposes consistent with those identified in our contracts with such
customers.

Generally, the laws and regulations affecting the Group include the
Trade Marks Ordinance, Copyright Ordinance, Trade Descriptions
Ordinance and the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486
of the HK Laws). The Group will stay alert to the relevant legal issues
and update its internal policies when necessary to avoid any breach
of the regulatory requirements. For the Reporting Period, the Group is
not aware of any material breach or non-compliance with such laws
and regulations.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

Our operation strictly comply with all law requirements and
regulations, and is fully committed in restricting any type of illegal
activities including corruption. We requested our staff to understand,
prohibit and work with us in safeguarding the Group from corruption,
and prevent money laundering activities. The whistleblowing
channels are in place for colleagues to report any inappropriate
conduct and irregularity which may or will violate our relevant policies

and guidelines.

In order to strengthen our employees’ understanding on the topic, we
organise internal trainings, and provide real-life cases and measures
to avoid non-compliance activity that may incur. The working
guideline is clearly stated in the “Employee Professional Conduct”
chapter in the employee handbook, which is easily accessible to all of

the employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of any
non-compliance with the laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Company relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is fully aware that it is responsible for caring and serving
our community in addition to bringing profits to our Shareholders.
We commit ourselves to making genuine efforts in supporting local

charitable organisations and community services.

In 2017, the Group had received the award of the Caring Company
Logo from Hong Kong Council of Social Service. This is the fifth
consecutive year the Group has received the Caring Company Logo,
which recognises the Group’s contributions to society. The Group will

continue to make a genuine effort to support charitable events.

During the Reporting Period, the Group contributed a total of
HK$437,870 on supporting the local charities which are dedicated to
providing welfare, educational, recreational and healthcare services
to the community.
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RIE  HE8RERRSE

RE&

BFIMER 2 ERISBTRAERAEERIRNELS
RESFREES  BRMBRETITHEEZELIERE
R WEFAEUREREBERE)S MIENE
MRREAE - WPIERIBHRRE - HRAFEEHA
KSR RBMMEBBER MG T ETAREAM
B o

RIREESHUL T EN T # - BABTREE - X
RE|EBERPIMERUD ETA TS RAHEE - &
BEFMAlEEEXE T | EASEWFIATIERES -
ZEEBTAIRE -

R|REME  AKREL TABEERATETEEE
B8 BR - BEFRARBEMNAREAMBARTEE
REENBR -

HERE

AEBREDBHBD - BABRRERNEN - MBEEE
B S RIS AP AL [ » BPTERGRE S 1SR A
REWE AL R AR

R20174F - AEBEEEEL S RIGH S HB AR
BISS  EEAKHEESIFERBRARBRIR
W AEAEEHMENER - AEERSEEB I
FREEE -

RBERHE > ARERFBEIRNBSEREREH -
HE  BRERBERE 2 AEEREA $£437,870/8
G °

Annual Report 2017 F%

79



80

Independent Auditors’ Report
B 3 A% B ED R

Bl #F &6 FHmHmRAI

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HONG KONG EDUCATION (INT’L) INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Education (Int’l) Investments Limited (“Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Group”) set out on pages
87 to 227, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MREKER

Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZBENERE

REEXER
RREZFESREESNERAE  RRYESE
BRARGEAMBHRERRAEENSEE - ZFFHIRN
EEERERGAMBRREERESHENE AR
EITRE > MEFTEHZREERRHREBNESR -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERMAEERRFRER

Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables, loan receivables and promissory note receivable

EZRAMBKRNE - BREFREWFERSLZE R ETFE

We identified the impairment of trade and other receivables, loan
receivables and promissory note receivable as key audit matter due
to the use of judgement and estimates in assessing the recoverability
of these receivables.

In determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment
loss, the Group takes into consideration the credit quality of the
receivables and the past collection history of the debtors which may
require management judgement.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of trade and other receivables, loan receivables and
promissory note receivable mainly included:

e Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the
methodologies and assumptions used by the Group
in assessing impairment allowances.

e Testing the accuracy of ageing analysis of the
receivables.

e Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
assessment of recoverability of the receivables with
reference to the credit history including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent
settlements and ageing analysis of each individual
debtor.
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B ZBENERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MRERER

Valuation of interest in an associate
R—EBEL G IEE

We identified the valuation of interest in an associate — Interactive
Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments Limited
(“IE China”) as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
Group’s interest in |[E China in the context of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, combined with the judgements involved in
Directors’ impairment assessment of the interest in IE China.

As disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
on the date of IE China became an associate of the Group, the
directors of the Company (“Directors”) performed a purchase price
allocation of the total cost, including deemed costs represented by
the fair value of the interests previously classified as held-for-trading
investments, against the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
acquired assets and liabilities with reference to valuations carried
out by an independent qualified professional valuer to identify the
initial carrying value of the Group’s interest in the associate using
the equity method of accounting and for use in applying the equity
method of accounting for the Group’s share of results of |IE China
less impairment. Further, the Group has performed assessment at
the end of reporting period whether there is any indication that the
carrying amount of interest in IE China may be impaired. If such
indication exists, the Group assessed the recoverable amounts for
impairment assessment purpose. As disclosed in Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements, impairment loss of interests in
IE China was considered to be necessary by management and
impairment loss of approximately HK$100,507,000 was recognised
on the Group’s interest in IE China as at 30 June 2017.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERAMAEERRFRER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of interest in
IE China, a listed associate, mainly included:

Assessing the appropriateness of management’s
accounting for interest in IE China;

Evaluation of the independent qualified professional
valuer's competence, capabilities and objectivity;

Checking on the accuracy and relevance of the
input data and assumptions used for the valuation
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of IE China;

Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to assess
the appropriateness of the methodologies and key
assumptions used by managements’ valuer;

Understanding management’s process for
identifying the existence of impairment indicators
in respect of the interests in the associate and
evaluating the effectiveness of such process; and

Where indicators of impairment have been
identified, assessing the reasonableness of the
recoverable amount of IE China.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue auditors’
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the Directors.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Kwok Kin Leung.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: P0O5769

Hong Kong, 27 September 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GERmREMEZERER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

2017 2016
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaF FET FET
Revenue A 7 153,859 189,778
Other income, gains and losses HAWA ~ WS R JE1E 8 6,147 12,212
Staff costs BT 10 (57,956) (58,178)
Tutor contractor fee EBRIARE 10 (43,793) (55,979)
Operating lease payments WEHEN R 10 (37,789) (45,016)
Marketing expenses MISHERY (15,798) (21,798)
Printing costs ENfpIE R (302) (405)
Depreciation and amortisation e N 5 (7,685) (6,183)
Change in fair value of investment EYER N FEEE
properties 16 7,800 (5,225)
Change in fair value of financial assets BATEFABENSRIEE
at fair value through profit or loss A EED (210,580) (40,371)
Impairment losses on available-for-sale A HERERRERE
investments 21 (3,997) (54,499)
Loss in respect of interest in an associate A B —REIHE 2 A BTG %
KEE 19 (117,115) -
Other operating expenses HAL Rz (41,688) (52,337)
Finance costs B5E A 9 (16,598) (9,154)
Share of results of joint ventures EREERAIEE 20 401 738
Share of results of associates i NG e 19 54,982 1,615
Loss before tax AL EIE 10 (330,112) (144,802)
Income tax expense s 12 (814) (321)
Loss for the year FEFE (330,926) (145,123)
Other comprehensive income (expense), HEMZEIKA (Bi3Z) » HIBKFR
net of income tax =1
Items that may be reclassified HEJEEH P HEEIEZH9
subsequently to profit or loss: FH :
Exchange differences arising on B G IMEE ETERFEER
translating foreign operations ME H ZERE (12) (121)
Reclassification adjustment on exchange — H& —fEEE AT, —
differences released upon disposal of B8 2 B R HE [0 Y [ 5,
an associate/a subsidiary EREMENHEAE 106 (40)
Fair value gain (loss) on revaluation of EEAHIBEREN A TE
available-for-sale investments Wz (E518) 6,594 (55,201)
Reclassification adjustment upon Al IHE IR E R ERF R E
impairment of available-for-sale P2k EEE
investment 3,843 53,768
Share of other comprehensive income FE(EEEZ R AR EAMD
(expense) of associates ZEWA (L) 4,545 (84)
Other comprehensive income (expense)  FEEMEE WA (FI) -
for the year, net of income tax R FTIS L 15,076 (1,678)
Total comprehensive expense FEZAEMAZEE
for the year (315,850) (146,801)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEakEMEEKER
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

2017 2016
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaF FET FET
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: TATEEFE(SE)FNE -
Owners of the Company KARERA (333,326) (144,718)
Non-controlling interests It 2,400 (405)
(330,926) (145,123)
Total comprehensive (expense) income A TNALTEGEEE2E(FX)
for the year attributable to: WA 4BEE -
Owners of the Company RAREBA (318,250) (146,396)
Non-controlling interests IR 2,400 (405)
(315,850) (146,801)
Loss per share SERER 13
— Basic (HK$) —EBERCET) (0.64) (0.34)
— Diluted (HK$) —EE0ET) (0.64) (0.34)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SE PRI R

At 30 June 2017 7201756 A30H

2017 2016
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB R 15 24,851 20,874
Investment properties "B 16 = 148,900
Goodwill RS 17 60 60
Other intangible assets HvfmpEE 18 692 890
Interests in associates K& A FRER 19 31,297 48,077
Interests in joint ventures AE SR RIRIRERR 20 7,999 9,598
Loan receivables FEWE X 25 - 21,791
Available-for-sale investments AIEHERE 21 83,283 26,122
Non-current deposits FEREIEE 22 8,043 5,640
156,225 281,952
Current assets MEVEE
Trade and other receivables Z 5 RE M EWGRTE 23 26,198 36,447
Loan receivables EWE 25 27,089 19,045
Promissory note receivable FEWR R 2B 24 50,000 -
Amounts due from related parties JFE Y R B 5 FOR 26 - 1,342
Amount due from an associate JE Uy — It & A R FOR 27 291 -
Financial assets at fair value through BN AR ABEN
profit or loss PREE 28 152,223 359,914
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 29 16,284 93,366
272,085 510,114
Assets associated with disposal group HABEARBENENHEHES
classified as held for sale R E E 30 158,527 -
Asset classified as held for sale DEABEHEEE 31 = 6,455
158,527 6,455
430,612 516,569
Current liabilities BB E
Other payables and accruals H B R ERTE R 32 24,105 15,275
Deferred income TEIEU A 4,804 8,161
Current tax liabilities BIEAf IR B & 156 1,072
Amounts due to related parties FEAS BAESE 5 50E 33 495 595
Bank borrowings SRITER 34 14,400 14,800
Loan notes BEREER 35 150,500 146,496
194,460 186,399
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBRRE
At 30 June 2017 #201746A30H

2017 2016
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat F#ET FET
Liabilities associated with disposal group B8 AR EHENHEHE
classified as held for sale EENaE 30 25,703 -
220,163 186,399
Net current assets MENEEFE 210,449 330,170
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRESEE 366,674 612,122
Non-current liabilities EmBAE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIEEE 36 202 1,393
Provision for long service payments REARRTE 2 #HE 37 8599 1,857
1,801 3,250
Net assets BEFE 364,873 608,872
Capital and reserves BN
Share capital N 38 27,379 22816
Reserves G 286,893 537,886
Equity attributable to owners of the NAREER AEGREE
Company 314,272 560,702
Non-controlling interests IEPE AR S 50,601 48,170
Total equity T AARE 364,873 608,872

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 227 were BN E87E227 B WiRA U KT D N2017469H27H
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on ~ BEEEEHERFETIE - WA TIIALTREESE !
27 September 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Yuk Tong Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious
Director Director
EER FEEH

£ 0
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

N LN 1
Attributable
Investment Share to non-
Share Share  Contributed Merger Capital  revaluation options ~ Translation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium surplus reserve resene eserve Teserve reserve losses Subtotal interests Total
B# i

ks RGER EEBE  AMER  RAER  EMGR WREGR  ERGR  RdER it REEEE it
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKS00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOOO
TET TET 7T 7T AT 7T 7ET 7ET FET FET FET FET
(Note i) (Note i) (Note i)
) ) v

At1July 2015 ROBETAIR 329 - 386,904 (28321) 446 1433 2,385 n (29.746) 336489 128 336,617
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - (144718 (144718) (05 (145123
Bchange differencesarisingon~— BEEIMIEFHEELH

translating foreign operations EfEH - - - - - - - (120 - (121) - (121)
Reclassficaton acjustment on HE-EHBARRERA

exchange differences released EXZRNENIERE

upon disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - - (40) - (40) - (40)
Fairvalue loss on revaluationof B EEERENLTE

avallablefor-szle investment B - - - - - (55,201) - - - (55,201) - (55,200)
Reclassiication acjustmentupon Wt BHERERERHER

impairment of avalable-for-sale  HEEE

investment - - - - - h3,768 - - - 53,768 - 53,768
Shere o exchange differences of  FEIS—FBER A ZEX

an associate 28 - - - - - - - (8) - (84) - (84)
Total comprehensive expense FE2ER L8

forthe year - - - - - (1433) - (45)  (144718)  (146,3%) (405)  (146,801)
Issue o rights shares and BERRHORIK

bonus shares 19557 365,092 - - - - - - - 384,609 - 384,609
Transaction costs aftrbutable oissue. &7 EAREERZRA

of new ordinary shares - (15,593) - - - - - - - (15,593) - (15,593)
Share options lapsed EhiExH - - - - - - (2.385) - 23% - - -
Changes inonnership interestsina B A REAEERZEM

subsidiary without change of contiol - R BT EEE) - - - . . . - - 1553 1553 8447 50,000
30 e 206 HI016%63308 28l MA% MR (BI  Mp - - (056 R0 BI0 GBAY
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTREARSE
Attributable
Investment Share to non-
Share Share  Contributed Merger Capital  revaluation options ~ Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve eserve losses Subtotal interests Total
k# #
B RNER EEER 0 ABRE RIEE  ERGR RRERE ERER  2HER it RESEE it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000
¥z 7T 7T 7T FEr FEr AT AT AT 7T 7T 7T
(Note ) (Note ) (Note i)
e md) (W)
At 1July 2016 R16E7A1R 2816 319499 386,904 (28321) o - - (166)  (170526) 560,702 8170 608,872
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - 3B (33830 2000 (330926)
Bchange diferencesarisingon - AEB/MIEZHREH
translating foreign operations EREH - - - - - - - (12) - (12) - (12
Reclassiicaton acjustment on HE-BRELAREE
exchange differences released EXZRNENIERE
upon disposal of an associate - - - - - - - 106 - 106 - 106
Fair value gain on revaluation o~~~ EETHHERENLTE
avallable-for-sale investments Wi - - - - - 6,59 - - - 6,594 - 6,594
Reclassification adustment upon TR HER B RERHEH
impairment of avalablefor-sale 7R
investment - - - - - 3843 - - - 3843 - 3843
Share of other comprehensive ElE-ERENR i
income of an associate 2E4R - - - - - 3950 - 59 - 4545 - 454
Total comprehensive income EE2EMA
(expense) for the year (RR)es - - - - - 14387 - 689 (3336 B18A0) 2000 (315850)
Issue of ordinary shares EAERRR 4563 5940 - - - - - - - 058 - 60,503
Transaction costs atrioutableto B ERREELRHE
issue of new ordinary shares - (2.251) - - - - - - - (2.251) - (2,51)
Recognifion of equity-setfed EIEREE R R
share-based payments i - - - - - - 13568 - - 13568 - 13568
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - - - - - - - - 3 3
330 Lune 2017 HOITE6ENE 2y 318 W% X)) M6 14 13% W EBK) UL 0K BT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEREHR
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

Notes: Hiat -

(i)  The contributed surplus of the Group represented the credit () AEEZEHBERIEARARN201595 A Bk gk
arising from the cancellation of share premium account and the MREREEBRARREE ZER - EEAR
reduction of share capital of the Company in May 2015. The BARRZ ARMA RAAEB 2 AT AER
balance may be utilised by the Directors in accordance with the ZAsER - BAER LRI AR 2 RETEE -

Company’s bye-laws and all applicable laws, including to eliminate
the accumulated losses of the Company.

(i) The merger reserve represented the difference between the (i) & Bf & 1% #8 Sino Network Group Limited ( [ Sino
nominal value of the shares of Sino Network Group Limited (“Sino Network ] ) B7R A AIAR 5 & B S 40 0 20 104F BRIRER
Network”) and the Company issued in exchange for the entire Express Education Limited 720114 Sino Network
issued share capital of Express Education Limited in 2010 and HEHEBITRAMBTHNROOEE ZENE
Sino Network pursuant to group reorganisation in 2011. LA

(i) The capital reserve represented capital contribution arising from (i) BAREEBERENBEBEMEEREERB QARG
transfers of interest in subsidiaries to shareholders and waiver of HERPTE R EE R R EN —BRERAFIE o

amount due to a shareholder in prior periods.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv_\/E\ }E ﬁiﬁ% %

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

2017 2016
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt FETT FHEr
Cash flows from operating activities BEITDRBHALRE
Loss before tax MRERIEE (330,112) (144,802)
Adjustments for: FATEEEL A
Share of results of associates i /NEI (54,982) (1,615)
Share of results of joint ventures NI (401) (738)
Bank and other interest income HR1T R B A F B A (2,582) (13)
Finance costs MBER 9 16,598 9,154
Change in fair value of other financial Hih e pEE s A EZS
assets - 2,609
Change in fair value of financial assets BRATEF ABENEREE
at fair value through profit or loss BN FEEE) 210,580 40,371
Change in fair value of investment KEWMERNNTEE
properties (7,800) 5,225
Gain on bargain purchase from AU B A RR KSR
acquisition of a subsidiary Bl (1) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB QAR U (17) (1,192)
Gain on disposal of associates I ERE N FR (2,212) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMRENER
plant and equipment 1,288 1,337
Loss in respect of interest in an EER—HBE AR MO ER
associate &8 19 117,115 -
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WEREREBITE
equipment 7,487 5,985
Amortisation of intangible assets EEEBE 18 198 198
Impairment losses on available-for-sale A ER AR RERSE
investments 3,997 54,499
Impairment losses recognised on other Hi S EmER 2 R EEE
receivables - 46
(Reversal of) provision for long service REIBRHG & (FE) B
payments (175) 69
Expense recognised in respect of TR A 2= 4 5 LA 19
equity-settled share-based payments AEBNRORR 13,568 -
Dividend received from listed B ETMFHEEBERENRE
held-for-trading investments 96 52
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEHHNLERENRE
in working capital (27,355) (28,815)
Decrease (increase) in deposits, % - BHREMEUGIER D
trade and other receivables (3E0) 10,097 (10,946)
Decrease (increase) in loan receivables FEWE R A (38 00) 13,747 (10,435)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from — FEURBEES 5 ZUBER A ($E00)
related parties 822 (234)
Increase in listed held-for-trading ETRBIEEEIREEM
investments (1,578) (367,992)
Increase in other payables and accruals H b A< SR8 I JE R T2 AR AN 9,051 1,488
(Decrease) increase in deferred income B A CRIA)IE N (3,071) 477
Decrease in long service payments RERBE R (83) (114)
Cash generated from (used in) operations ~ &BFT1S (FTA ) MR E 1,630 (416,571)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERBEERNEH (1,054) -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB RS - (15)
Net cash generated from (used in) operating #&&EENFT{S(FTA ) MR & 558
activities 576 (416,586)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

2017 2016
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt FETT FET
Cash flows from investing activities BRETTHMENEERE
Interest received BUF B 4,088 13
Dividends received from an associate Bl—HEE AR R —HEE
and a joint venture YNGIED) ¥ 2,000 8,550
Advance to an associate ) —EEE R R K (296) -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — & QA RIS RUE 4,051 -
Proceed from partial redemption =00 BE O W AR FTS F0E
of promissory note receivable 3,000 -
Purchase of available-for-sale investments ~ §& 5 A4 E R E (50,721) (52,815)
Purchase of financial assets designated BEETERATETAERN
at fair value through profit or loss CREE (60,927) -
Purchase of investment properties BEREME - (93,506)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEE¥ - ME KEE (12,784) (15,561)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - WEMREERE
plant and equipment 1 966
Payments for purchase of shares to acquire L% B A% 1 LAUREE — B¢ 2 2 A)
an associate SN BN (32,510) -
Net cash inflow (outflow) on acquisition of — WESHIB R RIIRERA
subsidiaries (fed) 558 143 (16,809)
Net cash (outflow) inflow on disposal of HEMBARREEORLE)RA
subsidiaries it 44 (423) 2,455
Net cash used in investing activities BEEBFARNEESFE (144,378) (166,707)
Cash flows from financing activities METBREHNEERE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT RRATISEUE 60,503 384,609
Payment of transaction costs attributable TATEITI S BB R AN
to issue of new ordinary shares (2,251) (15,553)
(Repayment to) advances from related ({E8) 8B B 7 BUR
parties (100) 400
Net proceeds from issue of loan notes BOIBREBMEIEFE - 144,000
Proceeds on disposal of partial interest HEMB AR R (WAL
in subsidiaries without losing control 4 ) PTIS RUE - 50,000
New bank borrowings raised FTILIRITER 132,700 25,300
Repayments of bank borrowings BEIRITER (110,100) (10,500)
Interest paid BRFE (12,594) (6,639)
Net cash generated from financing activities R & EENFT1SHIIE & 558 68,158 571,617
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents % RIR & FE YR FHE (75,644) (11,676)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYNRE EREEED
beginning of year 93,366 105,167
Cash and cash equivalents included in ATABEHENHEREN
disposal group held for sale RekREEEY 30 (1,426) -
Effects of exchange rate changes R )=o) (12) (125)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FERNBRE RREGEFEY
of year, represented by bank balances BUiRITRE SR NIR S
and cash 16,284 93,366
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GENERAL

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 26 January 2011 and
continued in Bermuda on 7 May 2015 (Bermuda time). The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business in Hong Kong is located at Block C, 17/F,
381 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.
Its shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since
4 July 2011.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
principal subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
private educational services, investment in securities, property

investments and money lending business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRE P BwRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

—REH
ARARAE—RNR2011F1A268 N HEBEETM
B R A2015F5 7R (BRERME) N ERE
GEREREBRAR - ARAIMGZMNERE
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201157 A4HBREEBE X AR AR ([ 5
R ERE -

AR B —HREEK - MEXTEMEAR
Ixﬁé%kf#%/\%&aﬁ&ﬁ% BEZES %%&
BENEEER -

RAMBHMRARNRANDEEEET([EBT])
E N



APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Consolidation Exception
and HKAS 28

Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
HKFRS 11 Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

2. ERWIERMEBREEN(FEME
REER ) RREERT

A5 B IR I AR S B 8 B S 3R 5 2R R A8 ET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration?
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle®

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Disclosure Initiative!

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealised Lossest

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
4

determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

2.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include (a)
impairment requirements of using an expected credit loss
model for financial assets and (b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing a
“fair value through other comprehensive income” measurement

category for certain simple debt instruments.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 may have significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities. Regarding the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 specifies how and when the Group will recognise
revenue as well as requiring the Group to provide users of
financial statements with more informative and relevant
disclosures. The standard provides a single, principles based
five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised in accordance with
the core principle by identifying the contract(s) with a customer,
identifying the performance obligations in the contract,
determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction
price to the performance obligations in the contract and
recognising revenue when (or as) the performance obligation is
satisfied. HKFRS 15 also includes a cohesive set of disclosure
requirements that would result in providing users of financial
statements with comprehensive information about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows

arising from the contracts with customers.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

2. ERWIERMEBREEN(FEME
BEEANDRRET(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 July 2018 and
the application of HKFRS 15 may result in more disclosures,
however, it is not expected to have significant impact on
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
based on the assessment on the existing contracts with
customers after taking into account the above core principle.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
“Leases” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

A preliminary assessment indicates that the Group’s
non-cancellable operating leases arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value
or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In
addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the Directors
complete a detailed review.

Except as described above, the Directors anticipate that the
application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset take into
account a market participants ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &% & (B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders
or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution
of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39, or when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-

controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the
Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that

interests were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets and
financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction

does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate and a joint venture is described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is or the portion so classified is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations. Any retained portion of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not been
classified as held for sale shall be accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group'’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.
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Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &% & (B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the
relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair

value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss

on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed

sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate
or joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment
that will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, and the Group discontinues
the use of the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when the investment (or

a portion of the investment) is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measures at the lower of their previous carrying amount

and fair value less costs to sell.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Franchising income includes initial fees and continuing
franchise fees. Initial fees are recognised when the Group
has performed substantially all initial services and other
obligations required of the franchisor (the Group) under the
franchise agreements. Continuing franchise fees represent fees
charged for the use of continuing rights granted by a franchise
agreement, or for other services provided during the period of a
franchise agreement, are recognised as revenue as the services
are provided or the rights are used.

Income from provision of tutoring and education services is
recognised when the tutoring and educational services are
rendered.

Management, consultancy and advertising fee income is
recognised when the management, consultancy and advertising
services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred income
Deferred income represents the tuition fee received in advance.
Deferred income is recognised as revenue when the tuition

services are rendered.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the

Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased

asset.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease

obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in

which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange

differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those asset
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contributions.

Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments under the requirements of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is recognised when the
employees have rendered services entitling them to the benefits.
The amounts recognised are determined at the management’s
best estimate of the future cash outflow for settlement of the
obligations and measured on a discounted basis, if the effect is

material.

Share-based payments arrangements

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be

transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss before tax) as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather

than through sale.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e UBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

BEXEHBEE)

BIE(Z)

RIETIR B E YR R A R M B A 7 R E A A
BWIRE - RRNAERANERN BRI RN =5
e - 5 7N 5 1B AT 428 ) B B 2= RR 4[] % B s
ZRB A BEAR L] RAG KB DI SR IN o B
ZERE MERBERN A HR RN ZRELNE
JERIA B EEN P BE A B B e R TR N A B
FRAS Z= 5 F an B TR ARRP] R 2RI 1A 5 1 3R o

ELERAEENREEDNSREHRRT - I
HRENBA RHRRTUEN AT HEH 2 M
KU EINEESLL

EEHREERABERERENAEXEREE
HREANRE  ZRREHRCERIARE
MR R (RBUE)RTE -

BELERERENEENTERRNBERARNE
EEREESENEEERAEREENT M
SIBHIBHBRR -

AT EAAFERAGFENREY ROELEN IR
meE @ EEmEmELIRREBLEM2HKEE - i
FARBRKKE - EREWER TIERAE
AZEREMEMBSNRBA D EBEN RN
ERATHE  MEEBLER  AERKREW
& e

Annual Report 2017 F%

121



122

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair value. All of the Group’s
property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are classified and accounted
for as investment properties and are measured using the fair
value model. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or

loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment

losses on tangible and intangible assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair values at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
ahove)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not

been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at FTVPL,
or (iii) contingent consideration that may be received by an
acquirer as part of a business combination to which HKFRS 3

applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading or
contingent consideration that may be received by acquirer as
part of a business combination may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

e  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about

the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in Note 6.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method, and changes in foreign exchange rates, if
applicable are recognised in the profit or loss. Dividends on
AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group's right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, loan receivables,
promissory note receivable, amounts due from related parties,
amount due from an associate, and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be

objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting policy

below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reserved through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including other payables and accruals,
amounts due to related parties, bank borrowings and loan
notes) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL. Generally, multiple embedded derivatives
in a single instrument are treated as a single compound
embedded derivative unless those derivatives relate to different
risk exposures and are readily separable and independent of
each other.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &% & (B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties
as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of

its investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate

The management of the Group carries out review on impairment
on the interest in an associate whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be
recoverable by comparing its recoverable amount.

In determining whether the interest in an associate is impaired,
it requires an estimation of its recoverable amount. The market
value of interest in an associate is determined based on the
closing price as at the end of the reporting period. Where the
recoverable amount of the Group’s interest in an associate is

less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss may arise.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the management
concluded that there was impairment loss on interest in an
associate of approximately HK$100,507,000 (Note 19) as the
recoverable amount of the interest in an associate was lower

than the carrying amount.

Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables, loan receivables
and promissory note receivable

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables, loan receivables
and promissory note receivable based on the credit history of
its customers and borrowers, the current market condition, and
the valuation of the pledged collaterals, if any. Management
reassesses the trade and other receivables, loan receivables
and promissory note receivable regularly. The provision could
change significantly as a result of changes in the financial
position and payment status of the counterparties and in
response to national or local economic conditions.

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for long service payments

The provision for long service payments is based on the best
estimate of the future payments required to settle the obligations
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in relation to the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

In making this judgement, the management mainly considers
the number of current employees who have achieved the
required number of years of service to the Group, at the end of
the reporting period, who are eligible for long service payments
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the employee
turnover rate as well as salary growth. Any change in these
estimates will affect the provision to be recognised.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where observable market data
are not available, the Group engages independent qualified
professional valuers to perform the valuation and works closely
with the independent qualified professional valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. The use of
valuation models and assumptions in valuing these financial
instruments is subjective and requires varying degrees of
judgement. Notes 6 and 16 provide detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The management reviews the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new shares issues and debt financing.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity (comprising issued share
capital, reserves and accumulated losses).

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

BxmpEEE
AEEEREERN  UNERASE 2 BERBH A
BRZE  ANEEBLEBRERERSBRERS

REAER - AEE 2 BERME FFREERFT

EEET RS EARE - (FARNmE M — A
D EBEREREAKRAEEZERNERNEGRHNME
% WHERRNRE  BITHREEBEREF
BHEBEARE -

AEBEARBERHRRES MRS EY N E
SNER(BREETRA - BENRFTER) -

HERRFERGBLERLT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FEIT

Debts (Note i) BB (A7) 164,900 161,296

Less: Cash and cash equivalents o IBEeNEeEEY (16,284) (93,366)

Net debt FEE 148,616 67,930

Equity (Note ii) Wz (Hatii) 364,873 608,872

Net debt to equity ratio FEREEL X 41% 11%
Notes: Biaz -

(i) Debts include bank borrowings and loan notes of the Group as () FBEEEEREFASENRITERARERERE - #

detailed in note 34 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

(i) Equity includes all capital, reserves and non-controlling interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. EMTIH
Categories of financial instruments SR T EER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Fair value through profit or loss BAHERT AR
Equity securities classified as held-for-trading ~ DA AFIEE ZERAE S 91,126 359,914
Financial assets designated at fair value FEEEAFET ABEN
through profit or loss TREE 61,097 -
Loans and receivables (including cash and ERREUGE(BIERESR
cash equivalents) REEEY) 122,414 171,278
Available-for-sale investments AJREERE 83,283 26,122
Financial liabilities TRaE
Amortised cost B SRR 180,472 167,619

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, trade and other receivables, loan receivables,
promissory note receivable, amounts due from related parties,
amount due from an associate, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, bank balances and cash, other payables,
amounts due to related parties, bank borrowings and loan notes.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate the effects of these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s exposure
in respect of financial instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on bank balances. The Group is also exposed to fair
value interest rate risk related primarily to its fixed-rate loan
receivables and promissory note receivable. The Directors
consider the Group’s exposure of the fair value interest rate risk
on fixed-rate loan receivables and promissory note receivable
and the cash flow interest rate risk on its bank balances are
insignificant. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities (Notes 21 and 28). The
management has appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective listed equity securities had been
10% (2016: 10%) higher/lower:

e the post-tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$7,609,000 (2016: HK$30,053,000)
as a result of the change in fair value of listed security
investments; and

e the investment revaluation reserve for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$3,551,000 (2016:
HK$1,691,000) as a result of change in fair value of the
listed security investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying amount of those
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. Except
for the financial assets described as below, the management
considers the credit risk on the remaining financial assets to be
minimal.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal as such amounts
are placed with banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies of good reputation.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to loan
receivables and promissory note receivable. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Other than concentration of credit risk on a loan receivable to a
borrower representing approximately 29% of the Group’s loan
receivables and credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings or good reputation,
the Group does not have any other significant concentration of

credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and
reserve borrowing facilities which are deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group has available short and medium
term banking facilities of HK$32,000,000, excluding banking
facilities available to the disposal group as detailed in Note 30
(2016: HK$32,000,000).
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6. EMTAR(Z)
HRARESEREREE(E)

=EmEE ()
AEENEERRET 2K A BRE TR EERRL
RE - RBEERREERE  AEEERED
EERRF LM@%%HXEEL{T@JW@tHH{Ei‘%
AN - AREER S H R & EERIME IR AT
Bl &R - ARERB TR W E M £ REIE L 2 SR E
ER-pEME  EERRAKENEEARD
KIEFEE ©

R A — R B R AR U E S AN 5 BRI E A
29%MEHEERBREEFREHAREEFRK
RIFEBRITNRHESNEERRIN - KAEE
W BRI EMEEEREANETHE -

HBELAE
NEBRDESARE - ARXEEERENAS
RRSSENAREBEAREENERER
RRIPKT - R ARBEE RAIERE R
BRDOVE -

R201756 A30H - A& 2 AIHER 2B M
R ERER 1T 15 B 88 /32,000,000 7T+ B
M0 AT HER AR ZIRITEERE
(2016%F : 32,000,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay and includes both interest and
principal cash flows for non-derivative financial liabilities.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from market interest rates prevailing at the

6. &MTAE)

MBEREEESERBEE)

MEBELEE(E)
TRENAEENETESRABHR AT H
IS - JIRTDIRBEAEEAEFNREALY
ReBABBHNABRRREREMBE - BIEIT
AEMBENNERAZRESRE -

TRBAFERASBERE - AHBRERT
BRENENBER AR BENEREHK
BITTIRFIRGHE, -

end of reporting period.

More than
Weighted On demand 1 year but not Total
average or within more than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amounts
EEY BREKH 1£H0E XKuHRS

il 1£R EF@EE5%F mERE IR {E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET

As at 30 June 2017 1201756R 30

Non-derivative financial liabilities — FFp74 488 &

Other payables HitENF0R N/A R 15,077 - 15,077 15,077
Amounts due to related parties FERBEE T F0R N/A RiE 495 - 495 495
Variable-rate bank borrowings FEBITER 2.4% 14,400 - 14,400 14,400
Loan notes EFERE 11% 156,000 = 156,000 150,500
185,972 - 185,972 180,472

As at 30 June 2016 1201656 A308

Non-derivative financial liabilities — FFp74 488 &

Other payables Hip R FE N/A i@ 5,728 - 5,728 5,728
Amounts due to related parties [E R A R N/A TE A 595 - 595 595
Variable-rate bank borrowings FERITIER 1.89% 14,800 - 14,800 14,800
Loan notes ERER 11% 168,000 - 168,000 146,496
189,123 g 189,123 167,619

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e UBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMIR(E)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SRITEZATENE
This note provides information about how the Group determines IR BEERNSENNETE TeREERS
fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities. BMEENAFEREER -
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured RIBLAEMBEZ N FETENIEFEHEE
at fair value on a recurring basis BEEHRFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are AEEH > eREERSRBERSRERRIZ
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The NEEFE - TRABERFHANMETZES
following table gives information about how the fair values of REEMERABGEs AFECCEEFAGER A
these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in REAER) -
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2017 hierarchy and significant input(s) to fair value
1201746 HA30H LFE HEFER AARRBABRE
SMEESMAR BAaFE ) EXBABE LFEME
Held-for-trading Listed equity securities in Hong Kong - Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
non-derivative financial approximately HK$91,126,000 market
assets (2016: approximately
HK$359,914,000) (Note 28)
FIEEEIFITE BB ETRAES—#91,1260008 7T H—4& EEMSREAR N
PHEE (2016 : #7359,914,000%7T)
(H1:#28)
Listed available-for-sale Listed equity securities in Hong Kong - Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
investments approximately HK$35,514,000 market
(2016: approximately
HK$16,914,000) (Note 21)
TR HHERE BB LWRAES —435514,0008T F—R ERTISMBREAE NERA
(20165 : #16,914,000%7T)
(H1z#21)
Unlisted financial assets Unlisted investment fund — Level 2 Quoted price based on N/A
designated at fair value approximately HK$61,097,000 net asset value
through profit or loss (2016: Nil) (Note 28)
BRI AT ER AER FETMREES-461,0970008T  H=H ERBEFERNRE TER

FLMERMEE

(20165 : &) (#i228)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &MTIAE)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring hasis (Continued)

ERMITAZAFEREGE)
REEZEMEERAFHETENIEBTHBEE
REEHAFEE)

Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2017 hierarchy and significant input(s) to fair value
120176300 LFE ERER AARRBABRRE
SMEESMAR BAFE R EX@ABE LFERE
Contingent consideration Contingent consideration Level 3 Expected cash flow approach The higher of projected
receivable for unlisted equity consolidated NPAT,
interest — Nil (Note 21) Key unabservable inputs are: the lower the fair
Projected consolidated net profit value and the higher
after tax (“NPAT") of the investee the probability of
and its subsidiaries for the year occurrence, the lower
ending 31 December 2017 ranging the fair value and vice

HARME ] YRERSE E AR 2 K E
ARE-EWZ21)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

from approximately HK$30,145,000 versa
to HK$36,350,000; and scenario
probability ranging from 85% to

95% for the year ended
30 June 2017
EEREREE fhEtRalRRR AR
& RHERE ;i
FEFTEEHANIE - BMmgtas - A
HREFREMBELREZE HERE - RZTA

20175128318t EE 2 fh3t
AR AR ([ BRT MR )
NF4130,145,000/ T
36,350,000 7T : REZE20174
6A30B LEE BRI A A
NT4185%Z95%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMIRAR(~Z
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued) SRTAZAFEFEE)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured RIBLAZEMBEZ N FETENIEFSHEE
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REEBHAFEE)
Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2017 hierarchy and significant input(s) to fair value
1201746 H30H LFE BERER FARREARRE
SMEESRMAR BOFE R EXBANE LFERE
Unlisted available-for-sale Unlisted equity interest in Level 3 Market approach The higher the projected
investment overseas — approximately aggregate consolidated
HK$38,715,000 Projected aggregate consolidated EBITDA, the higher the
(2016: Nil) (Note 21) earnings before interest, tax, fair value; the higher
depreciation and amortisation ratios of market value
(“EBITDA") for the year ending of invested capital to

31 December 2017 of approximately EBITDA and market
HK$44,023,000; projected NPAT capitalisation to net

less non-recurring other income/ profits attributable to
expenses for the year ending owners of the company,
31 December 2017 of approximately ~ the higher the fair
HK$31,253,000; ratios of market value; and the higher
value of invested capital to EBITDA of discount for lack of
and market capitalisation to net marketability, the lower
profits attributable to owners of the the fair value and vice
company from four comparable versa (Note)

companies listed on the Stock
Exchange which engaged in
securities broking, securities margin
financing, margin and initial public
offer financings, underwriting and
corporate advisory services in Hong
Kong ranging from 8.4x to 26.2x and
from 7.9x to 30.1x respectively; and
discount for lack of marketability of
30%

Note:

5% increase (decrease) in projected aggregate consolidated EBITDA
and NPAT less non-recurring other income/expenses would result in
increase (decrease) in fair value of approximately HK$2,115,000; 5%
increase (decrease) in the ratio of market value of invested capital to
EBITDA and market capitalisation to net profits attributable to owners
of the company would result in increase (decrease) in fair value of
approximately HK$2,115,000; and 5% increase (decrease) in the
discount for lack of marketability would result in (decrease) increase in
fair value of approximately HK$830,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

6. EMTA(Z)
SMIAE>AFEISEE)
BREEEHELE A FEFENFERHEE
REEYAFEE)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring hasis (Continued)

Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2017 hierarchy and significant input(s) to fair value
120174%6R30R LFE BERER FARREARRA
SMEESRAR BAEE R EXBANE LFERE
FELEMAHEAERE BINELMRRE 438,715,000 £=% M WAGZEREHE -
(20165 | &) (Hfzt21) B FERBHENR
BZE2017F12A31 8 LFETRALR MggEas  ATE

BREFS - BIE - TEREHA
BR(TRFE  BA - ERE
HRIET ) @5 A%44,023, 0007
7T BE2017F12831BIHEE
BRIRB RSt
A/ B33 B#31,253 00047 :
ERER AT LA LR A

B RAERY
REHFIE BRI
ERBHIANDE
ZRARHEA ARG
AT EMetL X
AR AFERR

RRBZ MBS

(RBERUFEHEL - BFRE
THE  RESRERDARER
B BEREEFARB)NEA
BAYAGHE BB ERE
HAI RN TER KA RRE ARG
MMTISERC LR D RIN TR AR
£26.2(5R7AMEE30.115 ¢ RstEk
2 S RBIEE0% °

fAR%  AFER

& - Rz IRA(KIEE)

HisE -

BRI ARETNE - TA - WEREEAEN K& FRIATEN AR
FEAE B ARS8 0 Rt ) 5% 15 B By A 0 O ) 4
2,115,000/ 7C L AEAREARGFE - HIH - WEREHAANTE
ERRNEER ANEGHTTISERNM L R I OR D) 5% BEH AT E
ANCR D) #2,115,00008 7T © RFHERZ T35 7@ 13 g i O )
5% EH A TECK D) IN4)830,0008 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMIA(ZE)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued) EMIBE2AFEE(E)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured RIBAEMREE N FETENIEFLHEE
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REEHRFEE)
Fair value hierarchy N FERS
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& -t =R o
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FRET
As at 30 June 2017 1201756 A30H
Available-for-sale investments AMEHERE 35,514 - 38,715 74,229
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEEN SR
through profit or loss BE
— Equity securities classified as — D RFEEERAR
held-for-trading E A 91,126 - - 91,126
— Financial assets designated at ~ — 18 EHAFEF ABs
fair value through profit or loss MEpEE - 61,097 = 61,097
126,640 61,097 38,715 226,452
As at 30 June 2016 20166 A30H
Available-for-sale investment AHIHERE 16,914 - — 16,914
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEEN SR
through profit or loss BE
— Equity securities classified as — D RFEEERAR
held-for-trading B 359,914 - - 359,914
376,828 - - 376,828
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers HE2017F 2016F6 H30H IEFE » 35— 48
into or out of Level 3 during the years ended 30 June 2017 and Fo_R/zBWELMER  TEEASENE=
2016. e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMIA(E)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued) ERMTEREZAFETSEE)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements B=RA-FEGTENE R T
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At the beginning of the year RER] - 2,609
Addition NE 30,831 -
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss P EZRHER 2 A FEEF
(included in other income, gains and losses) (FEAEAMWA ~ W R EE) - (2,609)
Change in fair value recognised in other REMEEWREER 2 A TFE
comprehensive income (included in FE) (G AREEHHEE)
investment revaluation reserve) 7,884 -
At the end of the year RFR 38,715 -

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating and reporting segments have been
identified on the basis of internal management reports prepared
in accordance with the accounting policies conform to HKFRSs,
that are regularly reviewed by the executive Directors, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) of the Group,
in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performances.

The Group’s operations have been organised based on
four operating divisions as described below. Similarly, the
information reported to the CODM is also prepared on such
basis. No operating segments identified by the CODM have
been aggregated in arriving the reportable segments of the
Group.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

WHREEZMEERL FETENEIEELH
BERBENAFE

=R /MO B HM AL
BEENTRAENIREER

/—\ﬁﬂ“* RRACERME
NHERSE °

WA B 5 8B #
AEENEERRENBERETEEEM R
SEANDEHBERREM AR E IR REELETIA
#Al BRREHEAANKENEELEARE
([BRELEREE DORTESEHENARD
OB ERLHMERERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSBEHEE)
(Continued)
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments are BREME  AEERHEREESHDT -
as follows:
®  Provision — secondary tutoring services, secondary o RENMAHE — PEFHBERYG ERAR
of private day school education, primary BRT5 mE - NEEERE - R
educational tutoring services, skill courses and BREREARE  FiF
services test preparation courses, franchising LA~ BB R E
income, English language training and AR - BfiEE - B2
test preparation courses, technical Ko 8R4 57 AT AR 7% DA B2 08 o
consultation, management and software HERARTS

licensing services and overseas studies

consultation services

e |nvestmentsin — trading of securities o WEHESH — BEEFSH
securities
*  Property — investments of properties for rental o MERE — REWMERERAS KA
investments income and capital appreciation KEAREE
e Money lending — providing loans as money lender e EE — EAERAREER
Other operating segments which do not meet the quantitative REEBRBYBHRELENFERAFE S| EHE
thresholds prescribed by HKFRS 8 Operating Segments for TE R s o SRR B AL & 5 BRI & O
determining reportable segments are combined as “other Bl HEabnE] o
segments”.
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e MBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

7. BWARSEEH (=)

(Continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results (@) PHUAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEBIRGE R HEDE D EMA K E
results by operating and reportable segments: BT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 ElFE2017F6H30HILEE
Provision
of private
educational Investment Property Money
services  in securities  investments lending Others  Consolidated
RELA
HERE REES NERE EE it st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue SR 149,439 - 1,443 2,977 - 153859
Segment results PEEE (16,701)  (210,704) 6,548 2,816 8)  (218,049)
Impairment losses on MHEEREN
available-for-sale investments REEE (3,997)
Gain on disposal of associates HERSN AN 2,212
Loss inrespect of interestinan ~ BEAR A& A
assocate FribEENER (117,115)
Finance costs HBER (16,598)
Share of results of joint ventures  [EIRAZARIEE 401
Share of results of associates JE(EEE N RIEE 54,982
Unallocated corporate income FAEREMA 2,582
Unallocated corporate expenses A2 EATIHEY (34,530)
Loss before tax BAIEE (330,112)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSBEHEE)
(Continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a) PHBBARESZE)
For the year ended 30 June 2016 A 22016F6H30H 1FF/E
Provision
of private
educational [nvestment Property Money
services in securities investments lending Others  Consolidated
RAAA
HERK REES ESE fBE Eft @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000
TET TET TET TET TET TiET

Segment revenue DEUA 182,267 - 768 3,460 3,283 189,778
Segment results PEEE (13,831) (42,989) (6,844) 2514 (1,635) (62,835)

Change in fair value of other AthemEE A TE

financial assets g (2,609)
Impairment losses on HEERENHESS

available-for-sale investments (54,499)
Finance costs HBER (9,154)
Share of results of joint ventures  [EIRAZARIEE 738
Share of results of associates [ NGES 1615
Unallocated corporate income A RLNIT N 13
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ RAEAFIFX (18,071)
Loss before tax BAIEE (144,802)
The CODM assesses segment results using a measure of BEKERRENKLEEEBNTERTED
operating loss whereby certain items are not included in ML TR ETHREAEERRES DD
arriving at the segment results of the operating segments HEERATTN  BEMSREEZ AT
(i.e. change in fair value of other financial assets, BEE  HEERENRERE « KIS
impairment losses on available-for-sale investments, gain EARME - BN —EEE AR ATEE
on disposal of associates, loss in respect of interest in an mHEE - MSER  EHEEARIES -
associate, finance costs, share of results of joint ventures, JE(LEE S N RS - KO ARIUWARKD
share of results of associates, unallocated corporate [iTNGI

income and unallocated corporate expenses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

7. BWARSEEH (=)

(b) PWEERER

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

AEBZEERAREDTFDENEERE

liabilities by operating and reportable segments: BT :
As at 30 June 2017 P2017566H30H
Provision
of private
educational Investment Property Money
services  in securities  investments lending Others  Consolidated
REFLA
HEhRE REERS WERE s it - Hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Assets gE
Segment assets NUEBE 48,957 152,223 - 27,256 9 228,445
Assets associated with disposal BB ABEHENHE
group classified as held for sale  AAREBHEE - - 158,527 - = 158,527
Unallocated assets ROREE
Bank balances and cash RITEBETS 16,138
Promissory note receivable EYEREE 50,000
Interests in associates REEARINER 31,297
Interests in joint ventures RAERAMER 7,999
Available-for-sale investments MHEERE 83,283
Other corporate assets HAREE 11,148
586,837
Liabilities -
Segment liabilities PHEE 16,105 2,629 = 50 6 18,790
Liabilities associated with disposal A ABELERN T E
group classified as held for sale  AARRENEE - = 25,703 = = 25,703
Unallocated liabilities KPEEE
Current tax liabilities MEHEaE 156
Deferred tax liahilities BLREEE 202
Bank borrowings BT 14,400
Loan notes BNEE 150,500
Other corporate liabilities HARERE 12,213
221,964
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FEMBRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSBEHEE)
(Continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (h) AHEEREEE)
As at 30 June 2016 R2016F6H30H
Provision
of private
educational Investment Property Money
services in securities investments lending Others  Consolidated
RERLA
R R REZS WERE fE& Eft @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET TET TET

Assets gE
Segment assets PEEE 61,454 359914 149,399 41,409 752 612928
Unallocated assets ROREE
Bank balances and cash ROTEHRRES 92,814
Interests in assaciates NN o 48,077
Interests in joint ventures RAERAMER 9,598
Available-for-sale investments MHEERE 26,122
Asset classified as held forsale  PEEARELELE 6,455
Other corporate assets HpNAEE 2527
798,621
Liabilities g
Segment liabilities PHEE 18,813 3,011 170 52 1,397 23,443
Unallocated labilities ROREE
Current tax liabiliies HEREaRE 1,072
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 1,393
Bank borrowings BITEF 14,800
Loan notes EYER 146,49
Other corporate liabilities ERFERE 2445
189,649
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSBEHEE)
(Continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) PHEERERE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and REEDPHRBAERN DB EDEERN B
allocating resources between segments: BmE :

e all assets are allocated to the operating segments
other than bank balances and cash (other than those
included in the money lending segment), promissory
note receivable, interests in associates and joint
ventures, available-for-sale investments, asset
classified as held for sale and other corporate assets;
and

e all liabilities are allocated to the operating segments
other than current tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities,
bank borrowings, loan notes and other corporate
liabilities.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

BRIRTTHEB LR S GEABED BER
5N - FRMRHRE C REBE QR RE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSBEHEE)
(Continued)
(c) Other segment information (c) HittmpHER
For the year ended 30 June 2017 EFE2017F6530HILEE
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services in securities investments lending Others  Consolidated
REBA
HERE wEES NRBE -1 Rl 5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Capital additions EXRE (10,467) (2,317) - - - (12,784)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH (6,964) (719) - - ) (7,685)
Reversal of long service payments  REHRESEE 175 - - - - 175
Change in fair value of investment X &£ AT EE
properties - - 7,800 - - 7,800
Change in fair value of financial ~ FRAFERF A BZH
assets at fair value through SREENATE
profit or loss g - (210,580) - - - (210,580)
For the year ended 30 June 2016 EHZ22016F6 H30H I1FF )&
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services in securities investments lending Others  Consolidated
RATA
HERH REES NERE o Efth &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

Capital additions BARE (15,504) (14) (124,525) - (43) (140,086)
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (5,784) (376) - (20) (3) (6,183)
Provision for long service payments &R A/ (69) - - - - (69)
Change in fair value of investment & EE A TES

properties - - (5,225) - - (5,225)
Change in fair value of financial 1R /A (BT ABZH)

assets at fair value through SREENATE

profit or loss g - (40,371) - - - (40,371)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSEBEHZ)
(Continued)

(c) Other segment information (Continued) (c) HftbpER(E)
REBRAAFEREMNEBAIMNIERZE
BREE WARFEBEIRAEEBRAFE

MWEEE - WANEEN1L0% -

The Group’s assets, revenue and results for the year
derived from activities located outside Hong Kong are less
than 10% of the Group’s total assets, revenue and results
for the year.

RMEFER - SEENEFIE A REAR
AFEHE10% °

No individual customer accounted for over 10% of the

Group’s total revenue during both years.

(d) Revenue from major services (d) EERIEUWA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by services is as AEEZRIE D BROWRASITAT

follows:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Secondary tutoring services B E R 108,412 134,481
Secondary day school education EFHRARRE 1,150 2,004
Primary tutoring services, skill courses and /|NEZEHEARTE « RERRE KL
test preparation courses FESERIE 12,933 11,798
Franchising income LSHE S PN 4,503 4,515
English language training and test FEBIEYI M E SRR
preparation courses 22,441 23,607
Technical consultation, management and ~ £ilrsgs - B I8 REt
software licensing services FT AT AR TS - 5,587
Overseas studies consultation services GINTEE RS - 275
Rental income AU A 1,443 768
Loan interest income B A BHA 2,977 3,460
Advertising income BEEWA - 3,283
Total revenue FE N 153,859 189,778
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OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e UBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

8. HfttlgA - R REIA

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Change in fair value of other financial assets EMemEEMNTEES) - (2,609)
Impairment loss on other receivables H A EUGRIB R E RSB - (46)
Interest income on KA THIEIBERF SWA
— bank deposits —RITER 1 9
— promissory note — A EE 2,581 -
— other loan and receivables —HME R R EWRIE = 4
(Loss) gain on disposal of HENTSERN (EE) e
— property, plant and equipment — W - BB REE (1,288) (1,337)
— subsidiaries VNG 17 1,192
— associates — B QA 2,212 -
Gain on bargain purchase from acquisition B U B — R B A R A IR
of a subsidiary HE R 1 -
Supporting services income SRR WA 1,619 13,978
Others Hth 1,004 1,021
6,147 12,212
FINANCE COSTS 9. MEEH
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly HARRFRBEEENIRIT
repayable within five years LEMEERNFE 594 658
Effective interest expense on loan notes EREBENERN SR 16,004 8,496
16,598 9,154
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

10. LOSS BEFORE TAX 10. BRRAIEG IR
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting): MEERTEIEE F0BR (FTA) THIEE ¢
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#EiT FET
Directors’ remuneration E=H 9,253 5,882
Other staff costs E B TR 40,056 50,685
Other staff's retirement benefit scheme HAth 8 THIRWIEFIETE
contributions Tz 1,565 1,926
Share-based payments to other staff ME M8 TS H AR5
AR 7,299 -
58,173 58,493
Tutor contractor fee to a Director M—R2ESZTREMERE (217) (315)
Staff costs BTIKA 57,956 58,178
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B A M 680 710
Other share-based payment expenses E MDA (D AER N AR 2,921 -
(Reversal of) provision for long service payments & EIIRS & (/@] ) #45& (175) 69
Gross rental income from investment properties R & W& AU A (1,443) (768)
Less: direct operating expenses incurred for B RFEREERSWAR
investment properties that generated WEYMFEEENERE
rental income during the year RS 43 43
(1,400) (725)
Tutor contractor fee is calculated based on (i) certain EEIABREIREBORAPEE T RGN RERE
percentage of revenue derived from secondary tutoring services IR ESRRBIMABNETEDL « R/ EigE
and English language training and test preparation courses; and RS - REZRRENEAREZ2G/ I EETFWE
(ii) fixed hourly rate on primary tutoring services, skill courses =
and test preparation courses.
Operating lease payments represent the minimum lease ST ENAIERBEEEHERHBA(ETE LSS
payments under operating leases paid or payable to lessors SNE=F)EMNREMNREREN -

which mainly are independent third parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11L.EFRFETRAENMERAUAES

EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID N {E B 5 e

EMPLOYEES AND TUTORS

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Directors’ fees BEEHE 600 600
Other emoluments to Directors MEESMEAMBe
— basic salaries, allowances and other benefits ~ —H&E A& « 2AT R EM
in kind BEYEF 4,912 4,800
— discretionary bonus —BYIETEAL 140 131
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RUNERNFT B3R 36 36
— share-based payments — ARR 15 BETR S 3,348 -
9,036 5,567
Tutor contractor fee to a Director M—REELNNERIABE 217 315
9,253 5,882
The bonus is determined with reference to the operating results, A2 ERMFERANLEEE BARBER
individual performance and comparable market statistics during AL TiSH TSR MERE °
both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES AND TUTORS (Continued)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the Directors and

ILESRERITRARMMERAGASRS
FEN{E S R BeH ()

AEEREERTBTBRABNOMESFBED

chief executive are as follows: K
Year ended 30 June 2017
HBE2017F6A30ALEE
Mr. Lee
Wai Lok,
Mr. Wong Ms.Wu Ignatious Mr. Pun Mr. Ong Mr. Lee
Yuk Tong Mei Chu  (“Mr. Lee”) Kwok Shan  Chi King Shu Fai Total
FREEE
IEREE MXEKR: (k%)) BELEE IF8EE FHEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Directors' fee EE2n 240 - - 120 120 120 600
Other emoluments Hidle
Basic salaries, allowances EAEHE 2B REM
and other benefits in kind EhVE) 45 943 3834 - 45 45 4912
Discretionary bonus [yl - 79 61 _ _ - 140
Tutor contractor fee BAERE = = 217 = = = 217
Retirement benefit scheme RINEFE B
contributions - 18 18 - - - 36
Share-based payments AR BERER R - 1,674 1,674 = = = 3,348
Total @it 285 2,714 5,804 120 165 165 9,253
Year ended 30 June 2016
HZ2016F6A30H1HFE
Mr. Wong Ms. Wu Mr. Pun Mr. Ong Mr. Lee
Yuk Tong Mei Chu Mr.Lee  Kwok Shan Chi King Shu Fai Total
TERAE BEKZT TR EELEE ITRSE FHBRA @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Directors’ fee i 240 - - 120 120 120 600
Other emoluments Hitdle
Basic salaries, allowances EXES 2R REM
and other benefits in kind BT - 973 3827 - - - 4,800
Discretionary bonus BiETEa - 79 52 - - - 131
Tutor contractor fee BAERE - - 315 - - - 315
Retirement benefit scheme RINEFE B
contributions - 18 18 - - - 36
Total @it 240 1,070 4212 120 120 120 5,882

Mr. Lee is also the chief executive of the Company for the years
ended 30 June 2017 and 2016.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES AND TUTORS (Continued)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year,

two (2016: two) were Directors whose remuneration are set out

above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining

FEN(E S R BEH ()

e MBERRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

IL.ESRERTHRARMMERAGASRS

AEBERAFEZANESHFMAL(RE
(2016%F : M%) REF) Z FHBFIEHN 3 - 8
T=%(2016%F : ZR)&EFMALZAFES

three (2016: three) highest paid individuals are as follows: BAEFIBEAT -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&iT FEIT
Basic salaries, allowances and HAHE® 2R
other benefits in kind A EYF = 2,444 3,133
Discretionary bonus EIEIEAL 114 299
Tutor contractor fee BRI E 1,066 2,229
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFFT B 51 53
Share-based payments LARR (D BETE R 2,921 -
6,596 5,714
The number of the highest paid individuals who are not the FMANTHE ZIFEE 2 Ho&H AT AZW
Director whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as T
follows:
2017 2016
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001/8 752 1,000,000/ 70 = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 75 22,000,000 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 522,500,000/ 7T 3 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/8 723,000,000/ 7T = 1
3 3

During the year, certain non-Director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group under the share option scheme of

the Company. Details of the share option scheme are set out in

Z A R EEIOA o

Note 39 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

RER  ETHEFRFETETBRABZ&ESH
B e BARBA R R S B AR B #
ZIRF R B RE - BT EIFBRENAKE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11.

EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES AND TUTORS (Continued)
Details of tutor contractor fee of the five highest paid tutors

(excluding Director) during the year are as follows:

EERFETHARMMERAGES
FEN{E S R BeH ()

RER - AfUKSFHMEM(TEEESE)NEAE
EBEFHBIT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Tutor contractor fee BETAE B 27,195 36,346

The tutor contractor fees were within the following bands:

HEABENF IR -

2017 2016

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A& AZ

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000 7T 2 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T 23,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 23,500,000/ 7T = 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001t 25,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001/ 7C27,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001/ 728,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 #7T.29,500,000/% 7T = 1
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 7% 10,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001/ 722 13,500,000/ 7T = 1
5 5

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors or the
five highest paid employees and tutors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
During the year ended 30 June 2017, none of the Directors
(2016: none) waived their emoluments on a voluntary basis.

Salaries, allowance and other benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive Directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of those persons’ other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e UBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

12. RN

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: BNEATEIE -

Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH 138 134

The People's Republic of China (“PRC”) i AR IR ([HE])
Enterprise Income Tax EEH = 10
138 144
Deferred tax (Note 36) FEIEF IR (MI7E36) 676 177
Total income tax recognised in profit or loss RIBRPHERZ TISHi4esE 814 321

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on the
estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the rate
of taxation applicable to each year. Subsidiaries established in
the PRC were subject to Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for both

years.

7 % R/ BR 8 79 (40 2 0 £ St PSR B AU IR
16.5% 8B EEHH -

R PG BB TR B BB B 2 fk
HARB A RS FER 2 HEHE - KB E
S B 25 AT PR M4 4420 25% M 1 3 P
"B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to loss before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

12. BN (Z)
REEMIRIEBES LELE
TIREBRT AT ETIE S AR T ¢

BEakEtmeERER

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Loss before tax BRELAT A (330,112) (144,802)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEBFSHBE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) (2016%F : 16.5% )T &Y
18 (54,468) (23,892)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 78R Us A BY T 1% 57 2 (2,155) (272)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AR T RS &
purpose 60,747 18,244
Tax effect of share of results of associates FE(EEE DRI RENTS 2 (9,072) (267)
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures JEIEEE R R EENT G E (66) (122)
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences B AR HE 2 A 055 T B 14 = 58
not recognised (470) (1,515)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences B AR A IR B B4 =581
recognised B2 1,106 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBBHENRISHE 6,298 8,233
Tax effect of tax losses recognised EHERNIBEENNRBETE (397) -
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BT AREROTIA
recognised fE18 (658) (105)
Over-provision in last year BEFEHBERE (40) -
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries AR B & HY BT B A B =
operating in the PRC TNERFE - (5)
Others Hth (11) 22
Income tax expense for the year FEMEMAY 814 321
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13.

14.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company for both years are based
on the following data:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e UBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

13. BAEGiN

ARBHEREARMEFERIGZERERRET

EHERBEA T BURETE ¢

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&IT FET
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted T EBRERRETEE
loss per share ms mEE
Loss for the year attributable to owners RATHEB ANEEFE
of the Company &8 (333,326) (144,718)
Number of Number of
shares shares
A& E fR{nEkE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares METE ERERREEEE
for the purpose of basic and diluted M5 2 &M N9 8
loss per share 518,568,973 421,421,529

No adjustment has been made in calculating the diluted loss
per share amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2017
and 2016 in respect of the share options outstanding as the
options had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share

amounts presented.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes
of basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June
2016 were stated after taking into account the bonus element of
the rights issue and the bonus issue completed in August 2015
and the share consolidation that took effect in March 2016.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2017 (2016: nil).

14.

X R T 20 S IR B A R A R A 1
B MR A BR B AR R 20177
5201646 A30H 1L 48 25 0 S I MBS 1B E
i -

a1 20158 A 5E ik 2 X MAL BB 1T 2 7
ALA R R2016F3 ARz lRih & HF & - ERE
E2016%6 A30F L FE 2 BERERN R EFEE
25 E BRI -

B8
EESTEEREE201746A308 LFE X
REAP B (20165 © &) ©
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

15. ]3% - BB R exiE

Leasehold Furniture Office Computer Motor
improvements  and fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
HERE FUAREE BOERRE BRRE RE i
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
COST BE
At 1 July 2015 R2015%7418 27,422 5,436 9914 5,840 256 48 868
Additions NE 11987 1,656 940 978 - 15,561
Disposals/write off HE /s (10,509) (2,067) (2,230) (932) (256) (15,994)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT (1,113) (102) (492) (52) - (1,759)
At 30 June 2016 12016%6 4308 27,787 4923 8,132 5,834 - 46,676
Additions NE 8,382 1,076 472 2,854 - 12,784
Disposals/write off HE /i (6,714) (912) (1,380) (35) - (9,041)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAF - - (6) (28) - (34)
At 30 June 2017 2017968308 29,455 5,087 7218 8,625 - 50,385
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION BitifE
At 1 July 2015 R2015%7418 18,734 4673 7,618 3,560 66 34,651
Depreciation expense ERY 3,369 376 834 836 20 5,985
Eliminated on disposalsfwrite off & /#3451 8 (9,387) (1,968) (1,932) (318) (86) (13,691)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT (848) (46) (222) (27) - (1,143)
At 30 June 2016 12016564308 12,368 3,035 6,298 4101 - 25,802
Depreciation expense ERY 5,133 582 667 1,105 - 7487
Eliminated on disposalsfwrite off & /i35 15 8 (5,543) (871) (1,304) (34) - (7,752)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAF - - (1) ) - 3)
At 30 June 2017 2017968308 11,958 2,746 5,660 5,170 - 25,534
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 30 June 2017 12017968308 17,497 2,341 1,558 3,455 - 24,851
At30 June 2016 3201646308 15,419 1,888 1,834 1,733 - 20874
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15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

15. 9% - BER MW (E)
NE - BERRENRAENERANE « BH
(EE ET AT A - BEOMERMT -

T

Leasehold improvements 20% HEXE 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% RMMEE 20%
Office equipment 20% WAERME 20%
Computer equipment 20% BRI 20%
Motor vehicles 20% 8 20%
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REME
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At fair value BRAOFE
Balance at beginning of year FH4E 148,900 29,600
Additions NE - 124,525
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss R IBESFERE A F(EE 7,800 (5,225)
Reclassification to assets associated with ENOBENEASELEN
disposal group classified as held for sale HEESRENEE
(Note 30) (BF5E30) (156,700) -
Balance at end of year FRAERR — 148,900

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties.

At 30 June 2016, the Group’s investment properties of
HK$29,100,000 were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

All of the investment properties are situated in Hong Kong under
medium-term lease.

AEBERBEEHERAURRE S HEE ARG
BERENNYERGMERAFEEAGFELDE
RARRIIER B -

R2016%6 4308 + A~5 [#29,100,000/4% JT A%
EMECELER  UARFTAREBNEITHE
YEFER o

FEREMFANRES - URETHPROFE -

Annual Report 2017 F%

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REMEZ)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
30 June 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on the respective date by an independent qualified

professional valuer.

The fair value was determined based on the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis. There has been no
change from the valuation technique used in the prior year. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information

about the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

FEEREMENDFENE

R20165F6 A30R » AEBHREMEN R FET
m—BBYAERMLEMNERAPETHGE
M

RHED2EALBYEREF T REREEZ
MHHEERBETISLBOAEE - L —FEME
A2 EERMILEEE - REAZDEZILFE
B ZMEZESERERRIIERAR

AR A YRS R AT AR E S
mT -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—R B B=W st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiET TiET TiET
As at 30 June 2016 201656 A30H
Commercial property units NREEZ B AMESN
located in Hong Kong - 148,900 - 148,900

At 30 June 2017, the Group’s investment properties were
classified as assets associated with disposal group classified as
held for sale (Note 30).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

17. GOODWILL 17. 8
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
COST 5% 3

Balance at beginning of year REYE 60 60
Balance at end of year RERLER 60 60

CARRYING AMOUNTS RE{E
Balance at end of year RERER 60 60

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following cash-generating unit (“CGU”) during
the years ended 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016:

Money lending

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the Directors covering
a five-year period, and a discount rate of 17% (2016: 21%) per
annum. The key assumptions for the value in use calculation
are those regarding the discount rates, the budgeted revenue
and budgeted expenses during the forecasting periods, which
are determined by management based on past performance

and managements’ expectations for the market development.

The Directors were of the opinion that based on value in use
calculation, there was no impairment of goodwill during the
years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016. The Directors believe
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the

carrying amount of the unit to exceed its recoverable amount.

HZE2017F6 A30H k201656 H30A IEFE -
FREARNE - AECIEZ MRS ELSE
L ([REeEEEM])

BE
RNBGEABN 2 OO SBIREAEER
Eﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂF’ﬂ%tt/ﬁzwﬁzﬁ%%ﬁ#ﬁi
mbgu&ﬁafﬁmﬁilmwomi 1 21%) &
c FREBEENBRBRAEBENHMN
Hafﬁﬁ BEWARBELH  ZEREHER
EBRENTNRALREEESMSEENHEE
T o

EERR RECLAEENE BEREE
20175 X20165F6 A30A L FEWEEE - EF
BE - BREBERAFTKESEREE) ZEMNS
IBR e B N 2 B E AL 2 BRE E A AT
Ol &7 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HthiEL E&E
Franchise
Trademark rights Total
] e it
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
COoST BE
At 1 July 2015, 30 June 2016 and M2015%7A1H ~ 20165
30 June 2017 6H308 & 201746 A30H 2,957 1,979 4936
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND R RRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2015 20157 A1H 2,957 891 3,848
Amortisation expense BIHE R - 198 198
At 30 June 2016 72016565308 2,957 1,089 4,046
Amortisation expense HIHER - 198 198
At 30 June 2017 72017465308 2,957 1,287 4244
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 30 June 2017 72017465308 - 692 692
At 30 June 2016 2016565308 - 890 890

The Group’s trademark protects the design and specification
of “BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE LIMITED” logo, and
was assessed to have an indefinite useful life. On the date
of acquisition (i.e. 31 December 2010), the fair value of this
trademark is assessed using an income approach under
the relief from royalty method by an independent qualified

professional valuer.

Franchise rights represent the right to use the name
“BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE LIMITED” under contractual
franchise agreements in the business of primary tutoring
services. The amortisation period of franchise rights is 10 years.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

AN B R R (R # [ BACHELOR EDUCATION
CENTRE LIMITED I1Esh8) 3% 5T K3 HE » W T E
BEBEBA{FERFTE - U A A1 (B120104
12A31R) ' LEENAFER—BELEER
SEGEMRAERNSHEEMBAEEL T

FETERERE/ N EHEREERNE NI HE
{#FBACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE LIMITED ]
FIBHRER o FRRTHEMBESEER R 104 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REIBATICHR
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of investments TE KA
— Listed — kW 92,030 -
- Unlisted —J3F Lt 5 54,408
Share of post-acquisition results and other IR EEREMER
comprehensive income, net of dividends LONEIEI=N ¢ Y
received 56,377 2,138
Less: Loss in respect of interests in associates & : FLRAHE S A RIS A E IR (117,115) (2,014)
Reclassification to asset classified as BN BEENHEARE
held for sale HERE - (6,455)
Balance at end of year RERER 31,297 48,077
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 30 June 2017 and 2016

are as follows:

Proportion of

19. REFEATZHG(E)

AREBER2017F 201656 A30H HyHE = A Bl

BT -

Place of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued capital held Proportion of
Name of associate operation by the Group voting power held Principal activities
30 1A KB
HELTRRE EEE EBTRFEELLH PRz RAgLL A FERY
2017 2016 2017 2016
Seasoned Leader Limited British Virgin - 47% - 47%  Investment holding and its subsidiaries
(“Seasoned Leader”) [slands (“BVI")/ are principally engaged in the
(note i) Hong Kong provision of vocational education and
training services in Hong Kong
Seasoned Leader Limited BRERHE(X - 47% - 47%  BREALBRRENBAREE
(T'Seasoned Leader]) BEXES])/ REBRSREBESE RIEIRE
(i) HE
Link Resources (Asia) Hong Kong/ = 43% = 43%  Investment holding and its subsidiary is
Limited (“Link Hong Kong principally engaged in the provision
Resources”) (note ii) of various services in relation to
corporate management consultation,
educational consultation (not including
overseas studying consultation),
market information consultation and
other services in the PRC
BAaEA( SN BRAR BB/ BE - 43% - 43% REBERRAMBARFERTENE

(TBmI&A ) (Hati)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

REBEAOXEERN  HERA
(TRIERINTEEN) - MIFEMA
AREMEREREEZ ARG



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Proportion of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e UBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

19. REEATZHG(E)

Place of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued capital held Proportion of
Name of associate operation by the Group voting power held Principal activities
301 FEEME
HELTRRE BEMR EBTRFEELLH PRz RAEgLL e FERE
2017 2016 2017 2016

Modern Legend Hong Kong/ 50% N/A 50% N/A  Investment holding and its subsidiary is
Management Consultant Hong Kong principally engaged in the provision
of Education Limited of private educational and training
(“Modern Legend”) services in the PRC
(note i)

BREGYEEREAR B/ BR 50% TERA 50% TER  REERKHEMBARTIZRTEEE
BAR(IRRERD) REALAZE RIETIRTS
(ki)

Interactive Entertainment Cayman Islands 26.66% N/A 26.66% N/A Investment holding and its subsidiaries
China Cultural and continued are principally engaged in mobile
Technology Investments in Bermuda/ internet cultural business and
Limited (“IE China”) Hong Kong provision of IT services, provision of
(note iv)* hospitality and related services in

Australia, money lending business and
assets investments business

BRPEULRIRIRESR RENETNERE  26.66% TEA 26.66% TR  REAERREMBARTENSZHEHE
RAR([EIRHE]) EFE/BE AU R B RARH B AR B R -
(Hiztiv)* PR R R E KRR RS - E 5

BREBEREREK
* IE China was not audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited * IR B KAR B T A F AT A R 2 Al
or another member firm of HLB global network. BB ARG S — KB EHATER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

On 10 July 2013, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreement with independent third parties, to acquire an
aggregate of 47% interest in Seasoned Leader at a consideration
of HK$45,542,000, representing cash consideration of
HK$47,000,000 less fair value of contingent consideration
receivable of approximately HK$1,458,000 as at the date of
acquisition. Seasoned Leader acts as an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Seasoned Leader
Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of vocational
education and training services in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the agreement (as further varied by the supplemental
agreement dated 8 November 2013), the vendors guaranteed
to the Group that the average of combined NPAT for each of
the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 of Seasoned
Leader Group will be not less than HK$14,000,000, failing
which the vendors shall pay to the Group the shortfall in cash
with a multiplier. On the date of acquisition, the fair value of
the contingent consideration receivable was estimated to be
approximately HK$1,458,000. The fair value was arrived based
on a discounted cash flow analysis of Seasoned Leader Group’s
forecast financial budgets by reference to a valuation carried out
by an independent qualified professional valuer.

In addition, the Group was granted a put option to sell back all
of the acquired shares of Seasoned Leader to the vendors in the
event that the auditors have expressed a qualified opinion or a
disclaimed opinion in any of the audited financial statements of
Seasoned Leader Group for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2015 (“Qualified Event”). The fair value of the put option was
determined to be insignificant at the date of acquisition as the
Directors are of the opinion that such Qualified Event is less likely
to occur on the Seasoned Leader Group for the respective years.

On 30 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a purchaser, an independent third
party, to dispose of 47% of the issued share capital of Seasoned
Leader at the consideration of HK$53,000,000 which is settled
by a promissory note issued by the purchaser. This transaction
has resulted in the recognition of a gain of approximately
HK$1,773,000 in profit or loss. As a result, Seasoned Leader
ceased to be an associate of the Group with effect from
30 December 2016, the date of completion of the sale and
purchase agreement.

19. RBIELARZHE(E)
Mt -

(i)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

MR2013F7A108  AEEEBYE=AHFIVEE
ez - AU B HEADAM (B45,542,000%8 T (AR &
K &47,000,0007% JT i FE W sk AR ME 2 AFEL
1,458,0007% 7T ) Ut 8% Seasoned Leaderty & #£47%
T2t ° Seasoned LeaderB — IS B A B LA K
E B A 7 (457 Seasoned Leader & |) T &
BREBIRMER A ISR o

BRIz ta (KB A2013F11 A8A 2 # i
HmE—FER) BARASERE - Seasoned
Leader £ B & £ 2014 F & 20154 12 A31 B 1t
MEFESFZFEFHAHBBREBENERDR
14,000,000/ 7T * BRIBHARAAEBUR S
NEFEMEFSE - RIKERE  BURSARE
Z N EMGE41,4580008 7 © A FEETIER
E-—ABUAEREEHEMET ZHERRBIE
Seasoned Leader&s B 2 FEAT I BEE 2 T RE &
REDOWE -

IS - HAZ Z AT A Seasoned LeaderE B & 2014
F2015F 12 A31 B I F & 2 TS B A% 0 75 5
FHRRRREBERNIERBERER([REERS
H]) - BIAREEBER T IBRHE  URE
77 & i Seasoned Leader® #pE W EERR 1D - AR E
=R ASeasoned Leader BN & FEHAZER
BERBMHZ MG/ - R KE A - 04
B A ERRBTER °

M20165F12 5308 » AEBEE H (ABILE =
77 ) &1 3 B 17 3% bA H & Seasoned Leader B 217
f% AR 47% - KA 4 53,000,0007% 7T+ 5% I8
THEFBITEARZERENS - kR SBHKFLD
1,773,000 e R 8z iR o It - Seasoned
Leader 82016512 4308 (B & 5Tk B &) #E
THEAREEMNEE QA -



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

On 4 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase and subscription agreement with an independent
third party and Link Resources, to acquire and subscribe for an
aggregate of approximately 43% interest in Link Resources at
a consideration of approximately HK$8,866,000, representing
cash consideration of HK$9,500,000 less fair value of contingent
consideration receivable and put option of approximately
HK$353,000 and HK$281,000 respectively as at the date of
acquisition. Link Resources acts as an investment holding
company and its subsidiary (collectively, “Link Resources Group”)
is principally engaged in the provision of various services in
relation to corporate management consultation, educational
consultation (not including overseas studying consultation),
market information consultation and other related services in the
PRC.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 11 February 2014
(as further varied by the supplemental agreement dated 28 April
2015), the vendor guarantees to the Group that the aggregate
consolidated NPAT for the three years ending 31 December
2015, 2016 and 2017 of Link Resources Group will be not less
than HK$9,000,000, failing which the vendors shall pay to the
Group the shortfall in cash with a multiplier. The fair value of
the contingent consideration receivable was determined to be
approximately HK$353,000 at the date of acquisition. The fair
value was arrived based on a discounted cash flow analysis of
Link Resources Group’s forecast financial budgets by reference to
a valuation carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer.

In addition, the Group was granted a put option (as further varied
by the supplemental agreement dated 28 April 2015) to sell all or
part of the acquired shares of Link Resources to the vendor in the
event that:

o if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31 December
2017 of Link Resources Group is less than the average
of consolidated NPAT for each of the three years ending
31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017, the Group shall
become bound to sell and the vendor shall become bound
to purchase all or part of 28% of the issued share capital of
Link Resources upon exercise of the option; and

o if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31 December
2018 of Link Resources Group is less than HK$1,500,000,
the Group shall become bound to sell and the vendor shall
become bound to purchase all or part of 43% of the issued
share capital of Link Resources upon exercise of the option.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

19. RBIELARZHE(E)
wist - (4)

(i) M2013F9R4H - REERKWHE HHE -2
NEZJNERIERT L - EEMRB R
LA 8 498,866,000 7T ( B 2 & X 89,500,000
BIUREREARERREREZ X FED L
353,000/ 7T 52 281,000/ 7. ) Wi K iR R 8 m] 45 o)
BE HA43% M - BT EAR—MREZERR
AIAREMERR (SREIEA EREE ) T2
ERPRREHEBCEEREN  BEHFACTE
EBINTETER) - 5 & K E A B R AR
FEZ IR -

BEEEA2014F2A11B 2 REHE(EESRA
2015F4 A28 A 2 iz it —H15:]) » B A
REERE - Bin] ZHEEBZ20154F « 2016F
F2017F12A31 8 It = AFE 258 BFE LR
48 %8 1 N b FA9,000,000/8 7T - B RIE H AR AE
BB STMEENEASE NIREBRRE - &
Wk ARE 2 A FEDEE 353,000 ° AF
BENE2E—BBUAERAEGBEMETZE
BRBEBIEAEE 2BV EE ZITRR
TRESNETE -

PEAN - B E TR - RIASREGER T —1E
POHEIRE (48 B #3R2015F4 A28 H v i
—HHER]) - LNAE A E LB B2 I MNE
U BERR 1D -

o (WERIEREEBZE2017F12A318LFE
EREBRTRBEH DR B E20155F 20164
K20175 12 A31 B IF = AFE & E 2 T4
ABRFBIRAT - NEBNITEREZER S
EHUREHEHNE BB AR 3k 3
DEEITRAN28% &

o (MR AAEEEHE2018FI2A3IHIEF
B2 4R A R BR AL A A1 1,500,000 7T
REENMTERRREBLELARETE
BB BB T A2 A0 BITRAR
43% ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

The fair value of the put option was determined to be
approximately HK$281,000 at the date of acquisition. The fair
value is arrived based on a discounted cash flow analysis of Link
Resources Group's forecast financial budgets by reference to a
valuation carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer.

On 30 June 2016, the Group entered into the disposal agreement
with the independent third parties in relation to dispose of
approximately 43% of issued share capital of Link Resources at
the cash consideration of HK$7,000,000. The equity interest in
Link Resources was reclassified as “asset classified as held for
sales” on 30 June 2016 (Note 31).

On 27 July 2016, the Group completed the disposal of
approximately 43% of the issued share capital of Link Resources.
This transaction has resulted in the recognition of a gain of
approximately HK$439,000 in profit or loss. As a result, Link
Resources ceased to be an associate of the Group with effect from
27 July 2016.

On 18 November 2016, Modern Legend was incorporated and
the Group subscribed 50% equity interest of Modern Legend.
The Group has ability to exercise significant influence through its
shareholding.

On 9 September 2016, Fastek Investments Limited (“Fastek”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and a vendor,
an independent third party of the Company, entered into the
sales and purchase agreement pursuant to which Fastek agreed
to purchase and the vendor agreed to sell 492,576,511 IE China
Shares (“Sale Share(s)”), representing approximately 10% of
the total issued share capital of IE China as at 9 September
2016, at consideration of approximately HK$32,510,000 (i.e.
approximately HK$0.066 per Sale Share). As a result, the Group
held approximately 28.88% of the then total issued share capital
of IE China and has ability to exercise significant influence through
its shareholding. The Group reclassified the interests in IE China
from held-for-trading investments to interest in an associate and
accounted for using the equity method of accounting during the
year ended 30 June 2017. On the date that IE China became
an associate of the Group, the Directors performed a purchase
price allocation of the total cost, including deemed costs
represented by the fair value of the interests previously classified
as held-for-trading investments, against the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities with reference
to valuations carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer. As a result, a gain on bargain purchase of approximately
HK$216,549,000 was recognised in profit or loss at the date of
acquisition and included in the determination of the Group’s share
of the results of the associate for the year ended 30 June 2017.

19. RBIELARZHE(E)
At - ()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

(%)

KU HE - L ER 2 AT EBEEEX281,000
B RATEDNRSE-ZBUAEREEME
BT 2 MERREE A EREE B BE
B2 AR RENNE -

M2016F6A308 - ALEMEFIFE =] HE
fhaz - AAA BIAIR £ {E7,000,0005 7T H & B
Al BB BT AR 4943% o 1201656 A30H
PR BN EET O BAI P EABIERES
EJ(MI5E31) »

MR2016F7 A278 « AEBE K HEB A ARE
TTREARAIA3% - WX 5B B2 49439,00078 T A
B PR - Fit - Bir] AW E2016567 2788
THEIEARNERNBE AR

R20165F11A18A » AL REEMMATL - K&k
ERERRESM50%IE - REHEMEBHE
BAETTEERTEN -

MW2016F9 A9H + ARAIMMEEZENE A A
Fastek Investments Limited ([ Fastek |) £2 & 77 (4%
NEIMBYE=F)EI ML BEEWS - Bt © Fastek
RIEEEMmMS AR EHE492,576,51 1% B 1R E
RE ([SEERRD ) - I ERFPBMR2016F9 A9H
BETRAARELL0% - RIEA#132,510,0007
TC(BIERR S5 & MR 15 490.06678 7T ) » Eitt + AEE
RBELHIRPBEERD BITRABEL28.88% « &
WEBHRBTFEERNTE SN - AEEEZ2017
FOANALEFEBNERFRANEZHFIEE
EREEFOEENBE AR MR - WKARE
=EFHEYR o RERF BN AR S B M E A
AER  EEpYUrEEEGMKEEERAE
AEFEMNBERA(BEBREDBEABFEEENR
B ERARNTFEZRINRIERNT)FEZEEE
DL 2 E— LB S ERBEGEMETT
RfHE - Bt - WEEREURE49216,549,0007%8 7T
RUE B BRIBESRER Yt A\BEEAEEHZ
20176 A30A I FE 2 PR & A RIZEE -



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(Continued)

On 20 September 2016, 22 September 2016 and 27 September
2016, several shareholders of |E China had exercised their share
options and the Group’s shareholding over IE China had diluted
from approximately 28.88% to approximately 26.66%. Loss
on deemed disposal arising from the above share dilution of
approximately HK$16,608,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 30 June 2017.

As at 30 June 2017, the Directors noted the downward trend
of IE China’s share price. Therefore, the Directors performed
an impairment assessment on the interest in IE China. Based
on the assessment, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$100,507,000 was recognised during the year ended 30 June
2017. The fair value of the Group’s interest in the associate was
determined by reference to the quoted market price of the shares
in IE China as at 30 June 2017.

|IE China is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
continued in Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange, acts as an
investment holding company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“IE China Group”) are principally engaged in the mobile internet
cultural business and provision of IT services, provision of
hospitality and related services in Australia, money lending
business and assets investments business.

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information of each of the Group’s

material associates is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s

financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

19. RBiEARIZER(Z)
BaE - (48)
(iv) (%)

201649 H20H ~ 201659 A22 A 220164
9R27 8 - HiRh B L AR 1T 68 H B A
REERE RS EA ISR L28.88% HEEL

26.66% © |-t {7 S A I e R O HE 40
16,608,000/ 7L 8 £ 201746 A30H ILF EMNE
MR -

R201746 A30R » EEMEBERPBELEN 1T
B% - Bt - EERNERPENERETRE
A o ERRFE - B{EER49100,507,0008 TTH
BIE20175F6 A30R L FEMR - ARERBZE R
AREN A FENE2ZERPBEKMHR2017F
6 A30H IS MEETE

ERPES-HRRASHESEMRL LR ERE
FEzBRRR - ARG PTAIZER (A%
1) £ - ERIEER AR R ENE A E (5
[BERMBEEE]) TEREBH EBALES
R ERARRRS - PORM RGOS KRR IR
% BREEXBREEREER

EXBEQNT M BENEE
AEBEEEABERAZHHERB RIS
T o TPtz B ERBEE TR 2 R BRI

BEWHREENFER W HERRPAREE -
RSB ERRRGEEMBERRT O RAER

JENER ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z201746 A308 It FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

(Continued)
Seasoned Leader Group

19. RBIERXTIZRG(E)

EABMERRAZMBERNMERE)

Seasoned Leader & /&

As at

30 June 2016

F20165F

6H30H

HK$'000

FEIT

Current assets mENEE 28,159

Non-current assets IEMBEE 3,359

Current liabilities meaE 20,206

Non-current liabilities IEmENBE -
For the period

from 1 July 2016 to Year ended

30 December 2016 30 June 2016

B20165%7AH1H HZE20165F

ZE20165 128308 6H30H

1EHAR HEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAEIT FEr

Revenue A 40,487 73,008

Profit for the period/year 8/ ERNiEF 6,701 6,281

Other comprehensive income for the period/year 8/ FREMEERA - —

Total comprehensive income for the period/year 8,/ FREERALE 6,701 6,281

Dividend received from the associate B E N AIRLE - 7,050

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HB# 5 (B REEEERQT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RIMBELARIZRER(E)
Summarised financial information of material associates EABENRZHBEERBREE)
(Continued)
Seasoned Leader Group (Continued) Seasoned Leader%E B (42)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to Ll B 7% R B4R A B T R N P R A B
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised ERRZEREEECEERNAT ¢

in the consolidated financial statements:

2016

HK$'000

FET

Net assets of Seasoned Leader Group Seasoned Leaderf:[& 7 & /558 11,312
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REE A Seasoned Leaderfs B A 1

interest in Seasoned Leader Group g ayded ]l 47%

Goodwill EES 42760
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REE A Seasoned Leaderts B Ay S

Seasoned Leader Group ZHRMEE 48,077
IE China Group TR EE

As at

30 June 2017

R2017%

6A30H

HK$’000

FETT

Current assets MENEEE 455,566

Non-current assets ERBEE 531,224

Current liabilities mENBE 299,676

Non-current liabilities ERBAG 178,107
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)

19. RBEXTRZREH)
EABEAAZHBENRE D)

IE China Group (Continued) L e ()

For the period from

9 September 2016

to 30 June 2017

B20165F9AR9H

F201756A30H

1EHAR

HK$'000

FET

Revenue WA 308,299
Loss from continuing operations REFECEEBHER (602,118)
Post-tax profit from discontinued operations REDKIEEEEBRRTI R R 513
Loss for the period HIN &1 (601,605)
Other comprehensive income for the period HIAE M2l 16,598
Total comprehensive expense for the period HAN2EAS A% (584,647)
Dividend received from the associate Bl E AR S =

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

R B R AR R B AR A B R P P R AR O B
BRAZEmREE SR T

2017

HK$’000

FET

Net assets of IE China Group BIRPEIRE  BEEFRE 509,007

Less: Non-controlling interests B IR (465)

Equity attributable to owners of IE China BRI E A B ER 508,542
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REBEREIRPBESE R AR

in IE China Group W2 L 26.66%

Impairment loss REEE (100,507)

Other adjustments H A% (3,773)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REBNEIRFBIEE 2

IE China Group ZIRMEE 31,297

180 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

19. RBIERXTIZRG(E)

EABMEQRAZMBERNMEE)

(Continued)
Information of an associate that is not individually material 1B B T~ E A BB 2 el 54
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
The Group’s share of post-tax loss AEEEIGRRTEEE (5) —
The Group’s share of other comprehensive AEEEGEEMEERE
income = —
The Group’s share of total comprehensive AEEEGE2HEMT B
expense (5) -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REERBE T ZERZ
interest in the associate IRMEBE - —
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REEBNATIZIES
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of unlisted investments JEEMREKA 14,250 14,250
Share of post-acquisition results, net of R B E A (FIRE K
dividends received BB (6,251) (4,652)
Balance at end of year RERLERR 7,999 9,598
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
At 30 June 2017, the Group had interests in the following joint

ventures:

Proportion of
Place of nominal value of

incorporation and issued capital

20. REBLARIZER(E)
MR2017F6 A30H @ AEERUTEERRHESR

e

1

BX

X -

Proportion of

Name of joint venture operation held by the Group voting power held Principal activity
EMRIR FREMRBERT
RELFRE BEMR BAEELE PRz RAgLL A FERE
2017 2016 2017 2016

Full Profit Hong Kong Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% 50%  Provision of management and
Development Limited consultancy services for kindergartens
(“Full Profit") (note i)

BEEERRARRDA BE 50% 50% 50% 50%  AYTERRERERAARSE
(1&RL]) (W)

Creative Education Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% 50%  Provision of private educational and
Technology Limited training services
(“Creative Education”)
(note i)

BIEHBMBERAT B0 50% 50% 50% 50%  REFLAHKE RIEIRE
(TRIZHE (M)

Notes: Wizt -

()

On 8 April 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, to acquire 50% equity
interest in Full Profit at a cash consideration of HK$14,000,000.
Pursuant to the agreement, the vendor guarantees to the Group
that profit after tax for each of the two years ended 30 June 2014
and 2015 of Full Profit will be not less than HK$4,000,000, failing
which the vendor shall pay to the Group the shortfall in cash with
a multiplier. The acquisition was reflected as the purchase of
intangible assets represented by service contracts with ten years
useful life as Full Profit has not commenced its operations at the
date of acquisition. For the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2015,
the profit after tax of Full Profit and its subsidiary (“Full Profit
Group”) reached not less than HK$4,000,000 and has fulfilled the
profit guarantee for the two years ended 30 June 2014 and 2015
which it made to the Group. The Directors are of the opinion that
as Full Profit has fulfilled the profit guarantee for the two years
ended 30 June 2014 and 2015 and hence the fair value of the
profit guarantee is insignificant as at 30 June 2015. The profit
guarantee has been expired during the year ended 30 June 2016.

(i)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

R2013F4A8R » REBEBR - L BIE=777]L
BE W LR HKE14,0000008 THER L
B50% B - IRIFZ M - B RAEEER -
BENEZE2014F & 2015F6 A30H IEM{EFE
FEMRBRE N2 104,000,0008 7T - B
EHAMAEENRE XN EENEADE - B
REBERIEE R BT RRGEE KB EER
RABEIRE S OMEATFAERFHOETY
BE c BlE2014F K2015F6 A30HILFE - &
LREMBAR([BRLEE ) ZBRZENZED
454,000,000/ 7T » W E T MAE B EL 2
B ZE20144F 2201546 A 30 H - M8 F Z 2 i
RiE - BEZRR ARARLETREE2014F K
201556 A30R \EMESE 2 MRE - Bt - &
MEREE QT ER201556 H30AL AEK © & F
REENEZE2016F6 H30H IEFEFIH -



20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

On 3 June 2013, the Group entered into an agreement with a
joint venture partner (“JV Partner”) in relation to the formation of
Creative Education. Pursuant to the agreement, each of the Group
and the JV Partner holds 50% equity interest in Creative Education
by contributing cash of HK$250,000 each by the Group and the
JV Partner and may increase the investment in Creative Education
up to a total amount of HK$20,000,000 with prior consent of each
other.

Pursuant to the agreement between the Group and the JV Partner:

o in the event that the JV Partner (or the holding company of
the JV Partner or a company which is owned as to 50% or
more by the JV partner) has met the listing requirements of
the Taiwan Stock Exchange (including listing on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange, listing on the GreTai Securities Market and
registration on the Emerging Stock Board) or GEM of the
Stock Exchange, the JV Partner shall be entitled the right
to subscribe an additional 10% equity interest in Creative
Education at a subscription price determined at the net asset
value of Creative Education or five times of profit after tax of
Creative Education, whichever is higher (“JV Partner’s Call
Option™); and

o in the event that Creative Education has met the listing
requirements of GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Group
shall be entitled the right to subscribe an additional 10%
equity interest in Creative Education at a subscription price
determined at the net asset value of Creative Education or
five times of profit after tax of Creative Education, whichever
is higher (“Group’s Call Option”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the Group’s Call
Option and the JV Partner’s Call Option is insignificant at date of
incorporation of the joint venture and at the end of the reporting
period.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

20. REBENFIZEE(E)
HIzE - ()

(i) M2013%F6H3H AEEHRAEEH([AEE
DRI EIBEHRET L — DB - BIEZH
HAEREAEBHRAEBAAEREAE
B IR ST A 250,000 T R B A
50% M1 - BRfRE B BARENERL MR
BIEHE IR E &% 45 420,000,000 7T ©

RIEAEEESERNZ BT -

s MAEBH(HABBRHNERAFL—H
EE/\é%Wi%*ﬁ%O%dZLM:%‘ OPNCIDER]
EREESRIM(BRRGEBERRSM

A A /SR

T R BB BT R EAB T ) Sk 3 P

BIERM LRSS - RIGBEBHEERILR
BERABHENEEFERAEHRER

BEBENNAEERARSERE)EE)
RIBEIZHBEREINO% BRI ([ S ERHZE
HrEl Rk

o  (HEIBHBFABMRATAIZERN ETHES -
AIARSEEEEEERREEBUREEHENE
EFEXAEHERBEREFNAZEE
(UREeEAE)ET) RBAIZHBRTI
10% A% ([ A EEREHE]) -

BERL AEERBHER S SRR ELE
AEE QRIS B E R RS BHARNAFEL
TEKX o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.

EXRRELTZUBERNEE

AEBEEBEAGERAZUBERBEZETIM
T o TXFrt 2 AR R T 18/ 2 A RIRIE
BRMBREENREZVIERERTPIRER

BERANERERENLFREMBRERAR

Full Profit Group BEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FEIT
Current assets mENEE 4,626 5,147
Non-current assets IEMBEE 6 10
Current liabilities mEIBE 1,304 823
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the FHEEREBESEBIENATSE
following:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FEIT
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 4,592 5,109

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and  REh& A E(TEIEEZE S K
other payables and provisions) Hoh A FRIE R ) -

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HB# 5 (B REEEERQT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20. REEBARIZER(Z)
Summarised financial information of material joint ventures ERGENTAZUBERBREE)
(Continued)
Full Profit Group (Continued) £ )
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue WA 6,168 7,792
Profit for the year FEHEF 2,995 3,669
Other comprehensive income for the year FEAEMEEKA - —
Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2EBALLTE 2,995 3,669
Dividend received from the joint venture EFERINCI ol SN 2,000 1,500
The above profit for the year includes the following: L FEENBENATSIA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Depreciation and amortisation e RiE 4 4
Interest income FEUA 1 1
Taxation I8 601 701
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20. REBAFIZERE)
Summarised financial information of material joint ventures BEREERNTIZHBERMEE)
(Continued)

Full Profit Group (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in Full Profit Group

£ 585%)

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

R AR R ERNR A M SRR AR R
REEERSREEIHERDT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net assets of Full Profit Group BEEEMNEEFE 3,328 4,326
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interestin ~ AEBR R L EE R A EERE
Full Profit Group Eol=al] 50% 50%
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition iR AT EAR  ZE 14,000 14,000
Other adjustments E bR (7,728) (6,632)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Full ~ ANEBERBLEEER 2
Profit Group ] 7,936 9,531
Information of a joint venture that is not individually material BEIE T EAHE E L aE#
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
The Group’s share of post-tax loss REBEEERTEBE (4) (4)
The Group’s share of other comprehensive AEEREEEMEZE
income ON - —
The Group’s share of total comprehensive AEERGEZAERMY
expense Haza (4) (4)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REEREGERFIERL
interests in the joint venture HERTEE 63 67

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF



21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

21. MHAERE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BB LETERAES  BATE
at fair value (note i) (Bi&ti) 35,514 16,914
Unlisted investment fund, at cost (note i) ELETRERES - WA
(H1a#ii) 9,054 9,208
Unlisted equity interest in overseas YBINE_E TR AR R
at fair value (note iii) WRTAE( M atii) 38,715 -
83,283 26,122

Notes:

(i)

The listed equity securities represent the shares of GET Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 8100) (“GET”) and Target Insurance
(Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 6161) (“Target Insurance”) which
were stated at fair value with reference to the quoted market bid
price in the Stock Exchange. During the year ended 30 June 2017,
the Group subscribed an aggregate of 15,956,078 GET rights
shares for an aggregate subscription amount of approximately
HK$8,297,000 and acquired an aggregate of 5,000,000 Target
Insurance shares on the market through the Stock Exchange for
an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$11,593,000.
During the year ended 30 June 2017, there were a gain on fair
value change in the investment of approximately HK$2,553,000
on GET shares (2016: loss on fair value change in the investment
of approximately HK$53,768,000) and loss on fair value change
in the investment of approximately HK$3,843,000 on Target
Insurance shares (2016: nil) recognised in the consolidated other
comprehensive income (expense), which was reflected in the
“investment revaluation reserve” within equity of the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the investment on Target
Insurance shares was determined to be impaired and the loss of
approximately HK$3,843,000 initially recognised in the investment
revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit or loss.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the investment on GET
shares was determined to be impaired and the cumulative loss
of approximately HK$53,768,000 initially recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit or loss.

et -

() LEHRABHFESERBIFAARTISEAR
BRATEIENE ZERAERAR (BRMDR
8100) (18 % 1) BFEmirke (k) ER AR (K
I8 6161) ([ FERER 1) BB - BZE20174
6A30H IEFE - A& HREE S 15,956,078
B 2R ) (R EB R %EX8,297,0008 7T ) K iE
B 22 PR T 5 | W BB & $£5,000,000 4% 2= A0k
B2l {n - 4B 411,593,000/ 7T © Bt 220174
6A30RALFE  Rga Eib 2 mE ik () F
BRONEZRONRE R TFEZE D WED
2,553,000/ 7L (20164 : R E RN FEEEHHE
#53,768,0008 7T ) RN F IR R AR 1)1 E A F
EE ) EE473,843,000/8 7T (20165 : M) » H
TRAEEEEARE S ARG AR -

REZE2017F6A30H IFFER - R|INRRAH K
BI5IREE T ARE T H1a 18 & E 1 T i
REEHEX)3,843,000/8 TREEHMH AT EE

REE2016F6 A30R LFER - BZMMIKET)
WEE T ARET MR R E E G ET ERK
RETE51E453,768,0008 T EH HIEE B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &% & (B

The unlisted investment fund represents the investment in private
fund established in the Cayman lIslands. The unlisted investment
is held for an identified long term strategic purpose so the Group
does not intend to dispose them in the foreseeable future. The
investment is measured at cost less impairment at the end of
the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that
the fair values cannot be measured reliably. During the year ended
30 June 2017, the management had determined an impairment
loss of approximately HK$154,000 (2016: approximately
HK$731,000) by making reference to the statements of accounts
provided by the fund administrators.

On 9 November 2016, Fastek, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a subscription agreement with the
investee and the guarantor, to subscribe approximately 9.49% of
unlisted equity interest at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$28,459,000. On 24 January 2017, Fastek further subscribed
13 rights shares of the unlisted equity interest at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$2,372,000. The investee
acts as an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Investee Group”) are principally engaged in the
dealing in securities, advising on securities, advising on corporate
finance, asset management, provision of wealth management
service and money lending business in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the agreement, the guarantor guarantees to Fastek
that consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31 December 2017 of
the Investee Group will be not less than HK$28,000,000, failing
which the guarantor shall pay to the Group the shortfall in cash
with a multiplier. On the date of subscription, in the opinion of the
Directors, no contingent consideration receivable is recognised
as the fair value of the contingent consideration receivable is not
significant. The fair value at both the date of subscription and
the end of the reporting period of unlisted equity interest and
contingent consideration are arrived based on market approach
and expected cash flow approach of the Investee Group’s forecast
financial budgets respectively, by reference to valuations carried
out by an independent qualified professional valuer.

21. ATEHERR(E)

Hist - (#8)

(ii)

(i)

BIREEBER DT

FLETREESENHSHEXIZMAZERR
B o ELMIRADFHERT EER KRR
EAEERAREARE IS RIEHE - ZEK
ERNHERRURAGREESE  RESEE
NYPEGESBEFEEEZ  BEFRAR/QFETE
SRR - REIE20176F6A30H EFER - £2
ZHEBMEMRHENKRBERKE  EREEE
(B B 18 49 154,00078 7T (2016 4F : £9731,00078
T) °

R20169F 11 A9H - i 2 B K& 1 Bl Fastek £
WIRE DB RERAFTIRBBE - URERE
#928,459,0007%8 JT R 8 IE - AR #EA99.49% o 1
201741248 - Fastek AZR & R 1B 472,372,000
BT — ﬁw,ﬁ#tmﬂx%lwxﬁﬁi WIRE Ty
REREZER T&EHE 7(%@(%&&&
SEDEIERENBTENB LRS- BFHS
ERERH BEERE Tmﬁttﬁ?fﬁ“”@}%ﬁ&&
EEER -

BB - ZIERAAFastekiRBWIREEENE
F2017F12A31 B L FEMEZEEABRTBELFE T
428,000,000 7T+ & BIYER AZB M AN E A
BeINEZENETE8E - RRABAE BEER
B WERREWRSARE - EE#EW&%&
BRFEWTERKX - IELTRERZARENRR
BHBERERRNAFEDERTEERESR
E-LRUEEBRBEEGEMETHENHIEE
EEEAMKIEENERE S RS ABER -



22.

23.

NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

22. BN R &

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental deposits (Note 23) Hems (Wit23) 8,043 5,640
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. B R HEMEWRIA
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Accrued revenue and trade receivables FEETUIR AN B 5 W IE 917 1,281
Rental deposits Heks 11,104 19,958
Other deposits Hige 896 6,342
Prepayments FEfTFIE 5,491 6,353
Other receivables E e Y zkIE 15,833 8,153
34,241 42,087
Less: Rental deposits (shown under W eke (FIAFERE
non-current assets) BE) (8,043) (5,640)
Trade and other receivables (shown under H 5 K H Ah W EIE
current assets) (PIATREEE) 26,198 36,447
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. S R EMBWKRREE)

The following is an aged analysis of accrued revenue and trade
receivables, presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period which approximated the respective revenue

recognition dates:

AT ARBEREHREZAH(REZEARERA
HIIRE ) 25 M EEHIRA K B 5 FEUOR KA iR iR 7
A

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Accrued revenue not yet billed &R 5 AR B A BRI 468 563
Trade receivables: B EWGRIA

0-30 days 0&30H 271 248

31-60 days 31Z260H 84 95

61-90 days 61£90H 24 18

Over 90 days HBi#E90H 70 357

917 1,281

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$70,000
(2016: approximately HK$357,000) which were past due as
at the end of the reporting period for which the Group did
not provide for impairment loss. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances. The aging of these receivables
was over 90 days (2016: over 90 days).

As at 30 June 2017, accrued revenue and trade receivables
primarily arose from the continuing franchise income of primary
tutoring service to franchisees (2016: arose from the continuing
franchise income of primary tutoring service to franchisees and
advertising income). The accrued revenue is not yet due as it is
billed in arrears. The credit periods are ranged from 30 days to
90 days. There is no credit period granted for tuition fee as they
are normally received in advance.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

AEENESRERUEREHRBIERDRELY
70,0007 7t (2016 4F : #7357,0007%8 L) M E 7
R 5 HA AR 8 B T AN &R B 30 oK i VR R E B 1B
BENERTE ASETERZSZERTE
EAEER - ZFERBFENIRER ABBI0H
(20164 : #B#E90R) °

R201746 A308 - ERHIRA R E 5 EUGRIA T
TEREFEANMBRLEERE N EHEREH
FrRFE S A (20165 : RERFBRMBLLEER
BB RE R ERAREERA) - i
REFTIARBIRE LIRS - A AREH - FE
HINMFI0HEQARZME - ANBEAKSEE -
I EHSEREEY -



24.

25.

PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE

On 30 December 2016, Rosy Lane Investments Limited (“Rosy
Lane”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a purchaser, an independent
third party, to dispose of 47% of the issued share capital of
Seasoned Leader, a former associate of the Group, at the
consideration of HK$53,000,000, which was settled by the
promissory note issued by the purchaser.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e UBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

24. B R RIE

7 2016 12 A 30 H * Rosy Lane Investments
Limited([Rosy Lane| * EE 2 &NEB A F]) EE7
E=H(ERBER)FILEEREALEARERR
%4\ A)Seasoned Leader@ BT AMA7% » £
853,000,000/ 7T + A BV E FBITERLE
BER -

As at 30 June 2017, the promissory note receivable is secured M2017F6 308 » YRR EEHRE TSI
by share mortgage executed by the purchaser, bear interest BREFEI0%FT BN IZIBIERT - WEN I
at the rate of 10% per annum and shall be repaid on the day FRETRR—AFEREER -
falling on first anniversary of the date of issue of this note.
LOAN RECEIVABLES 25. Bl B
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loan receivables e E TR 27,089 40,836
Less: Balances due within one year included B R—EREEAmMET ARSE)
in current assets BE &% (27,089) (19,045)
Non-current portion JERBNE D - 21,791

Loan receivables represent outstanding principals and interest
arising from the money lending business of the Group. All of the
loan receivables are entered with original contractual maturity
within 1 to 2 years. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its loan receivables in order to minimise credit risk by
reviewing borrowers’ and their guarantors’ financial positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually
agreed between the contracting parties, ranging from 8% to
13% (2016: 8% to 10%) per annum. As at 30 June 2017, loan
receivable of approximately HK$4.11 million was secured by
pledged equity shares beneficially owned by the borrower (2016:
unsecured).

Loan receivables were neither past due nor impaired at the end
of the reporting period.

e EFIEmARERBERBMES Z HAKE
e RFE - AAEZERKEFFAFIRE T H
BN FRIZE2FR o AKE N RERBRIEHE
FEWE R - BRBEERBRAREERAZF BN
o LR EEERR -

EREFIZAT O 2 BREBE N ENFBF
8% ZE13% (20164 : 8% ZE10%)ET B © FA20174
6H30R ' EWERKA14,110,0008 TTIABERAE
A 2 A D HIREIER(20164F - HBIK3H) -

RBEHR - BREFHEBIRE

Annual Report 2017 F%

191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 26. FEURRE: S I8
Maximum amounts
outstanding during the year
REARKREEHNRSRE
At At
30 June 30 June
2017 2016 2017 2016
120174 PR20164F
6H30H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FET FEIT
Modern English Limited RREEBEERAA - 1,164 1,164 1,164
World Wide Resources RFERERBRAT
Management Limited = 136 136 136
Modern iClass Limited BREZTHERRAA
(“Modern iClass”) ([RRZTHE]) - 42 528 42
- 1,342

nulr

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

ZEFAREEMN - RERIRBEREEE - KK
(5] 215 BEHSE 7 O BR R IO BT E4D(a) R ©

i)

repayable on demand. The relationships with the Group of each
related party are disclosed in Note 45(a).

Modern iClass became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of HRZITHEB2016FE11 A4 K AR D TR
the Company with effective from 4 November 2016 (Note 42). M2 BB AR (HFE42) -

192 Hong Kong Education (Int') Investments Limited ~ &8%7 (B R & £@ER A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

27. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 27. Bl —MBE A FRIE

28.

Maximum amounts

outstanding during the year

REARREENRS LN
At At
30 June 30 June
2017 2016 2017 2016
#20175 20164
6A30H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET
Modern Legend BRES 291 — 291 —
The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable SZIE A - 28 NIRERESEE -

on demand.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 28 i A FEH ABSHSMIE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET TFET
Equity securities classified as held-for-trading R iEBIFEESIHRFES
— Listed equity securities in Hong Kong at fair ~ —IZ A EFIIRNES
value (Note i) MRATE 75 (Hazi) 91,126 359,914
Financial assets designated at fair value EBERAOTFEHIAAELSY
through profit or loss eREE
— Unlisted investment fund, at fair value — R AFEYROGIELET
(Note ii) WEES (i) 61,097 -
152,223 359,914
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

29.

0]

(ii)

The amount represents equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The
fair values of the investments are determined with reference to the
quoted market bid prices in the Stock Exchange.

On 9 September 2016, the interest in IE China of approximately
HK$59,520,000 was reclassified from equity securities classified
as held-for-trading to interest in an associate (Note 19 (iv)).

On 22 March 2017, the Group through Wise Action Limited
(“Wise Action”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, subscribed
for 7,750 participating shares in an unlisted investment fund
with a subscription amount of US$7,750,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$60,927,000). The unlisted investment fund
represents a private fund established in the Cayman Islands. The
management had determined a fair value gain of approximately
HK$170,000 based on closing net asset value of the fund at
30 June 2017 and recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 30 June 2017.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carried interest at market rates ranging from
0.001% to 0.02% (2016: 0.001% to 0.02%) per annum.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group’s bank balances and cash with

an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$554,000
(2016: HK$1,000) were denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and

placed with bank in the PRC, which is not a freely convertible

currency in the international market. The government of the

PRC has implemented foreign exchange control and the

remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange

restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC.

28. BROAFHEHARSHEMREE)

wis -

(0

(i)

ZIREEE LTRAES - ZERENRY
ENR2ERBI AT S EABRETE -

M2016F9A9H r REKRPENEZRY
59,520,000 T D BIFIEEENR AT SFE
o kAR — B E QR RS (HFEL9 (V) °

MR2017F3A22H + AEEBREBEERAR([E
Bl ME2ENBAR)RE—EIELTRER
S H7,7508 2 B D - FREEEEA7,750,000F T
(HE R 4960,927,00087C) - FELMBRERES A
—ERMESEERINALEES TEERES
7201746 A30 B & EFEE T A FERZEL
170,000/8 7T * WHEZE201746 A30B ILFEERH

fi=Fal

29. BTGRP £
BITHEBIZN T EFH0.001%%E0.02% (20164 :
0.001%Z0.02% )5 F| R 8. -

20176 308 - 2<% B 42 AR {B 49554,0007%
7e(2016%F : 1,000/870) ZSRITHEHBRIBEAAR
BTAREDE - AHFERHENRT  MAR
BIXFBEEMS L2 ARREREE - FEBAE
BITMNEES - BERELPRFEINAXPEBUT
Bt ELRBIFTARR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

30. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE 30. BMFHENHERS

On 1 June 2017, the Group entered into a memorandum
of understanding with an independent third party and other
parties to dispose of its 60% equity interest in Ultimate Elite
Investments Limited which directly held 100% equity interest
in Vision Smart Limited (collectively, “Ultimate Elite Group”) at
the consideration of HK$89,238,000 (subject to adjustment).
On 31 July 2017, a sale and purchase agreement was
signed on the same principal terms with the memorandum of
understanding and completion of the disposal has taken place
on 28 August 2017.

On 30 June 2017, the Group entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of its entire equity interest in Dignity Choice Limited (“Dignity
Choice”) at the consideration of HK$30,500,000 (subject to
adjustment). In the opinion of the Directors, disposal of Dignity
Choice is expected to be completed within twelve months from
30 June 2017.

The above disposals represented the property investments
business of the Group (“Disposal Group”). And the assets
and liabilities of the Disposal Group have been classified as a
disposal group held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017.

The net proceeds of the disposals are expected to exceed the
net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and
accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.

20176 A1H @ REEE-FBIE =77 RHE
thET 4977 5] S AR R fE = 8% - LA (B89,238,00058
JT (A F %) H & HE R Ultimate Elite Investments
Limited i% # #960% - i Ultimate Elite Investments
Limited & #t #5 & Vision Smart Limited ( #t &
[ Ultimate Elite & & | ) B # #9 100% ° 72017 4F
7A318 - EERRIRERBRESSARNEER
SREIA - HEFIECDN201748 H28H 78R °

MR2017F6A30H » AEBH -/ UE=F
SN BB EE R 0 AR (B30,500,00058 7T
(7] ¥ #8%8 ) H & Dignity Choice Limited ([ Dignity
Choice | ) 2 ZB & # - EE R A + I & Dignity
Choice JEEA¥ 720176 A30B £+ A A R=
B o

FRPEEEEASENYEREER(THEH
&1) c R201746A308 - HEHANEBENREA
EEWSBEARELENDEMEE - WHEGREN
BHRAEADFRY o

BHLEEENAERRFEEBEREENE
BERREFE - Rt W EERREERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

30. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE (Continued)
The assets and liabilities of Ultimate Elite Group and Dignity
Choice (excluding inter-company loan which is eliminated on
consolidation) as at 30 June 2017 are as follows:

30. HEHEMHEHRE )
Ultimate Elite & [ X Dignity Choice 7 2017 &
6A30EMEERABGBE(TEEESHEREN AR
MEFOWNT :

Ultimate
Elite Group Total
Ultimate Elite5£E Dignity Choice -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FETT
Assets HE
Investment properties (Notes i and ii) WEWMZE R TiRi) 126,200 30,500 156,700
Other receivables and deposits HAhEWRIE Rige 121 280 401
Bank balances SRITHERR 1,418 8 1,426
Assets associated with disposal group HYEAREHENHERE
classified as held for sale AR & E 127,739 30,788 158,527
Liabilities b=
Other payables and accruals Hh I E R EATE R (691) (145) (836)
Bank borrowings RITER (23,000) - (23,000)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBAE (419) (1,448) (1,867)
Liabilities associated with disposal group HAEAREHENHERE
classified as held for sale M aE (24,110) (1,593) (25,703)

Note:

0]

(ii)

Investment properties at fair value

The fair value of the Disposal Group’s investment properties as
at 30 June 2017 has been arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out on the respective date by independent qualified
professional valuers.

The fair value was determined based on the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis. There has been no
change from the valuation technique used in the prior year. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Disposal Group’s investment properties and

wis -
() EATEHHEZRANE

M20179F6 A30R - HEMAZREMENAFE
TRBY A ERFEMGERMNARRRETHRE
EmES -

RHEDZEALBRYERGFHREREELZ
MMHEBRETSLBAETE - L—FEME
Rz hERMIT\EE - R ZDEZRFE
W ZYELESRKEREDENAE -

HEAEZRENMEFBRATERFINERH

information about the fair value hierarchy are as follows: FETE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—k B8 B=ER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 30 June 2017 201756 A30H
Commercial property units located in IR EE 2 8 BYIEEAL
Hong Kong — 156,700 — —

At 30 June 2017, the Disposal Group'’s investment properties with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$151,500,000 has been pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Disposal Group
and the Group.

(i) M2017F6A308 @ HEMAA KR EMEBEEE
151,500,000 ST EBIR FHEH A RAEERN —
BIRTTEEEIFIEAER -
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31.

32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 3. A BWAIBHHERE

On 30 June 2016, the Group entered into the disposal MR2016F6 A30H » AEEEBHE=HF]7H
agreement with the independent third parties in relation to Bz - NABRNAESNET,000,000%87THE
dispose of approximately 43% of issued share capital of Link BRI B A43% 2 B BITIRA - R HE 201645
Resources at the cash consideration of HK$7,000,000. The 7H27B 5K o Bt © 7201656 A30H » A
transaction was completed on 27 July 2016. Accordingly, the NEINEREEN DA Y EABIELEEE] -

interest in the associate was reclassified as “asset classified as
held for sale” as at 30 June 2016.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. HthERRIERESTEBA
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Other payables E e ERIE 15,077 5,728
Accrued tutor contractor fee, salary and bonus — JEFHERIABE - Ha &
and other accruals TEAL R E A fERTE A 9,028 9,547
24,105 15,275
Included in the other payables of the Group as at 30 June 2017 HAREBER2017E6 A0 E M ENRIB A
were deposits received of HK$4,200,000 and HK$6,100,000 & Ultimate Elite% @ X Dignity Choicef 2 Ui%
for the disposals of Ultimate Elite Group and Dignity Choice, & 714,200,000 7T 26,100,000 7T ©
respectively.
AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 33. EEEA A
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Amounts due to directors and/or ERFREEERERAA
non-controlling shareholder of BEN R RS
Able Investment Development Limited IR 495 595
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable REBRTYEER - B RIRERKEFEE -
on demand.
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ma

PSR R M

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

34.

35.

BANK BORROWINGS 34. RITHERR
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FEIT
Unsecured: M
Revolving loan fBERER 14,400 14,800
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: — ZERUA TEEEERRITER
Within one year —FR 14,400 14,800

As at 30 June 2017, the bank borrowings of the Group carried
variable interest rates at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) plus 1.5% and 2.3% per annum (2016: HIBOR plus
1.5% per annum).

20176 A30R © ANEBBITHEFIZEBIRIT
REFE([BBRTAERE NETF1IE%E
2.3%HPFENN KT B (20165 - BERITRAIER
BIEF15%) -

LOAN NOTES 35. HSEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Loan notes — unsecured ERER —EIER 150,500 146,496

On 17 December 2015, the Company issued 8%
unsubordinated and unsecured notes due on 16 December
2017 (“Loan Notes”) in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$150,000,000. The Loan Notes carried an interest of 8% per
annum payable quarterly in arrears.

The Company may at its option redeem the Loan Notes, in
whole or any part thereof outstanding on a business day must
be a day after the first anniversary of the date of issue of the
Loan Notes and before the maturity date. Also, the noteholder
may at its option redeem the Loan Notes, in whole or any part
thereof outstanding on a business day after the eighteenth
month of the date of issue of the Loan Notes and before the
maturity date. On the redemption date, the Company shall pay
to such noteholder the principal amount of the Loan Notes to be
redeemed plus all accrued and unpaid interest on the principal
amount of the Loan Notes to be redeemed. The effective interest
rate for the year ended 30 June 2017 was 11% (2016: 11%)
per annum. The balance is included in current liabilities in view
of it early redemption terms.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF

2016 12 417 B » AN 2RI #E (TR 2017
12716 R B|IH 2 8% IEH B M B EMEIR ([ ERT
1% 1) - RN& 485 /R150,000,0008 7T - ERBIRIR
FEIB KGR WABFXN -

AARAERENERERRTEZE—(@BEFH
BERHHBHITNEEABEDREEERZENS
BRI o hId - BEIFEAMAEERE
FEEBEHTHER T/ \ERRZFSARMEE
HERREEERZENZBRIMIS - RE
BHE  ARRHAEBEEESEASNETE
BrEREENASBERZEEREEASEHE
HIFT A FERT MR FE » B ZE 2017966 A30H 1E
FEZEREMNEAL11%(2016%F : 11%) ° #R
HIRRERER  SRETARBAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

36. DEFERRED TAXATION 36. RFERIF

The following are the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
and movements thereon during both years:

ATRRAMEFEANBRIANEEHREEE,
(BB RHEE

Losses
available for
Accelerated offsetting
Intangible tax  against future
assets depreciation  taxable profits Total
AT
RIRMERR
BLEE NERREHE fliRnER #5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET T/ET TET
At 1 July 2015 20157 A1R (179) (1,037) - (1,216)
Credited (charged) to profit or loss AR BEF A (F0%)
during the year 33 (210) - (177)
At 30 June 2016 7201656 H30H (146) (1,247) - (1,393)
Credited (charged) to profitor loss  FRABZETE A (F1K)
during the year 33 (1,106) 397 (676)
Reclassification to liabilities ENNBARENEARBELE
associated with disposal group M EEEERHEE
classified as held for sale - 2,264 (397) 1,867
At 30 June 2017 7201746 A30H (113) (89) - (202)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$104,621,000 available for offsetting
against future profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$2,403,000 of such tax losses at 30 June
2017. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the remaining tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. All tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

RBEHR AEENAHABREBED
104,621,000/ 7T A FA LA S 25 A B9 1R A RIEY AR 2K
wA - EERIREED N 2017F6 A30H A
TUIAEI1E 492,403,000/ TTHER ° R HE FI2R
IRE AT TORIE - YR A F AR T RIRE R R
BRETHIAEE - FTAMIBREE A ERES -

Annual Report 2017 F%



200

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

37. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 37. REIBRI & KR

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
At beginning of year REH] 1,857 1,902

(Credited) charged to profit or loss FRRERF (GEA) R
during the year (175) 69
Reductions arising from payments STFREE S 2 3R (83) (114)
At end of year RELR 1,599 1,857

The provision for long service payments is based on the best
estimate of the future payments required to settle the obligations
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in relation to the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF
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e UBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. k&
The movements of share capital of the Company are as follows: RARREAZE ST -
Number
of shares Amount
& E &8
Notes HK$'000
Htat FET
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R2015F7 A1HFREE
at 1 July 2015 0.01/8 THE B 30,000,000,000 300,000
Share consolidation on R20169E3 11 HIRM A B
11 March 2016 (if) (24,000,000,000) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each R20165F6 A30H &
at 30 June 2016 and 20176 A308 &K
30 June 2017 H1E0.058 T @ A% 6,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid EZ&TRHE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R2015F7 A1HFREE
at 1 July 2015 0.01/8 THE B 325,939,200 3,259
Issue of rights shares and bonus R2015F8 A7 HE1THAR
shares on 7 August 2015 f& 0 K AT % (i) 1,955,635,200 19,557
Share consolidation on R20169E3 11 BARH A B
11 March 2016 (i) (1,825,259,520) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each R2016F6 A30H FAXHEIE
at 30 June 2016 0.05/8 JTH L i@ 456,314,880 22,816
Issue of shares upon placing on R2016F10A25HE &%
25 October 2016 f& 81T (ifi) 91,256,000 4,563
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each 201796 4308 S AIE
at 30 June 2017 0.05/8 JTH) L i@ 547,570,880 27,379
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HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 24 April 2015, the Company proposed the implementation
of the rights issue on the basis of four rights shares (“Rights
Share(s)”) for every one Share held on 15 July 2015 (i.e. the
record date) at the subscription price of HK$0.295 per Rights
Share (“Rights Issue”) with the bonus issue on the basis of one
bonus share (“Bonus Share(s)”) for every two Rights Shares
taken up (“Bonus Issue”). The Rights Issue with the Bonus
Issue was approved by the Company’s independent shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 3 July
2015. Completion of the Rights Issue with the Bonus Issue took
place on 7 August 2015. An aggregate of 1,303,756,800 Rights
Shares and 651,878,400 Bonus Shares were issued to qualifying
shareholders of the Company. The net proceeds of the Rights Issue
were approximately HK$369.10 million.

On 27 January 2016, the Company proposed consolidation of
every five existing ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
and unissued share capital of the Company into one consolidated
share of HK$0.05 each (“Share Consolidation”). The Share
Consolidation was approved by the Company’s shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 10 March 2016 and the Share
Consolidation became effective on 11 March 2016.

On 25 October 2016, an aggregate of 91,256,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each were issued to not less than six placees,
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners were independent
third parties, at a placing price of HK$0.663 per share. The net
proceeds from placing are approximately HK$58.25 million. The
net proceeds were intended to be used as general working capital
of the Group and/or for financing the Group’s future investment
opportunities (including but not limited to property investment
and/or securities investment).

The shares issued rank pari passu with other shares of the

Company in issue in all respects. None of the Company or its

subsidiaries repurchased, sold, redeemed or cancelled any of

the Company’s shares during the years ended 30 June 2017
and 2016.

38. k& ()
At -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R2015F 48248 » ARAEZHRIZNK2015F
7R158 (AR exB88) A —RRHEZ LK
BERRRE D ([ |) 2 B E R B E TR
B9 0.295%8 0 E 4T A% (T AR ) BRI K B &
BE MR IR A B — AR AT AR ([41RR |) 2 FEE
TTHIRR 1T ([ATRREE7T]) - HEARERIAIIREEITE
R2015F7 A3RARBIRITZREFRAS £
ERRNBE Y RRIAE - HGERAKRETER
201548 A 7H 52K » & $£1,303,756,800 M B i%
19 12651,878, 4008 4T % B, 3517 T AN A 7] & B
B o A% 2 PSRBT EE49369,100,000 7T ©

K201651A27R » ARRREBARFEHETR
RETRAPFSARIRESREMEOETZER
W& Of i — IR S A E(E0.058 7L 2 A Bk 7 ([ %
Est]) - &R 2016F3A10H #1722 K
REHIAG EEARRRREIE - REROEHR
20165F3H11HAER »

12016410 A 258 - & $£91,256,000 ik & X @
{E0.05/8 7L ) & B 2 1 % 0.663 B TTHOE 1% 3
TTFADRANBARA(REREEF 2 REER
BEAREANORBIYE=T7) - REMSHEFED
58,250,000 7T * FT{S FRIBF R A E AR £ B K
—REEEL R AAEEMNARKERE (R
BETEAYERE R SEFRERIES -

BERTBRORMAESTEERARAREETZEM
B EBRFHA - REVE2017F K 2016 F
6A30B LLFE - NARIHHENMB A RMEED
HE - O EHEERARERD o
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mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 39. Bkt

The Company has a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted pursuant to a resolution in writing
of all shareholders passed on 11 June 2011 (“Adoption Date").
The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract and
retain the best available personnel and to provide additional
incentives or rewards to full time or part-time employees,
Directors (whether executive or non-executive), consultants,
supplier, customer, joint venture partner, business associates
and advisor (professional or otherwise) of the Company for their
contribution to the Company and to promote the Company’s
success. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 4 July
2011 (“Effective Date”). Subject to earlier termination by the
Directors and approved in advance by the shareholders in a
general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effecting for a period commencing from the Effective Date and
expiring at 5:00 p.m. on the business day preceding the tenth

anniversary of the Adoption Date.

The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate, exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the Effective
Date.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
(including exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each
participant (other than a substantial shareholder, chief executive
or director as explained below) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being. Any further grant of share options in excess of this

limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

ARBRBEZEIRERN2011F6 A11 R ([£R#H
H1)) BEnEmRRE RN RELT ) ([ BAE
FHEl]) - BT E E ARSI MR ERERT
ERARTNEREFBES  EF(ERATX
FE]MIT)  EAA - HER TP A%EH
EBH RER(BRAEAM) BB KR O
& UREREHARBMENER - L RN
RARAD © R EIN201147 B4R ([ £%
BE ) AR - BRGER B B AR B MES RS
HEIE HEFRERA N F R EERE EEHRE
B AT RHERERSRRABERAG LE5E
AR TRBLL -

I8 R AR £ BT (134T 2 A D B B A St
FERBAR TR ER B WRBETRAZ10% «

PMER+ =8 A SR AR ER AR S A e T
Bu2EETERETXMZ E2RER - T21T
BABHER) 2BRE(BREEITE  EHIW
AT 2 FEIRHE ) TR M AT B T2 IR 8B ER
TEHEBARBERDHEITRAZL% - Bt
Rz EME - TROBRBANBRAE LEUS
PRERHEAE
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is the grantee of the options). In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director of the Company, or
to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant, are subject to shareholders’

approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing
by a participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee.
No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. The
exercise period for the share options granted is determined
by the Directors, which period may commence from the date
of acceptance of the offer for the grant of share options but
shall end, in any event, not later than 10 years from the date
of the conditional adoption of the Share Option Scheme by
the shareholders subject to the provisions for early termination
under the Share Option Scheme.

39.
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FRBRiE R B2

AARFTESE  TBTRABRTERRARE
FAEZEABEAL(ERE LHRAETRK
RESERSEFNTER(TRES AERE
AN BB IFRITER)BOE - BEID - s
REEEHAB(BEZB) E+—EAHER -
BRI ARBEERRIBLIIFATEFTARES
B2 ERBEA L2 EABREBRLARED %
1TBD 20.1% B @ECRERE T E B AR R KD
Z W B E ) #%15,000,000%8 7T - AIZBERER
A& FEUSERHALE

RAERABRIB Tz BN EER  2REIRE
HMBEHRA - HANEEEAERBREZ
24 - REBEREDBASNRE -EROBRE
ZITEHHESRT - ZHEAIRZAERBER
B2 2B MG - BERIFAARBRRA GE
RANBRAERT S AR T FARL - WAXE
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

39. MEBRHERTEI(E)

Details of the share options granted under the Share Option FARBEREFEMNARFTESE - BE - %W
Scheme to Directors, employees, consultants and other eligible ARHMEERSEERD CERERBESENGE
participants of the Company during the year and movement in WNFTISRERRE B BFFIB T
such holding during the year are as follows:
Number of share options
fikiEsE
Adjustment
forthe effects
of the Share
Consoldation
in March 2016
and the
Rights Issue
Bxercisable  Outstanding Granted ~ and Bonus Lapsed Bxercised  Outstanding Granted Lapsed Brercised  Qutstanding
price at1huly during Isstein during during &30 June during during during &t 30 June
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 215 the year ~ August 2015 the year the year 216 the year the year the year 2017
BER20165
HEEVE
R1E #2015%8A 20168 R017%
TR1R HRRIE 6A30A 6A308
fHES it BRITER BR{THE b3t N a1 FREN FRfl LESi FREH xR ERfiE R
HKS
o1
Directors 14102014 1410201410 13102015 300 430080 - 8047 (1480324) - - - - - -
iz NUFI0R14A N4FI0R14RZN15F10R138
Diretors 8012017 B0120171022012018 1142 - - - - - - 10144000 - - 10144000
EH NITEIRBE N17E1ABAZNISEL A28
Employees 14102014 1410201410 13.10.2015 30 4807200 - (3181000 (16%6,199) - - - - - =
8 N4E10814B N1EI0AURENISFI0A13A
Employees 2012017 30120170 2201.2018 114 - - - - - - D - - B3R
5 NIE1ABA NI71ABRENISEIA2A
Consutant 14102014 1410201410 1310015 300 373440 - (408147 (1273520 - - - - - -
EAA N4E10R14R UEI0AIURENISFI0A13A
Consultant 2012017 B012017102201.2018 1142 - - - - - - 5,072,000 - - 5072000
)N NI751RBR W1751ABAZNISEL A28
Others 1410014 1410201410 13102015 300 63TEN - [aemr (217A%5r - - - 3 - =
it NUFI0R14A NUFI0F14RZN1F10R138
Others 8012017 B0L2017022012018 1142 - - - - - - 50R00 - - 507200
i NI7EIRBE W17E1ABAZNISEL A28
Total
o e By g o s
Exercisable at the end of the year
REETE Mﬂ — Mﬂ
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) NA

* The above information has been adjusted to reflect the effects of
the share consolidation in March 2016 and the Rights Issue and
Bonus Issue in August 2015 as set out in Note 38.

¥ _LAEEH

p=s

AETTEE LR 2016 F3 A L8R (7 &

GER2015F8 7 B BRIRRATIR %772 22 (8

RHIE38) °
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2017, 35,487,488 options were
granted to the Group’s Directors and employees on 23 January
2017. The Group recognised total expense of approximately
HK$10,647,000 for the year ended 30 June 2017 in profit or
loss in relation to share options granted by the Company to
the Group’s Directors and employees. The weighted average
fair value of share options granted to the Group’s Directors
and employees during the year ended 30 June 2017 at
measurement date was approximately HK$0.3 per option.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, 10,144,000 options
were granted to other parties on 23 January 2017. The fair
value of the share options granted to other parties amounted to
approximately HK$2,921,000 has been recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 30 June 2017.

The share options of the Group are accounted for equity
share-based payment under HKFRS2 Share-based Payment.

Options granted are fully vested at the date of grant.

The fair values of the share options granted to Directors and
employees were calculated using the binomial option pricing
model. The inputs into the binomial option pricing model were as
follows:

Date of grant

39. MEBR LB

REZE2017F6A30H L FE R + 35,487,4881%
BRECR2017F1 23R FAEBESZ LE
B AEBERARFARTAEEEEZREENE
IERERE 22017F6 8308 (L F Er B ERH
T #BEE4)10,647,00008 7T © B E201746 H30H
IEFERTARSEESRESNERENRGTER
ey e AT ELNEGHERE0IET -

B ZE2017F6 A30H L FE + 10,144,000 i %
BEER2017F1 23R T HAMT - K TEMT
B B IS HE A T {E 492,921,00058 TR = 2017 4
6A30R LEFEBEPER °

AEBENBRERREE S5 HREERE 250
[ AR BERZ T3 NRIN B IARD BE
25K

PR BN IR A R SRR -
RTEZREEMNBREZ XA FETER BN

W EERATUAGE - AU EERIAT
e AZIEI T

23 January 2017

BHA 2017%1H23H
Closing share price at the date of grant R BB G KRTE HK$1.110% 7T
Exercise price 1IfEE HK$1.1425% 7T
Contractual option life BHBRAETE 1 year
Risk-free rate = @ e 1 = 0.850%
Annualised dividend yield FELREE 0%
Expected volatility of underlying share AR DR TEEER R 79.829%
Expected exercise multiple TEEAF T B 2L 1.60X—2.47X

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the most recent
period commensurate with the expected life of the share
options.

The fair values were calculated by an independent qualified
professional valuer.

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 40. EEHRARIE

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for the following future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases to mainly independent third
parties in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

KEBAARBEA
RBEBRR  BEREEREMERNETEB IS
ZHABEOTIHELERE  AEBKRRKE
ML EENT -

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Within one year —&FR 31,793 38,242
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERF(HREME

BEER) 46,590 42,898

78,383 81,140

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of

one to five years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

BEoguEmRaEEEe  BHA—ER%F -

AEBBHBEA
REBEHR - AEBEE PR AT HR B H
TARHEEEMER THRKREESITZAK

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 2,683 732
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERF(HREME

BIEEA) 2,632 854

5,315 1,586

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of

one to three years (2016: three years).

All leased properties were classified as assets associated with
disposal group classified as held for sale at the end of the

reporting period (Note 30).

HHREmEABEEES  HBPRAA—E=F
(2016%F : =%F) o

FIBHENERNRERREDBRENBRFE
HENHEHARENEE (KEE30) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

41. COMMITMENTS 41. #KiE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not AT BRBERIYERRGE
provided in the consolidated financial M mEPBENERFY
statements in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment - UgEEZE - R K iR 8 = 2,287
— capital injection in a joint venture ~-REERRIATE 9,750 9,750
9,750 12,037

42. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY AND BUSINESS 42. kiE—EELATIREK SO

COMBINATION

On 4 November 2016, the Group acquired the entire issued MN2016F11 A48 - AEBERkEEZL([HKL
shares of Modern iClass from Ms. Yiu Wai Yee, Catherine + ARELL,000E TR R Z THER 230
(“Ms. Yiu") at the consideration of approximately HK$1,000. DEITAR o WHER20165F 11 B4 =K - A
The acquisition was completed on 4 November 2016 and STHAERABAEENEEZE2EMBAR - RA
Modern iClass became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of LR ET BN SREEBIT o

the Group. Modern iClass is principally engaged in provision of
interest classes.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of RUBEBAFMKNBzEERERAZEE
acquisition
HK$'000
FET
Current assets MBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E bW IR 386
Bank balance RITHE R 144
Current liabilities mEaE
Accruals EEtE A 8)
Amounts due to related companies FE - B A B 50E (520)
Total identifiable net assets AR B EEERS 2
Gain on bargain purchase Wis R E W 1)
Cash consideration HeRE 1
The fair value of receivables acquired approximated the gross TN IB AT EHAS NS BEE - TBEt
contractual amounts. There were no contractual cash flows not TMEEFEEEBNELIRERE -

expected to be collected.

208 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF



42.

43.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY AND BUSINESS
COMBINATION (Continued)

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

42.

WS —FE AT RRB S ()

WBELZRERAFR

HK$'000

FET

Consideration paid in cash IR T2 RE 1)
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B T RS MReEEY 144
143

Impact of acquisition of the results of the Group

Modern iClass contributed revenue of nil and net loss of
approximately HK$7,000 to the Group for the period from the
date of acquisition to 30 June 2017. If the acquisition had
occurred on 1 July 2016, the loss for the year of the Group
would have been approximately HK$330,573,000. This pro
forma information was for illustrative purposes only and was
not necessarily an indication of the results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition occurred
on 1 July 2016, nor was it intended to be a projection of future
results.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 26 August 2015, the Group entered into a conditional
sales and purchase agreement with Mr. Leung Wai Hon
(“Mr. Leung”) in relation to the acquisition of Vision Smart
Limited (“Vision Smart”) by further acquiring 51% of the entire
issued shares of Vision Smart and the entire debts owing by
Vision Smart to Mr. Leung at the consideration of approximately
HK$16,810,000. Prior to the acquisition, the Group held 49%
equity interest in Vision Smart and was accounted for by equity
accounting. The acquisition was completed on 16 October 2015
and Vision Smart became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group. Vision Smart is principally engaged in property
investment and investment holding.

43.

WEBRAREXENTE

Wi HEIZE20175F6 A30R ILHIfE - MR Z TH
FIHEAEE T U MOFEEA7,000/8 7T © il
BEN2016F7A1BETT  AEEFEBE/D
330,573,000/ 7T ° thHEZERHEMFHA - WIEE
AHKER201657 A1R#ETT - AEBRERZ
RS - WESERARIEE 2R -

TR R—MMEBLARREE

M2015F8A26H + AEBMHPENEL A ([ R%
DIV ERMEERR  AAEMEE—PIK
fi Vision Smart Limited ([ Vision Smart]) & &2 %%
7117 B951% K Vision Smart#s /K R 5 £ K 2 EE
7% LAY & Vision Smart - X {E4916,810,000/8 7T °
U AT - N5 B 5 Vision Smart 49% & #E
W AR EEETIER o KR 20155F10H16A %
BX + Vision Smart2 K AR EB M HEE 2 EWE A
A © Vision SmartE 22X EY IR E R EER °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z201746 A308 It FE

43. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

43. BB E—MMELFINREES)

REEBRFUB-EERER ZRE

acquisition
HK$'000
FET
Current assets MENEE
Deposits and prepayments e RERNFIE 32,015
Bank balance IRITHERR -
Current liabilities mEaE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A & E A FRIE (3)
Loans due to shareholders FERRERE R (31,031)
981
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WBELEZBESRHFHE
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration paid in cash PRSIz RE 16,809
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B TR RE MR EEY -
16,809

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HB# 5 (B REEEERQT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

44, DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 44. HERE AT
Disposal of interests in Bullish Times Media Limited (“BTML”) HEXBEREBEERAT ([ KEREE D RX
and Bullish Times Technology Limited (“BTTL”) AR BRA RN ([ KR D) 2
On 1 July 2016, Think Smart Global Limited, an indirect 70% 7201697 H1H - Think Smart Global Limited (f&
owned subsidiary, disposed of its 41.8% equity interest in each BEHEAET0%MMB A B E EN KRR EE RN
of BTML and BTTL at a cash consideration of approximately AERBESBAN41.8%KE MERED N
HK$419,000 and HK$210,000, respectively. 419,000/ 7T }2.210,00078 7T °
The net liabilities of BTML and BTTL at the date of disposal REEBEH  ABREERARREHNEET
were as follows: BT
BTML BTTL Total
REFREE REFREHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Non-current assets IERBNE E
Property, plant and equipment I E YN 31 - 31
Current assets mENEE
Other deposits HEhize 695 140 835
Bank balances and cash RITEBR IS 557 495 1,052
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables and accruals HErb it sE ke & R (33) (145) (178)
Deferred income EIEUA (286) - (286)
Amount due to group entity B EEEREHIE (510) (255) (765)
Amount due to non-controlling JERT IR 2
interests RIE (490) (245) (735)
(36) (10) (46)
Non-controlling interest IR R 24 7 31
Gain on disposal HE W 13 4 17
1 1 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z201746 A308 It FE

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Disposal of interests in Bullish Times Media Limited (“BTML")

and Bullish Times Technology Limited (“BTTL") (Continued)

44. HERB2TF(=)

HEARREEARAT (T KEREE ) KX
RARBRAERA R ([ KRR ) 2@ (&)

BTML BTTL Total
REREE AEFREHE @5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FETT

Satisfied by: FERATHRER -
Cash consideration RERE 419 210 629
Assignment of shareholder’s loan EERRER (418) (209) (627)
1 1 2

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: ~ HEFFEALRIRE
T HHER

Consideration received in cash and BEWEIERE MNREE
cash equivalents EYRE 419 210 629

Cash and cash equivalents balances ~ FrHERE LIRSS
disposed of BYsEe (557) (495) (1,052)
(138) (285) (423)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HB# 5 (B REEEERQT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

44, DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 44. HERBLAT(2E)
Disposal of interest in Sky Link Management Limited (“Sky HEXTEBRBRAB(RT ) 2=
Link”)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost KL BEENEERBES T
On 1 June 2016, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest M20165F6A1H + A& E LAIR ¢ K E2,800,000
in Sky Link and its subsidiary to an independent third party at a BILR—RBVE=FHEERRATRENBA
cash consideration of HK$2,800,000. Al EBRRAE ©
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y%~ BB KRB 616
Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A ERGRIA 3,318
Bank balances and cash RITEB RIS 345
Current liabilities nEaE
Accruals and other payables FEET B R R B Ath e~ 5RIE (2,631)
Net assets disposed of T EEEFE 1,648
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB L a8 Kz
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received EERE 2,800
Net assets disposed of P EEEFE (1,648)
Cumulative translation gain released B 5 R E R e RET
from translation reserve (R 40
Gain on disposal HE W= 1,192
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEFELNELHAFLE
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BEWEIRE RIREEEYRE 2,800
Less: cash and cash equivalents balances disposed of ¥ : P& 4 MBS ZE YA (345)
2,455
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. BB X H
(a) Parties are considered to be related if one party has, (@) fW—FHBRNEEMFIEL I MG REK
directly or indirectly, the ability to control or jointly control B B % ok PRl B 15 ol ok AR Rl 43 ol ok S oAb g
or has significant influence over the other party in making BERTE  HIZAWREEEMT f B
financial and operating decisions. The management is of 5o ERERE UWTAR/ ALRFRHA
the view that the following companies/persons were related AEBETEAR FHUE SR

parties that had significant transactions or balances with

the Group during the year.

Name of related party

PR B8

Relationship with the Group
HAKEHREE

China Vantage International Holdings Limited
(“China Vantage”)

TEEREERERAR(HE]D

Modern English Limited
BREEBBRAF]

World Wide Resources Management Limited

RFEREEERAF

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Seasoned Leader and an associate
of the Group. As the Group had disposed of its entire interest
in Seasoned Leader, it ceased to be an associate of the Group
with effect from 30 December 2016

Seasoned Leaderz 2 BB AT RAEEMH S AT o AR
£ 2 HE HSeasoned Leadert) 2 5% + H B 20164
12A30R MR AREE R E QA

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
k2 +#5B 100% A3 1

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
B2z 5B 100% A

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF



45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Name of related party

PR B8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

45. MBI B X B(E)

(a) (&)

Relationship with the Group
HASEHRE

Sun Ace (HK) Limited

s (BE)BRAR

Group Benefit Development Limited
(“Group Benefit”)

HEERERAR([EE])

Mr. Lee
T

Ms. Yiu
7/ o

Mr. Chau Kai Man
BRI A

Progress Ever Limited

HXBRAT

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of IE China and an associate
of the Group with effect from 9 September 2016
BRPENEEZELEMB AR - WEH2016F9H9B R AAKHE

)k /NC]

A non wholly-owned subsidiary of IE China and an associate
of the Group with effect from 9 September 2016. |IE China’s
shareholding over Group Benefit's intermediate holding
company was diluted below 50% and Group Benefit ceased
to be a subsidiary and became an associate of IE China with
effect from 23 June 2017

BIRFPEIRIEREME AR - WE20165F9 A9H B R4 K EHY
Bra N A o BIRPBINEF RN EERIERA RN RERESS R
50% » BfERH2017F6 A23E T B AL BRHBEMMH B AR
i BX A3 LBk & X B

A Director

E=

A former director of certain subsidiaries of the Group

AEEETHBARNES

A director of certain subsidiaries of the Group
REBETHWBARIMNES

100% equity interest held by Mr. Chau Kai Man
JEIRIX S A #55 100% A 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45. BB X H(E)
B &R A BT IAO 3R AT I B B R B 05 e A R

(b) Save as the balances with related parties as disclosed in (b)
the consolidated statement of financial position, the Group
entered into the following significant transactions with

related parties during the year:

5

Sh - REBRERNRREE S FI LA TEAR

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Rental expenses, building management RIREE LA N 5 5] SRR AT
fee, air-conditioning charges and rates to &8+ R 58 =5 M7
independent third parties under licence Y EFERE - T
arrangement with related party (note): BNEMKE)
— Modern English Limited —HREZFAERAA = 218
Rental expenses to: MU TRAREAHEERY
— China Vantage —iZ 54 -
—Sun Ace (HK) Limited — ¥ (HB)BRAH 750 -
Commission expenses to: MU T AR AL
- China Vantage —HE 4,862 8,372
Consultancy income from: D=V o 1 N
— China Vantage —Hi{Z - 2,265
Tutor contractor fee to: MATALZPEMEBE
— Mr. Lee — RS 217 315
~ Ms. Yiu — k4t 91 252
Loan interest income from: REUTARIZERFIL
— Progress Ever Limited —EXERAT 160 78
Rental income from: REUTRRZEASUWA :
— Group Benefit —REEX 610 -

Note:  These premises were leased initially by the above related
party from independent third parties. The related party
then licenced the premises to the Group at the same
rates specified in the respective lease agreements with
independent third parties.

216  Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited & &% (HIk) & E@ERA 5
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

The particulars of the related party transactions regarding
the tutor contractor fee to Mr. Lee as disclosed in (b) above

are as follows:

On 30 April 2016, Sense Publishing Company Limited
(“Sense Publishing”) and Mr. Lee entered into a service
contract with the Group, pursuant to which Sense
Publishing agreed to (i) procure Mr. Lee to provide tutoring
services to students of the Group; and (ii) grant a sole,
exclusive and non-transferable licence to the Group to
use and reproduce the teaching materials prepared by
Mr. Lee for the tutorial courses organised by the Group
for secondary school students and conducted by teaching
assistants with the said teaching materials for a term
commenced on 1 July 2016 and expiring on 30 June
2019.

Pursuant to the service contract, Sense Publishing is
entitled to certain fees calculated at a commission rate
(comprising of the commission and gratuity components)
of 60% of the tuition fees net of any refund, discounts or
rebate paid by the students to the Group for attending the
tutorial courses conducted entirely by Mr. Lee in person.
If the tutorial class is not entirely taught by Mr. Lee in
person but by other tutors or teaching assistants using
the teaching materials prepared by Mr. Lee and/or his
teaching assistants, the commission rate will be adjusted
downwards by 1.5% to 8%. The fee payable by the
Group to Sense Publishing is the product of the relevant
commission rate and the net tuition fee aforesaid subject
to further other deductions such as the costs of teaching
assistants and other certain costs associated with his
classes, including promotional and marketing events,
reference materials and copyright licence fees.

The key management personnel includes Directors and
chief executive and the compensation paid to them is
disclosed in Note 11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

45. MBI B X B(E)
©) REXMDBMEERFEEINEMARE
MR T X BB ¢

R201654 A30R @ ABEHRAR R A
(TRBEE AR |) K2 A EAK ER] 7R
BH Bt PEZLRERAFRE()
EFEERAEBSERMHE RS - M)
BRihE—  BRENATERSTE T ASE
ERRERFREMRENENT - LARK
SEATEEMKRILBBBEIBEMER
ME B TR E RIE - FHIRN20165
7HA1BRA% EMR201956 308 & °

RERBEL - AEZLREEKIUZEE
REFEEERFEERBHENMEREM
SN FAREERHE & (FEREIEERK - 3
HEM)WE0%MEXFENETER (B
e RAMMEE) © MBI T2 H
FRERBIER - B EBEMKHKREEE
ERAFRER/LEHBEIREEOHM M
BE - BEERKTHLLS%ES% ° AEE
SN FRABERMRAE R AERME RRIA
LB BNE - AL - SEREMA
B PINBEHENERARBRERENE
wETER SBREERTSEREE 2
EMR R RER -

d) FTEERABBREENIBTHRAE M
EEES IR S AN R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 46. EEMELAT
Particulars of Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2017 KARIR2017F6A30B 2 = EWNE AR FI5EH
are set out as follows: N
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/
Name of incorporation/  Place of registered Attributable equity
principal subsidiary establishment  operation capital interest of the Group Principal activities
3 7 BRTRAE
TEMBELTRE R IRk ik iih 2 V31T S FREARERFEE  TEEH
2017 2016
Able Investment BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 88.75% 88.75% Investment holding
Development Limited
MERREBRERDA EERNEE BF 10,000%7T 88.75% 83.75% WEER
Bachelor Education Centre Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 88.75% 88.75% Provision of primary tutoring
Limited services, skill courses and

test preparation courses
BIHEERAF Bk 0 10,0007 7T 88.75% 83.75% RN FHERT -
[RERIE R EHRE

Dignity Choice BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Property investments
EERLEHE BE I 100% 100% MERE
Intelligent Education Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100% Provision of secondary day
school education services
BROBSHEBRAR  BA B 1007%7T 100% 100% fRELER ARRE RS
Modern Education Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$41,429,473 100% 100% Provision of tutoring services
(Hong Kong) Limited (2016:
HK$10,000)
BRHE (BR)BRAR B BE 41,429,473 100% 100% REHE RS
(2016% :
10,000/ 7T)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF



46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e UBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

46. EEMBAT(E)

Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/
Name of incorporation/  Place of registered Attributable equity
principal subsidiary establishment  operation capital interest of the Group Principal activities
30 7 BERTRAE
FEMBLFRE ARk EEE 2 Y43 1T S FEERERFER  TERE
2017 2016
Rosy Lane! BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRREaHE B IES 100% 100% H®EER
Sino Network' BVI Hong Kong US$13,983 100% 100% Investment holding
EBEaEE A 13983% T 100% 100% #EER
Wise Action Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment in securities
B Bk ) 10,0007t 100% 100% KEEH
China Rich Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Money lending
EENBERAR B 0 1,000/ 7T 100% 100% &E
Modern Bachelor Education ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Provision of primary tutoring
Limited services, skill courses and
test preparation courses
BRNELTBRAT EE B 10,0007 7T 100% 100% Rf/NEWHERY  RERRE
RIEEFRZ
Vision Smart?® Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 60% 60% Property investment
Hit B0 100/ 7T 60% 60% MEHE
Fastek BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
ABRNES BF IE 100% 100% ®EES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. EEMBLAT(2)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/
Name of incorporation/  Place of registered Attributable equity
principal subsidiary establishment  operation capital interest of the Group Principal activities
3 7 ERTREBE
FEMBLATRE ARk EEE 2 Y4312 S FEERERFER  TEEE
2017 2016
Central Talent Holdings BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
HERLES BE IE 100% 100% HEER
Hong Kong Academy of Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 70% 70% Provision of education and
Financial Sciences Limited research consultancy services
BESRMERBR AR BE B BT 70% 70% REEHE KRR HARSE
Modern iClass Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% N/A" Provision of interest classes
BRETHYE B 0 100/87T 100% TER RESEH
Think Smart Global Limited BVI Hong Kong US$500 70% 70% Investment holding
EERLES BA 500%7T 70% 70% RERR
Cosmic Path Holdings Limited  BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100% Investment holding
(2016: US$1)
RBERIEE BF 100%7T 100% 100% “EER

(2016% :1%7T)

Ultimate Elite Investments BVI Hong Kong US$20 60% 60% Investment holding
Limited?
ABRNES BF 20%ETT 60% 60% REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. EEMBLTF(E)

! The companies are directly held by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

2 The company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group on
16 October 2015 and the Group disposed of 40% equity interest
in the subsidiary in April 2016.

3 The companies have no longer been the subsidiaries of the
Company since 28 August 2017. Further details are set out in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of, or during, either reporting period.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests

On 11 April 2016, the Group disposed of 40% equity interest in
Ultimate Elite Investments Limited to an independent third party
at a cash consideration of HK$50,000,000.

The table below shows the information relating to Ultimate
Elite Group, the non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, that have material
non-controlling interest. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

U ZERRHBARBEESE - TEEMINEAR
BARFBERA

2 ZARN2015%108 16 Bk AR ERE 2 A M
BAT > MAEER2016E4 8 HERKE LT
40% % HE -

=13

DB

HARIB2017F8A28H B RARFMNME
B o E—HFHERIINER A M HRAMIEEI0 o

RS RIS A - BEEMNE QP& T
RARTTEMERES ©

ERMINZARRBMNBAR - DEERR/EARE
BZREREEAEATEZMBLAR - EFR
B R EMMBARZHIEREEARE
FHERITER »

BEEAFERERZIZEMBRARZFE

MR2016F4 8118 AEBR—RBBIFE=HH
& Ultimate Elite Investments Limited 40%i%#& - IR
4 {8 A&50,000,0007% 7T ©

TRES B %A EAIIERER 2 Ultimate Elite
£E - AEBEE2EHBRAREREZENE
REIZER - WTHBEEREZEEEANR M
AT S8 -

Proportion of ownership

Place of incorporation/

Name of subsidiary principal place of business

interests held by the
non-controlling interests

Profits allocated to non- Accumulated

controlling interests  non-controlling interests

g FRRERMSH
il VNSE S TEEEME ZHRRERNLH SETFERERMHET RitEERER
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FET FET FET
Ultimate Elite Group BVI/Hong Kong 40% 2,415 158 51,020 48,605
Ultimate Elite 58] SRELHE,/BE

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

[ERIEA R R T EANB AR

(419) (435)

50,601 48,170
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z201746 A308 It FE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. X EMELT ()
Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries that have material BEERFEREZRZIZENBATZFEE
non-controlling interests (Continued) (%)

Ultimate Elite Group Ultimate Elite 55 /&
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FET
Current assets MENEE 24,592 743
Non-current assets ERBEE 126,200 119,800
Current liabilities mEEaE 23,817 26
Non-current liabilities EREEE 419 -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZNAFIEB AJE(HER 75,536 71,912
Non-controlling interest e S 51,020 48,605

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HB# 5 (B REEEERQT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. EEMRBLT(E)
Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries that have material BEEAEREZZHEZTENRB AT ZHE
non-controlling interests (Continued) (%)
Ultimate Elite Group (Continued) Ultimate Elite55 B (42)
Period from Period from
1 July 2016 to 11 April 2016 to
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
H2016% B2016%F
7R1HE 47118=%
20175%6H30H 20166 A30H
1EHARS 1FEAR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue WA 651 -
Profit for the year/period F /R T 6,039 395
Other comprehensive income for the year/period £,/ H {th 2 U #5 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year/period 45,/ Bi & Uk Es 4258 6,039 395
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RAFEE AEERT 3,624 237
Profit attributable to the non-controlling interest — 3E3% A% e 25 FE (3% A 2,415 158
Profit for the year/period F /BN F 6,039 395
Total comprehensive income attributable to NAEHEE AELHEERE
owners of the Company R 3,624 237
Total comprehensive income attributable to IR RS 2 E e A
non-controlling interest 2,415 158
Total comprehensive income for the year/period 45,/ EBi & k&5 4258 6,039 395
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests BT IR R AR S - —
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating KETEHETENIRECRE)
activities MAFER (22,090) 466
Net cash outflow from investing activities B IEBFEMIR SR T F5E - (4,302)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMERBAENRESRAERE 22,886 -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash ReRRSEEWILMORD)
equivalents FEE 796 (3,836)
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Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &% & (B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEMBHRRMT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

47. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operated a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme were held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at rate specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme was to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees and each required
to make contribution to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000 effective from 1 June 2014 for the MPF
Scheme. No forfeited contribution was available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Each of the PRC subsidiaries is required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$1,601,000 (2016: approximately HK$1,962,000)
represented contributions payable to the above schemes by the
Group during the year ended 30 June 2017.

BIREEBER DT

47. BFiEFIEHE

AEBRBERSIMER *’f?rﬂﬂ%ﬁﬂ%é“’*ﬁﬁﬁ
AEBEERUBRHMEATEEAI([HREEA
g %ﬁ%ﬁiaJr%HE’U’ﬁEiﬁm—%?%ixé%/\&
HOESRAKEMBEENHTA - RERE

SEFEINAR - BERERE D HIAZRARTH
ML R A BB R - AEEH BB HEN
- B ERRBEZTENELAFE MR - RIFRE
T8 BXREEERAEREERRAEA(E
B2014F6 A1RBEMNEBABHEEAZ LR
30,000/ TCATIRIR ) 2 5% Mt &It 5K » WEE R
Y AH R AT R R R SR JE A (5K

\\\

RPEZENERAZSETBEHARINERE
ERKBENEE - STEMBARAREEER
FERE T B 0 AR IR B - B
SRMERESD - AEBERREN S ME—
RERRIBEFTEELAARHR -

MEMEEKERPNBRZEERD
77T (20164 ¢ #91,962,000% 7T ) 57K
201796 A30H IFFEm Fulist2E

i
JiE]
s
izs
HH E‘I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48. ERFMBRARGERE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Non-current assets JEmEEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBRARZIEE 322 322
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other deposits FENFEREMZS 786 235
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ R ENGIE S 470,761 645,552
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 7,498 63,217
479,045 709,004
Current liabilities mEBE
Accruals FEETE 360 777
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR EPNGIE R 1,351 1,351
Loan notes ERERE 150,500 146,496
152,211 148,624
Net current assets MEEEFE 326,834 560,380
Net assets EEFE 327,156 560,702
Capital and reserves BARK G
Share capital N 27,379 22816
Reserves (note) B ) 299,777 537,886
Total equity RS 4EEE 327,156 560,702
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved RATIWB R REDR201749 A27AKEES
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on SHOERIEETE - WHTIATRESZEZ
27 September 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:
Wong Yuk Tong Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious
EFER FEg
Director Director
EZE EZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMKmRMETE
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=201746A30H L FE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

48. FNTIMIIRL R il &R (=

Note: Mzt -
Movement in the Company’s reserves RN B R
Share
Share  Contributed Merger options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BiFER Rz At  MRERGE RiESR @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET AT FET FHET FET FET
At1July 2015 R2015%7A1H - 386,954 (28,079) 2,385 (14,387) 346,873
Loss and total comprehensive expense FERRREERILE
for the year - - - - (158 486) (158,486)
Issue of Rights Shares and Bonus Shares BTHRRD RALR 365,052 - - - - 365,052
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BITHEAREGR KA
new ordinary shares (15,553) - - - - (15,553)
Share options lapsed BRELN - - - (2,385) 2,385 -
At 30 June 2016 2016864308 349,499 386,954 (28,079) - (170,488) 37,886
Share
Share  Contributed Merger options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BiFER Rz AR  WRERGE RiER it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET AT FET FET FET FET
At 1July 2016 #2016%7A18 319,499 386,954 (28079) - (170488) 537886
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year  £EBER2EE L AF - - - - (305,366) (305,366)
Issue of ordinary shares EakhES 55,940 - - - - 55,940
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BN BREERZNA
new ordinary shares (2,251) - - - - (2,251)
Grant of share options RimRE - - - 13,568 - 13,568
At30 June 2017 R2017%6A308 4318 386954 (28,079) 13568 @585 299777

At 30 June 2017, the Company had no reserve (2016:
approximately HK$216,466,000) available for distribution in

accordance with the Company Law of Bermuda.

226 Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF
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49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the following significant events took place
subsequent to 30 June 2017:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Redemption of the unlisted investment fund

On 27 June 2017 and 28 July 2017, the Group served
notice to redeem its interests in the unlisted investment
fund classified as financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss respectively in the amount
of US$3,875,000 and US$3,975,540, representing
approximately 3,794 and 3,892 participating shares in
the unlisted investment fund, both at the redemption
price of US$1,021.36 per participating share. After the
said redemptions and as at the date of this annual report,
the Group remains to hold approximately 64 participating
shares in the unlisted investment fund.

Completion of disposal of Ultimate Elite Group

Completion of the disposal of Ultimate Elite Group took
place on 28 August 2017 and the Group has ceased to
hold any interest in the Ultimate Elite Group.

Disposal of GET Shares

On 24 August 2017, the Group disposed of an aggregate
of 9,000,000 GET Shares on the market through the Stock
Exchange for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$4,771,000, representing approximately HK$0.5301
per GET Share. On 25 August 2017, the Group further
disposed of an aggregate of 17,010,000 GET Shares
on the market through the Stock Exchange for an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$8,605,000,
representing an average price of approximately HK$0.5059
per GET Share. As at the date of this annual report,
the Group remains to hold 21,858,235 GET Shares,
representing approximately 4.92% of the issued share
capital of GET.

Disposal of Convoy Global Holdings Limited Shares
(“Convoy Shares”)

From 11 August 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group disposed of an aggregate of
281,096,000 Convoy Shares (classified as equity securities
held-for-trading at 30 June 2017) on the market through
the Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$55,031,000, representing an average
price of approximately HK$0.1958 per Convoy Share. As
at the date of this annual report, the Group remains to hold
418,900,000 Convoy Shares, representing approximately
2.80% of the issued share capital of Convoy Global
Holdings Limited.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRMET
For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z=2017F6H30H [t FE

49. BEMEEIR
BRERaMBRREMEHAEEEN N
2017F6 A30R KLU TEARIA -

BOkELHREES
M20174%6 278 K201747 A28 » A&
EEHBEMLERER S EAIETRATE
FFABERNERMEEMNIELEMIERES AR
=9 Bl A3,875,0003 7T 13,975,540 IT,
HERIELMREES H BIL3,7948% &
3,828 2 H% 1, - BEEH AFRS MR
1£1,021.363 T » LR 1% KR ARG 5HR B
B REBDRIELEMRERE ST E 640
L[ ©

EPaS

(i

52 B & UItimate Elite 52 &

H & Ultimate Elite 52 B 72201748 A28 H 5%
B - AREETE R Ulimate Elite E @& B (£
Al Es o

(ii)

HEEZ KRG

R2017F8A24H » REEFEBH AN T
15 H & & $£9,000,000/ 8 SR fn - BRER
#14,771,00087C - HERERE S KM
0.5301% 7T » 201748 A25H  REEFE
B TS — P & A $£17,010,000
B8 B - BB R#)8,605,000/87T * 17
ERERE 50 FHEH0.5059/8 7T ° K
AEHFAH - AEEDFH21,858235 8
S - HERE R EITAKL.92%

(iii)

HERRBHERBRATARMG((EER
% 1)

R2017F8A1IBHEEEE RNFIHRH
B AEESBHBSHAATHEEEA K
281,096,000/% F Z= i {7 (72201746 A30H
PHEABEFEENRAZES)  BREY
55,031,000/ 7T + HHE R &R FE ZIRD F
E470.195878 L - RANFHRAH - ALED
#5756 418,900,000 8 FE =M% + MERE R
REIER AR A B B 31 TRAAN492.80% ©

(iv)
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Five-Year Financial Summary

L EMEHE

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the
basis set out in the notes below.

AT RAEEZ T XM EMEEEREEE T EM K
FENDHEXEREERAEME -

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 30 June
HF6A30HILLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#IT FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 153,859 189,778 208,439 235,805 248,348
(Loss) profit before tax BrEAT (88 )= (330,112)  (144,802) 34,078 (66,312) (24,676)
Income tax expenses e (814) (321) (1,147) (195) (1,990)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(E1E)m (330,926) (145,123) 32,931 (66,507) (26,666)
(Loss) profit for the year AT ALTEIEFEE
attributable to: (E18) & H) -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7 =N (333,326)  (144,718) 33,028 (66,517) (25,239)
Non-controlling interests VAR R 2,400 (405) 97) 10 (1,427)
(330,926) (145,123) 32,931 (66,507) (26,666)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE
As at 30 June
"6BA30H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets WEE 586,837 798,521 364,954 233,393 228,104
Total liabilities wEE (221,964) (189,649) (28,337) (21,200) (30,018)
364,873 608,872 336,617 212,193 198,086
Equity attributable to: LA AL GRS
Owners of the Company RARIEAR A 314,272 560,702 336,489 211,968 197,144
Non-controlling interests Bl 50,601 48,170 128 225 942
364,873 608,872 336,617 212,193 198,086

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &HEH A (BB REEBEERAF
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